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Corporate Information

NEER

ABOUT CGN MINING

CGN Mining is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, and
is a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code:1164). The principal activities of the Company at present are
development and trading of natural uranium resources for use by
nuclear energy companies.

The Company positions itself as the sole overseas uranium exploration
and trading platform for CGN Group, which strives to provide nuclear
power plants owners with high-quality and reliable natural uranium
products, and contributes to a clean environment.
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Financial Highlights

MBEE

OPERATING RESULTS ¥4&

2016
2016 F

HK$’000
TR

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31 BLEE

2015
20154
HK$'000
T

2014
2014 F
HK$'000
THET
(Restated)
(5&=7)

2013
20134
HK$'000
T

2012
20124
HK$'000
T

Continuing operations BEEER
Revenue X 707,749 703,422 1,151,707 796,594 1,232,287
Operating profit oyl 469,513 275,273 113,049 60,320 96,443
Finance costs REKA (5,601) (21,990) (28,802) (27,292) (25,930)
Profit before taxation gl 463,912 253,283 84,247 33,028 70,513
Income tax expenses FrisfiZ L (74,782) (49,920) (22,462) (16,978) (51,866)
Profit from continuing REEMEBIE

operations vl 389,130 203,363 61,785 16,050 18,647
Discontinued Operation I EMER
Profit (loss) from discontinued RIEFEMEBE

operation 2aH (EBE) = 94,640 (103,660) - -
Profit (loss) for the year AFERF] (EE) 389,130 298,003 (41,879) 16,050 18,647
Profit (loss) attributable to: THALTER

A (E18) -
Owners of the Company AREEBA 389,130 297,981 (41,706) 16,365 18,660
Non-controlling interests IR - 22 (169) (315) (13
389,130 298,003 (41,875) 16,050 18,647

FINANCIAL POSITION Ef # AR5

As at 31 December

MW12HA31H

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
2016 F 20154 20145 20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THL THT FHL THL

(Restated)

(EE=l))
Total assets EELE 1,886,549 1,145,300 2,244,346 1,652,395 1,812,470
Total liabilities BfEEE (69,990)  (385,650) (844,869) (673,819) (755,183)
1,816,559 759,650 1,399,477 1,078,576 1,057,287

Equity attributable to owners AREEEA

of the Company E(EHERS 1,816,559 759,650 1,397,836 1,076,778 1,055,273
Non-controliing interests FEE R - = 1,641 1,798 2,014
1,816,559 759,650 1,399,477 1,078,576 1,057,287

CGN Mining Company Limited
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In the year 2016, despite the downturn, CGN Mining achieved good
results and its asset scale and profits continued to maintain growing.
Concurrently, the Company continued to optimize its corporate
governance structure, further strengthened its fiscal capacity and
crystallized its goals on new business. Also, the Company enhanced its
risk management and internal control and maintained the best practice
for its corporate governance, which created high values for its whole
shareholders.

The global development of nuclear power was active in 2016. Not only
did UK, a well-developed country, actively promote construction of
new nuclear power plants, but also did the countries along the route of
the One Belt One Road Initiatives, especially new emerging economies
like India, announced their development plans for nuclear power. All
those countries are optimistic about the energy replenishment and
economic benefits in long term that nuclear power could bring to them.
The China’s nuclear industry has also been steadily moving toward its
goals under its “Thirteen-Five Power Development Plan”. CGN Group
was keeping pace with the China’s overseas development and being
active in promoting the “Nuclear Power to Go Out” strategy, in which
the signing of certain cooperative agreements of UK new nuclear
projects was undoubtedly the most remarkable feat, which confirmed
our participation in such new nuclear projects. This is extremely
meaningful to both CGN Group and the China’s nuclear power
industry, which gives affirmation to the “Go Out” strategy of the China’s
nuclear power and also firms its confidence of the entire industry.

Based on the good development of nuclear power as above
mentioned, the uranium raw material industry, which is closely related
to the nuclear power industry, has a favourable prospect. Yet, as
the recovery progress of Japan’s nuclear power was far behind
expectations in short to medium term and numbers of inventories had
to be destocked, it is expected the natural uranium market will remain
oversupplied and the industry will take time to fully recover.

China has an old saying that “It’s like rowing upstream: not to advance
is to drop back”. We firmly believe that only if we are tempered by
challenges, we can grow through adversity. CGN Mining will adhere
to the CGN Group’s corporate spirit of “pursuit of excellence”, forging
ahead and moving towards its targets. In the meantime, the Board will
continue to take the protection of the whole shareholders’ interests
as its main duty, overall control the direction of the development of
the Company and to identify any possible risks in the Company’s
operation at all times, so as to maintain a sound operation and healthy
development of the Company.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

APPRECIATION

As the Chairman of the Board, | wish to express on behalf of the Board
of CGN Mining my heartfelt gratitude to our business partners, our
clients and shareholders who have given us their trusts and supports.
| also take this opportunity to sincerely thank all staff who have
endeavored to contribute towards the development of the Company.

Chairman of the Board
Zhou Zhenxing

Beijing, 23 March 2017

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

With concerted efforts of the Board, management and all the staff, the
Company reached its goals and achieved enhancement in results in
such sluggish market conditions in 2016. It is my pleasure to present
the 2016 annual results of the Company to our shareholders. During
the reporting period, the major results of the Company are as follows:

. Revenue of HK$708 million (2015: HK$703 million);

° Gross profit margin after deducting sales and distribution
expenditure being 59.84% (2015: 40.21%);

° Profit attributable to owners of the Company being HK$389
million (2015: HK$298 million), basic earnings per share HK7.05
cents (2015: HK7.36 cents).

As the chief executive officer, | hereby thank all the shareholders for
their recognition and support to the Company, thank the Board for
its leading in our developing strategies and its support on all of our
major operating decisions and thank all the staff for their efforts and
contribution. | will summarize the performance of CGN Mining in 2016
and outline the subsequent plan below.

Stable operation of existing assets

In 2016, the two mines of Semizbay-U ran well and have exceeded the
targets of the annual mining plan without causing any safety incident.
Through implementing effective measures to reduce production costs
continuously, its unit cost reduced to USD15.33/Ib, representing a
decrease of 26.08% as compared with USD20.74/lb in 2015, which
made great contribution to achieving a total profit of USD12 million in
such weak market.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

HRHITE RS

Expansion of high-quality resource reserve

In January 2016, the Company completed the acquisition of 19.99%
equity interest in Fission. The PLS Property of Fission, being a high
quality uranium mine in Canada with the highest exploring potential,
further identified exploitable ore bodies in the East and West part of the
original Triple R deposit, through the winter and summer exploration,
especially the major findings of the strippable ore bodies in the west
part. Fission has conducted promptly publications in relation to all of its
findings and it is expected that mineral assets will increase significantly
(report in relation to the new volume of mineral resources will be
disclosed in the second half of 2017). Such expansion in mineral assets
will further reduce the development costs of future projects and hence
increase the market competitiveness.

Steady implementation of the new Kazakhstan uranium deposit
project

In October and December 2016, the Company entered into the
“Mining Principles Agreement on the Joint Development of Kazakhstan
Uranium Deposit” and its supplemental agreement with Kazatomprom,
which confirmed the selection of the new high-quality uranium mining
deposits.

Completion of the new connected transactions framework
agreement with three-year term

The connected transactions framework agreement of the Company in
relation to natural uranium trading has expired on 31 December 2016.
The Company entered into a new connected transactions framework
agreement with CGNPC-URC in respect of the sales of natural uranium
during the three years from 2017 to 2019, which helped maintain a
continuously stable business development of the Company.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREXAR AR
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Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

Optimizing the internal management

During the reporting period, the Company continued to enhance
its management level. As for business planning, the Company has
prepared its business proposal for the Thirteen-Five Period, which
including detailed analysis and elaboration of the Company’s operating
environment, development goals and major tasks during the Thirteen-
Five Period and was approved by the Board. The business proposal
has helped the Company to clear its development path in the mid and
long term. As for risk management, through various measures such as
establishment of a mechanism, clear division of labour and optimization
of workflow, the Company was able to supervise and control its major
operating risks effectively, which ensured the accomplishment of the
operating goals. As for human resources, the Company carried out in-
depth research in respect of its mid-to-long incentive scheme for core
staff.

Subsequent plan

The year of 2017 is an important year for the Company to achieve its
Thirteen-Five business proposal. The difficulty that the Company is
likely to face is still the weak market condition with low natural uranium
price. On the other hand, low natural uranium price is beneficial to the
acquisition of new uranium mining projects and the Company will be
active in grasping such opportunities. In the meantime, despite the floor
price and ceiling price mechanism agreed between the Company and
its strategic customers which helped prevent against low price risks
under the New uranium Sales Framework Agreement, the Company
will still suffer from enormous operating challenges and pressure arisen
from the continuous low level of natural uranium market price.

In 2017, the Company will follow the mid-to-long term operating
strategies adopted by the Board without fear of hardship and adhere to
the overall guideline of “stabilizing operation, striving for development
and strengthening the management”, work diligently and endeavour
to achieve remarkable results, so as to maintain a sound and healthy
development of the Company and create values for its all shareholders.

Chief Executive Officer
Yu Zhiping

Beijing, 23 March 2017
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Directors’ Report
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in natural uranium resources
investment and trading. As at 31 December 2016, the Group
holds 49% equity interest and 49% off-take rights of products in
Semizbay-U as well as 19.98% equity interest in Fission. Meanwhile,
the Kazakhstan new uranium project was conducted as scheduled.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company realized revenue
of HK$708 million and profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$389 million, well achieving its plan and targets set at the beginning
of the year.

Analysis of Business Environment
Nuclear power market and its industry development

According to China’s “Thirteen-Five Power Development Plan”, in
2020, the installed nuclear capacity of China has to reach 58,000,000
kW and the capacity under construction has to reach 30,000,000
kW, and it is expected that the installed nuclear capacity of China
will reach 150,000,000 kW in 2030. Nuclear power units which were
constructed during the Twelve-Five Period have been successively put
into operation. In 2016, seven nuclear power units in total across the
country were put into operation with a total installed nuclear capacity
of 7,204.79 MWe, five among them belonged to the CGN Group, with
an installed nuclear capacity of 5,465.79 MWe which accounted for
75.86%.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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In addition, 65 countries along “One Belt, One Road” planned to
install 126 nuclear power units by 2030, with a total installed nuclear
capacity of 150,000,000 kW. In 2016, India, Sweden, Russia and other
countries announced their plans for building new nuclear power plants.
Nuclear power has become the representative of the “Go Out Policy” of
China and the nuclear “Go Out” strategy of CGN Group also achieved
great progress in 2016. On 29 September 2016, CGN Group and
Electricité de France (“EDF” — French public utility) officially entered into
certain cooperation agreements of new UK nuclear power project in
London, which confirmed that CGN Group will invest in the UK Hinkley
Point C project and Sizewell C project and invest in and control shares
of the Bradwell B project. On 10 January 2017, the UK government
announced that it accepted the generic design assessment of Hualong
| (“GDA”). The activation of GDA marked a significant step of China’s
third generation nuclear power technology towards the implementation
of the UK Bradwell B project.

With an increasing proportion of clean energy in the world and a stricter
carbon emission standard, nuclear energy, as a clean and low carbon
emission energy, will play a more important role in the global energy
layout. Along with the operation of several nuclear power plants under
construction and new developed nuclear power plants in China, as well
as the implementation of nuclear energy “Go Out” strategy, domestic
and international demands on nuclear energy are growing.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

EEEHE

Natural uranium market and its industry development

In 2016, the supply of global natural uranium was greater than its
demand and the fundamentals remained unchanged. The price of
uranium maintained at a low level and trading volume further shrank.
In 2016, the international price of natural uranium was weakened as a
whole and was on downward trend. Throughout the year, the monthly
average price of natural uranium in the spot market decreased from
USD34.65/Ib at the beginning of the year to USD20.25/Ib in December,
of which the decrease between September and October was relatively
larger and the price fluctuated between USD17.75-20.25/Ib. The
monthly average price of the long-term market was USD38.83/Ib,
representing a significant decline as compared with 2015. Due to
the decrease in spot prices, the price of long-term market started
decreasing from October, and dropped to USD30/Ib at the end of
December.
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS

During the reporting period, the Company continued to firmly
implement the annual trading plan approved by the Board and
ensured the achievement of revenues from principal business. In the
meantime, the Company continued to optimize its management and
control of the existing assets and, through more reasonable channels
and management models, achieved its management goals. Also, the
Company continued to enhance its cooperation with Kazatomprom
and some progress was made during 2016.

Operating management and control of investment projects

As at 31 December 2016, the Company held 49% equity interest in
Semizbay-U and 19.98% equity interest in Fission (as certain options
granted by Fission to its internal staff and directors were exercised
during the reporting period, total shares increased from 483,924,661
shares when acquisition took place to 484,187,994 shares, the equity
interest held by the Group was diluted to 19.98% from 19.99%).
Reserves of mines of Semizbay-U amounted to 36,774 tons of uranium
while resources of projects of Fission, an associate, amounted to
43,609 tons of uranium.

Reserves of Semizbay-U and its production

In 2016, Semizbay-U produced 1,242 tons of natural uranium,
representing an increase of 1.6% as compared with 2015 (2015: 1,222
tons). Of which, the actual production volume of uranium of Semizbay
Mine was 500 tons while the actual production volume of uranium of
Irkol Mine was 742 tons. During the reporting period, Semizbay-U did
not conduct further exploration work.

Table 1 — Reserves of uranium deposits of Semizbay-U

Number Name of mine (project)
=27 WL (EE) &8
1 Semizbay Mine
I
2 Irkol Mine
{Fa

Note: According to the standard of the Kazakh Classification System
(CIS), since the establishment of Semizbay-U in 2008, reserve of
the Semizbay Mine was 17,108 tons of uranium while reserve of the
Irkol Mine was 29,541 tons of uranium (relevant data was extracted
from the competent person’s report prepared by Blackstone Mining
Associates Limited (mining and geological consultants) in 2014). The
existing reserve data is calculated based on the past reserve, less the
cumulative uranium mining volume.
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Exploration of Fission

The PLS Property of Fission was located in Saskatchewan, Canada,
with an exploration area of approximately 31,039 hectares. The Triple
R deposit and high-grade uranium ore region with high development
potential have already been discovered in the previous exploration. The
PLS Property was still at an exploration stage and no products were
produced.

The Triple R deposit is in east-west direction with a length of
approximately 2.63 kilometers. From West to East, it is classified into
four zones: namely R840W, ROOE, R780E and R1620E. Currently,
only resources of ROOE and R780E were included in the estimation
of resources while resources of R840W and R1620E were excluded.
Fission will continue to promote the exploration work of the PLS
Property as scheduled so as to update its estimation of resources at
the earliest possible time.

During the reporting period, expenditures on exploration of the PLS
Property amounted to approximately CAD19 million, which including
implementation of 91 drilling holes and completion of 28,200
meters’ exploration. Certain achievements were accomplished in
the exploration progress (details of which were promptly announced
by Fission) and it is expected that the mining resources will largely
increase, so as to further improve the economical-efficiency of the
project.

Table 2 — Resources of projects under Fission

Resource under control

EHERE
Name of project Grade (%U)
HE &S m L (%U)
1 PLS Property 1.40
PLSIEH

Note: Same as the JORC (the Australasian code for reporting of exploration
results, mineral resources and ore reserves) resources (including
RB00W zone) estimated by the technical adviser, Runge Pincock
Minarco, in respect of such uranium deposit when investing in Fission.
in 2016.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Z AR EN T - B3R Triple RIEFR » W3
RETEENSMMAMEBEHIEES - PLS
TEH MERERPEER - BERED -

Triple RIEIRERAER + KEL2.632
B WA E RKXE D AT EE L
R840W * ROOE * R780E M R1620E ° E A
{2 ROOE f1R780E B IEE B R E izt -
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Estimated resource
HEERE

Tons of
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Grade (%U)
18§ m L (%U) g S

37,302 1.14 6,307
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Description of differences on calculation criteria and
parameters of Kazakhstan and Canada mines reserves: In the
Kazakhstan and other countries of the Commonwealth of Independent
States (CIS), mineral resources and reserves are classified according
to the 1981 “System of Classification of Reserves and Resources of
Mineral Deposits”. This classification system uses seven categories
in three groups based on the level of exploration performed. Table
3 presents a ‘best estimate’ correlation of the Kazakh classification
system (CIS) to the JORC standard definitions. The CIS system and
the JORC system are not directly reconcilable. The primary reason
is that the CIS system does not rely on a high-degree drill hole
spacing to categorize or classify the resources and reserves. JORC
classification requires a high degree of reliable and factual data on not
only the mineralization grade but also the geological and geotechnical
aspects, as well as hydrogeology and significant economic factors to
develop reliance on the assessed data and mineralization from which a
classification can be derived.

Table 3 — Correlation of CIS to the JORC standard definitions

CIS Classification CIS Categories

CIs &5l

CISD %8

Explored Reserves Aand B
RARE AFIB
Explored Reserves C1

RARE C1

Evaluated Reserves Cc2

MRS c2
Prognosticated Resources P1, P2 and P3
FREER P1 - P2f1P3

JORC Resources
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Asset management

During the reporting period, regarding to the management of
Semizbay-U, the Company formulated an optimization solution
of management and control by various channels such as holding
seminars. The optimization solution divided the duties of its assigned
team (the “Assigned Team”, including the chief financial officer, deputy
manager of the financial department, deputy manager of the business
planning department, senior engineer of the production technology
department of Semizbay-U) and relevant departments of the Company
which were engaged in operation and management of the asset of
Semizbay-U. Also, through the optimization solution, the Company
has sorted out three management and control lines among board of
shareholders’ level, board of directors’ level and the Assigned Team,
so as to ensure the accomplishment of its management and control
target. In addition, the Company formed a specific management and
control solution for Fission as well, which was implemented through our
two directors in the board of directors of Fission.

In order to optimize the management and reduce costs, during the
reporting period, the Company has deregistered a subsidiary, namely
Ever Jump Limited, which did not carry out any business over the past
three years.

Natural uranium trading business

In 2016, all of the natural uranium products sold by the Company
were sourced from self-owned mines of Semizbay-U, the natural
uranium trading amount achieved HK$706 million, representing an
increase of 1% as compared to 2015 (2015: HK$700 million). As at 31
December 2016, gross profit from natural uranium trading business
was approximately HK$421 million, representing an increase of 50% as
compared to the gross profit of HK$280 million for 2015.

Since the original natural uranium sales framework agreement has
expired on 31 December 2016, the Company has obtained the
approval from shareholders for the continuing connected transactions
under the New Natural Uranium Sales Framework Agreement during
the reporting period. The natural uranium transactions between
the Company and CGNPC-URC in the coming three years will be
conducted subject to such framework agreement. With reference to
the basis of market price, the New Natural Uranium Sales Framework
Agreement adopted a floor price and ceiling price mechanism, which
aims at achieving interest and risk sharing with the owners of nuclear
power plants.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Developing new projects

During the reporting period, the new uranium deposit developing
project between the Company and Kazatomprom has made further
progress, subject to certain fulfillment of conditions. On 4 October
2016 and 6 December 2016, the Company entered into the “Mining
Principles Agreement on the Joint Development of Kazakhstan
Uranium Deposit” and its supplemental agreement respectively with
Kazatomprom. Accordingly, both parties have selected the mine for
their jointly-developed uranium deposit project in Kazakhstan and
agreed on the Group’s participatory interest in the mining partnership
(the partnership which was incorporated for joint development of
uranium deposits) to share on balance reserves of 19,600 tons of
uranium with an undertaking volume of not less than 20,000 tons
of uranium (the excess part which is beyond the share on balance
reserves of the Company will be available to the Company from the
entitlement of the off-take volume of Kazatomprom).

Placement and the New Financial Service Framework Agreement

On 8 November 2016, the Company and Hong Kong Xinmao entered
into a share subscription agreement. Pursuant to such agreement,
Hong Kong Xinmao subscribed for 659,400,000 ordinary shares of
the Company at a price of HK$0.52 per share (closing price being
HK$0.63 per share on 8 November 2016). The aggregate nominal
value of the subscription shares is HK$6,594,000. Upon completion of
such transaction, Hong Kong Xinmao held 9.99% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of shares and became
the second largest shareholder of the Company. The proceeds raised
in the issue of subscription shares, after deduction of the related
expenses, amounted to approximately HK$340 million (representing a
net subscription price of approximately HK$0.5153 per share), which
will be used for acquiring uranium from overseas at competitive costs
during market downturn in the future. As at 31 December 2016, the
net proceeds had not been utilised and will be utilised as intended. For
more details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
9 November 2016.
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Since the original financial service framework agreement has expired
on 31 December 2016, the Company and CGNPC Huasheng
entered into the New Financial Service Framework Agreement. Such
agreement was approved at the EGM for a term commencing from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive). The
New Financial Service Framework Agreement, to a maximum extent,
ensures a safe finance of the Company and reduces its financial costs.

Major Acquisition/Disposal

On 27 January 2016, the Company completed the acquisition of
19.99% equity interest in Fission. The Company subscribed for
96,736,540 ordinary shares of Fission at a price of CAD0.85 per share.
Pursuant to share subscription agreement, the Company obtained
20% of the annual production volume of the PLS Property acquired
from Fission at a discount rate of 5% of the average spot price index
published by Trade Tech, Inc. (Trade Tech of Denver Tech Center)
and UxC (the LCX Consulting Company, LLC) and the Company may
acquire an additional 15% of off-take rights of the annual production
volume of the PLS Property.

Potential risks during operation and risk management
Risks of single supplier and single customer

During the reporting period, all supply of the Company’s natural
uranium is from the exercise of the off-take rights of Semizbay-U;
on the other hand, because of Chinese import restriction on natural
uranium and the strong demand from nuclear power plants owners of
CGN Group, all natural uranium products are selling to CGNPC-URC
(one of the few companies which holds the import and export permits
of natural uranium in the PRC), resulting in the risks of relying on single
supplier and single customer to the Company.

In respect of the risk of single supplier, the Company aims to cultivate
its purchasing ability of natural uranium from other channels, to
ensure that once Semizbay-U cannot provide sufficient supply due
to operation difficulties, the Company can promptly activate its
emergency mechanism to offer sufficient sales to its customer.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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In respect of the risk of relying on single customer, the Company
obtained a written commitment fromm CGNPC-URC for its procurement
priority. The sales volume of the Company only take a very small
proportion of the annual consumption volume of the nuclear power
plants of the CGN Group. Therefore, the Company will not be exposed
to the risk of non-performance of the procurement commitment by
CGNPC-URC.

Risk of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate

The major investment assets of the Company are located at
Kazakhstan and Canada, fluctuation of local currencies will cause
material effects on the recognition of investment interests of the
Company. Thus, the Company will continue to pay close attention to
and assess the impacts of the risk of exchange rate.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

Forecast of the natural uranium market

In 2016, spot prices of natural uranium kept decreasing from
USD34.65/Ib in January to USD17.75/Ib in November. Despite a
slight rebound to USD20.25/Ib in December, the entire decline trend
of prices remained unchanged. The price of the long-term market
also dropped from USD44.00/Ib at the beginning of the year to
USD30.00/Ib at the end of the year. Combining all analysis reports
released by major institutions, the Company forecasts that the over-
supply trend in the natural uranium market will continue in short
term and the price of natural uranium in 2017 will maintain at a low
level and with downside potential. Due to the production reducing
plans of large-scale producers, the market price in early 2017 may
rebound temporarily. However, the downward trend for the year
will not change. It is expected that the market will be still at a de-
stocking stage in the coming years, and uncertainty still exists in the
recovery of Japan’s nuclear power. Although part of manufacturers
reduced their production which may lead to a slightly increase of the
price level as compared with the current stage, the entire market may
still be sluggish. In face of such market environment, the Company
will adopt measures for controlling production costs and strengthen
its management and control of risks, so as to maintain its stable
operation.
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Focusing on the reversal timing of natural uranium market and
grasping opportunities for acquiring new projects

The Company will continuously pay great effort in market research and
pay close attention to the price trend of natural uranium. On the one
hand, the Company will explore new business model of foreign trade of
natural uranium under the circumstances where risks are controllable;
on the other hand, the Company will continue to focus on oversea
uranium projects which have low costs and with high-quality, especially
taking the in-situ leachable sandstone-type uranium mines in Central
Asia and high grade uranium mines in Canada as its main targets. In
the meantime, the Company will be active in establishing strategic
partnership with famous international uranium manufacturers and
traders and will capture opportunities for developing uranium mines
according to its established strategies, in order to make full preparation
before the reversal of the natural uranium market and to avoid missing
opportunities.

Enhancing the management of investor relationship

The Company will further enhance its management of investor
relationship, so as to build up good reputation of an honest,
responsible and regulated image in the capital market. As for
information disclosure, save for statutory disclosure, the Company will
also make voluntary disclosure in order to increase the transparency
of corporate information. As for communication with institutional
investors, the Company will pay visits to key institutional investors
regularly to inform them of the Company’s latest operating status
and procure the Company to be placed on the investment lists of
institutional investors and attract the institutional investors to become
our shareholders in the secondary market. As for communication with
securities institutes, we will actively invite various brokerages to track
CGN Mining for preparing research reports.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Optimizing corporate operation and governance structure

In 2017, the Company will optimize its operation, reduce operating
costs and enhance management efficiency according to its business
development needs. Regarding to the management and control
of joint stock subsidiaries, the Company will release the monthly
report of those joint stock subsidiaries within the Company regularly,
conduct preliminary reviews of papers regarding the issues to be
proposed at shareholder’s meetings and board meetings, especially
focusing on financial information research and pay close attention to
financial budget, dividends and cost control issues. The Company
will also endeavor to attract institutional investors so as to optimize
its shareholders’ structure, which will be beneficial to the long-term
development of the Company.

Operation and management of the Company

The Company positions as the sole overseas uranium exploration,
investment and financing platform for CGN Group, and it will continue
to optimize its asset portfolio by taking full advantages of the capital
market. Through establishing a reasonable and high-quality uranium
resources project foundation, the Company aims to enhance its
position and bargaining power in the industry, and strive for a growth
in shareholder value ultimately.

In 2017, the Company will adhere to its three operation and
management strategies of “stabilizing operations, striving for
development and strengthening the management” to carry out its
business:

In stabilizing operations, the Company will strengthen its management
and control of Semizbay-U so as to achieve its goals of costs control,
production volume and profitability of Semizbay-U and to ensure the
realization of the off-take targets of the Company itself for the year.
As for Fission, the Company will, through its influence on the board
of Fission and the online financial audit, procure Fission to control its
expenses and maintain capital reserve so as to cross over the “winter”
and welcome the “spring” in the market.

In striving for development, the Company will implement the new
uranium deposit project in Kazakhstan as scheduled and reach its
targets by phases. In the meantime, the Company will track and select
high-quality uranium deposits in rich uranium oversea regions and
focus on high-quality projects in Central Asia and Canada.
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In strengthening the management, firstly, the Company will formulate
a comprehensive incentive scheme for staff, so as to support the
business development of the Company; secondly, the Company will
strengthen its management of the operating plan and improve its risks
assessment, so as to ensure the implementation of its operating plans
and risk management and control measures.

During the Thirteen-Five Period, the major development goal of the
Company is to become an influential natural uranium supplier and the
Company will move towards such goal.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND ANALYSIS

Financial performance reflects the operation of the Company
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throughout the year. By paying attention to changes in financial BIVEEENEE) - B2 E TRAR
indicators, business development of the Company can be fully B ERERAON
understood.
Overview of financial results and position M EERMTNE
Major Financial Indicators FTEMHKESR
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
Profitability indicators BRIENER
Gross profit margin (%)’ FEFIR (%)’ 59.84 40.21
EDITDA (HK$ million)? EBITDA (B E57T)> 471.46 373.25
EBITDA/Revenue (%)’ EBITDA & %% K (%) ° 66.61 53.06
Net profit margin(%)* T R (%) 54.98 42.36
Operation ability indicators BERNERE
Trade receivables cycle — average (days)’ FEUBR B E—F 5 (K)° 50 106
Inventory cycle — average FEE—TH
(Not including goods in transit) (days)® (TeEEREM) (R)° N/A 14
Investment return indicators BB O RIEE
Return on equity (%)" REZSBIRE (%) 30.21 27.60
Profit attributable to owners of the NATHEB NEE R
Company to revenue ratio® ERG AL RS 54.98 42.36
Return on assets (%)° EERIREK (%) ° 25.67 17.58
Repayment ability indicators EEENEE
Liability component of the convertible AR ESHaEIS Y
bonds (HK$ million) (BEBT) - 289.93
Bank balances and cash (HK$ million) WITEFELRIES (AEBT) 40.92 285.53
Net tangible assets (HK$ million)'® BREEFE(FESBT)™ 1,816.56 759.65
Gearing ratio (%)" BARE B R (%) 3.85 50.77
Interest coverage'? MeBEER"Y 83.83 16.82

CGN Mining Company Limited
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10.

11.

12.

Difference between revenue and cost of sales divided by revenue
multiplied by 100%.

The sum of profit before tax, finance costs, depreciation and
amortisation, if any.

The sum of profit before tax, finance costs, depreciation and
amortisation, if any, divided by revenue multiplied by 100%.

Profit for the year divided by revenue multiplied by 100%.

Average receivables (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning and the
end of reporting period) divided by average daily sales (revenue divided
by 360 days).

Average amount of inventory (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning
and the end of reporting period) multiplied by 360 divided by cost of
sales.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company divided by total average
equity (i.e the arithmetic average of the beginning and the end of

reporting period) multiplied by 100%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company divided by the revenue
multiplied by 100%.

Profit for the year divided by total average assets (i.e the arithmetic
average of the beginning and the end of reporting period) multiplied by
100%.

Net assets less intangible assets, if any.

Total debt divided by total equity multiplied by 100%.

Profit before interest and taxes divided by interest expense.

Financial results

As at 31 December 2016, the Group realized revenue of HK$708
million from continuing businesses, representing an increase of HK$5

million or 1% as compared to the revenue of HK$703 million in 2015;

the Group realized profit of HK$389 million, representing an increase
of HK$91 million or 31% as compared to the profit of HK$298 million
in 2015. Profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$389
million, representing an increase of HK$91 million or 31% as compared
to the profit of HK$298 million in 2015.
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REVENUE ¥R
For the year ended Percentage
31 December Movements change
BE12ANALFE g 2HESL
Increase/ Increase/
2016 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)
2016 20155 &/ CRd) #Em/(Ad)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
THT THT TET
Natural uranium trading KARME S 705,556 700,391 5,165 0.74
Property investment MERE 2,193 3,031 (838) (27.65)
Total revenue EEBAT 707,749 703,422 4,327 0.62

The revenue of 2016 of the Group increased by 0.62% to HK$708
million as compared to the revenue of HK$703 million of 2015. It was
mainly due to the slight increase in the selling price of natural uranium
of the Group for 2016 as compared with 2015.

Cost of sales

For the year ended
31 December

2016

2016 &
HK$’000

TRT

REBMEEFH2015FN703HE BT
HEIN0.62% £ 2016 FMH 708 BEE T © *
BRERAEER2016F KAMBEEER
2015 FH/MEEM

SHEMA
Percentage
Movements change

BZ12A31ALFE

Increase/ Increase/

2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)
2015 #i/CRd) i/ Ofd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TET FET

Natural uranium trading RAHE S 284,244 420,409 (136,165) (32.39)
Property investment WMERE - 170 (170) (100.00)
Total cost of sales HEMAREE 284,244 420,579 (136,335) (32.42)

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by 32.42% from HK$421
million in 2015 to HK$284 million in 2016. It was mainly due to the
significant decrease in the purchasing price of natural uranium of the
Group for 2016 as compared with 2015.

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT
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Other operating income

The other operating income of the Group decreased by 58.82% from
HK$17 million in 2015 to HK$7 million in 2016, mainly due to the
decrease in interest income generated since the fund paid upon the
settlement for the acquisition of Fission, decrease in trade deposit
interest income from a joint venture and no interest charging on
overdue trade receivable.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 32% from HK$31
million in 2015 to HK$41 million in 2016, mainly due to the inclusion of
the administrative expenses of Beijing Sino-Kazakh in 2016, while only
part of its monthly administrative expenses were included in 2015.

Share of results of a joint venture

Our joint venture is Semizbay-U, and our share of results of a joint
venture increased from the profit of HK$5.36 million in 2015 to the
profit of HK$44.58 million in 2016.

Share of results of an associate

The associate of the Company is Fission. On 27 January 2016, the
Company completed the acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in
Fission and shared its results of HK$33.28 million in 2016.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Company decreased by 73% from HK$22
million in 2015 to HK$6 million in 2016. The main reason is that China
Uranium Development exercised the conversion rights attached to the
convertible bonds in respect of a principal amount of HK$300,000,000
at the conversion price of HK$0.23 per conversion share on 9 May
2016.
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Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses increased by 50% from HK$50 million in 2015
to HK$75 million in 2016, mainly due to the increase in profit before
taxation of the Company for 2016 as compared with 2015.

Profit for the year

Our annual profit significantly increased from HK$298 million in 2015
to HK$389 million in 2016. It was mainly from the increase on trading
profits of off-take products and share of results of a joint venture and
the gain on bargain purchase from the acquisition of an associate.

ASSETS CONDITION AND ANALYSIS

Total assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total assets amounted to
HK$1,887 million, representing an increase of HK$742 million or 65%
from HK$1,145 million as at 31 December 2015.

Net current assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s net current assets was
HK$1,079 million (2015: HK$583 million). The change was primarily
due to (i) the settlement of consideration of CAD82.2 million to Fission
for acquiring 19.99% equity interest; (i) the settlement of consideration
of HK$342,888,000 for placing 659,400,000 new shares to Hong
Kong Xinmao; (iii) realization of trading revenue; and (iv) the completion
of conversion of remaining convertible bonds.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Current assets

As at 31 December
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REBEE
Percentage

Movements change

M12A 318 - FHEAHL

2016
2016
HK$'000
TiET

i e

ARIFE 2,650
FEACER T I L e MR 8,886
i GESH NG e

Amount due from an
intermediate holding company

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from fellow

subsidiaries 1,080,947
Bank balances and cash RIOTEF MRS 40,915
Total current assets MEVEERR 1,133,398

As at 31 December 2016, the current assets of the Group were
HK$1,133 million, representing an increase of HK$175 million or
18.32% from HK$958 miillion as at 31 December 2015, primarily due to
the realization of trading revenue and financing from placement of new
shares which resulted in the significant increase of deposits in fellow
subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$40.92 million (31 December 2015:
HK$285.53 million), among which approximately 4% (31 December
2015: 1%) was denominated in HKD, approximately 19% (31
December 2015: 6%) was denominated in USD, 0% (31 December
2015: 81%) was denominated in CAD and approximately 77% (31
December 2015: 12%) was denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any bank deposits
and cash pledged to any banks (31 December 2015: nil).

Increase/ Increase/
2015 (Decrease)
20155 3B,/ (i)
HK$'000

TAT

(Decrease)
i/ (Rd)
HK$'000 %

FET

10,074 (7,424) (73.69)
185,721 (176,835) (95.22)
476,588 604,359 126.81
285,528 (244,613) (85.67)
957,911 175,487 18.32

M20165F12A31H  AEBRBEE
R1,133BEAE T - k201512 A31H
RIO58 B & B LILMN175 B BB T + 80
18.32% * TERARKT ARG RHREHR
BIRE SWANRENRBEE BTN
&) Z B A R E ARG N -

2016128310 AL EEEMIER
THHBRERBSESHI4092B88E T
(2015412 A31H : 28553 BEHETT)
Hh#74% (2015412 A31 8 1 1%) &%
TL 0 #919% (2015F 12 A31H : 6%) &
FEIC 0 0%(2015F 12 31 H : 81%) Al
T R#I77% (2015912 A31 8 : 12%)
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Non-current assets IRBEE
Percentage
As at 31 December Movements change
K128 31H 2Hm  EPask
Increase/ Increase/
2016 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)
2016 20156 8/ CRd) i/ (Ad)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %

TR FET FET

Property, plant and equipment ¥  BE &R E 17,347 20,339 (2,992) (14.71)
Investment properties BEWE 29,021 28,778 243 0.84
Interest in a joint venture R—HEEECE BR 186,467 138,272 48,195 34.86
Interest in an associate NS E 7 s 520,316 - 520,316 100.00
Total non-current assets FRBEELR 753,151 187,389 565,762 301.92

As at 31 December 2016, the non-current assets of the Group
were HK$753 million, representing an increase of HK$566 million or
301.92% from HK$187 million as at 31 December 2015. It was mainly
because the Company has completed the acquisition of 19.99% equity
interest in Fission during the reporting period.

Liabilities
The Group’s total liabilities amounted to HK$70 million, representing

a decrease of HK$316 million or 82% from HK$386 million as at 31
December 2015.

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT
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Current liabilities REEE
Percentage
As at 31 December Movements change
K128 31H 28 E2PANL
Increase/ Increase/
2016 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)
2016 20156 #i/Cld)  Em/(Rd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TR FET FET
Trade and other payables FERBR R A B R 8,803 46,453 (37,650) (81.05)
Amount due to an intermediate [ — R RFEAR A B FUE
holding company 13,238 11,772 1,466 12.45
Amount due to a joint venture  JE—fEA E R EHIE 5,813 3,293 2,520 76.53
Amounts due to ERRRMB R RFE
fellow subsidiaries 378 2,891 (2,513) (86.92)
Convertible bonds R ES - 289,933 (289,933) (100.00)
Income tax payable FERFTEHL 26,353 20,449 5,904 28.87
Total current liabilities mEBREESH 54,585 374,791 (320,206) (85.44)

As at 31 December 2016, the current liabilities of the Group were
HK$55 million, representing a decrease of HK$320 million or 85.44%
from HK$375 million as at 31 December 2015, primarily due to the fact
that China Uranium Development exercised its conversion rights of all
its convertible bonds.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no bank borrowings (31
December 2015: Nil).

MH2016F 12 A31 B AEBRHEER
55E&EBIT 0 H2015F12 31 HHM3758
BATTRA320B BB T - 54 85.44%
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Non-current liabilities ERBARE
Percentage
As at 31 December Movements change
W12H31H 28  E2PAH
Increase/ Increase/
2016 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)
2016 2015  #i/CRd)  m/(fd)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
T TR TR
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEE 15,405 10,859 4,546 41.86
Total non-current liability SERBaERE 15,405 10,859 4,546 41.86

As at 31 December 2016, the non-current liabilities of the Group were
HK$15 million, representing an increase of HK$4 million or 41.86%
from HK$11 million as at 31 December 2015, primarily due to the
deferred tax liabilities as a result of the significant increase on profits
shared by Semizbay-U during the year as compared to the profits
shared in 2015.

MN2016F 12 A31 B * AEBIERSEE
B15EEBIT - th2015F 12 31 HAY11
BEATEM4TEET - 1£5N141.86% °
T EREREGEHATAFERFE2015
FREBRFA - MEEZEEHRERE -

Total Equity DB

Percentage
As at 31 December Movements change
K12 A 31H 29%m EPask
Increase/ Increase/
2016 2015 (Decrease) (Decrease)
2016 20155 &I/ CRd) B/ ORd)
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %

THT TAT TAET
Share capital &R 66,007 46,369 19,638 42.35
Reserves & 1,750,552 713,281 1,037,271 145.42
Total equity ERBE 1,816,559 759,650 1,056,909 139.13

As at 31 December 2016, total equity of the Group amounted to
HK$1,817 million, representing an increase of HK$1,057 million or
139.13% from HK$760 million as at 31 December 2015, mainly
attributable to (i) trading profits from off-take products; (ii) gain on
bargain purchase from acquisition of an associate; (iii) the facts that
China Uranium Development exercised its conversion rights of the
convertible bonds in an amount of HK$300,000,000 at a conversion
price of HK$0.23 per conversion share and the Company allotted
and issued 1,304,347,826 conversion shares to China Uranium
Development; and (iv) the fact that the Company placed 659,400,000
new shares to Hong Kong Xinmao at a price of HK$0.52 per share.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Due to the decrease in liabilities, the Group’s gearing ratio (total
borrowings/equity attributable to owners of the Company) dropped to
4% (2015: 51%)).

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

Financial assets and analysis

The Company adopts conservative capital and treasury policy and
goals. During the reporting period, the Company’s operating fund
was mainly from the cash generated from operating activities and the
consideration in received from the placement to Hong Kong Xinmao.

The capital needs requirements of the Company mainly comes from
the acquisition expenses of acquiring natural uranium resources and
funds for operation. During the reporting period, the Company has paid
the consideration of CAD82.2 million to Fission for acquiring 19.99%
equity interest. Since the Group had sufficient capital, such transaction
was funded by its own capital and without any financing arrangement.
Once suitable opportunities for acquisition arise in the future, the Group
can obtain short-term borrowings from CGNPC Huasheng and also
raise long-term funds through diverse financing channels to meet the
needs of the project.

The financing capacity of the Company is affected by on multiple
external and internal factors. In order to obtain financing on more
favourable terms, the Company have to understand the external
financing environment, adopt a reasonable financing model and
strategies and strict management measures for debt risks.

External financing environment

The Company will continue to pay close attention to the trends in the
financial market, consider how to respond to internal and external
financial risks and adopt effective preventive measures for further
safety of fund and financing, in order to facilitate financial health and
development of core business of the Company.
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Financing model

Given the complex and ever-changing financial market environment,
the Company has been exploring diverse financing approaches and
strive to establish a financing model with combination of short, medium
and long-term capitals, merges direct financing and indirect financing
and with various channels to ensure the stable fund security. In the
process of debt financing, the Company has followed the principle
of considering both costs and safety. The Company is dedicated
to seeking competitive financing cost but does not take the lowest
financing costs as its only goal in order not to damage financing
security and the quality of service received.

Types of financing products

Diversified financing varieties enable the Company to avoid from relying
on a single financing channel, so as to ensure that the Company has
choices in meeting the needs of different types of capital.

On 18 December 2015, the Company (as borrower) and CGNPC
Huasheng (as lender) entered into a loan agreement, pursuant to
which the Company can borrow from CGNPC Huasheng for short-
term capital within the limit of total borrowing from time to time within
3 years of first withdrawal. As at 31 December 2016, the Company did
not have any borrowing from external banks.

On 13 December 2016, the Company completed the placing of
659,400,000 new shares to Hong Kong Xinmao at a price of HK$0.52
per share and raised a fund of HK$342,888,000. The Company
intended to use the fund in acquiring oversea uranium resources at a
competitive cost under weak market conditions.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Exchange rate

During the period, the Group’s sale and purchase of products were
mainly settled in USD and RMB (2015: USD and RMB), while its cash
was mainly denominated in USD and HKD (2015: USD and HKD).

In 2016, the Group did not have any forward foreign exchange
contracts, interests or currency swaps or other financial derivatives for
hedging purposes, and the Group did not experience any significant
difficulty or impact in its operation or liquidity due to the fluctuation in
exchange rate.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had 6,600,682,645 ordinary
shares in issue totally (31 December 2015: 4,636,934,819 ordinary
shares), the market value of the Company was approximately
HK$3,900 million (31 December 2015: HK$2,800 million).

Risk management of debt

As at 31 December 2016, there were no banking borrowings or other
borrowings of the Company. The Company did not provide security for
subsidiaries or other companies, and subsidiaries are also not allowed
to provide security of any form for any unit or person, without the
approval of the authority department of the Company.

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Company formulates a
comprehensive system to monitor the cash and cash equivalents
and the unutilized credit level of the Company, to ensure a sufficient
liquidity for the operation of the Company and to lower the effect from
the cash flow volatility. Management of the Company will also keep an
eye on the external borrowing, to ensure the sufficiency of unutilized
borrowing credit. As at 31 December 2016, the Company has undrawn
borrowing credit of USD300,000,000.
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Dividend distribution

The Board recommended a payment of final cash dividend of HK$0.02
per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 to shareholders of the
Company as of the record date for payment of dividend on 20 June
2017 (Tuesday). The ratio of final dividend distribution for the year is
based on the various factors such as business performance in 2016.
The Company will also take into consideration the Company’s business
performance, future developing strategies and other factors for the
relevant year when determining the dividend distribution ratio for such
year, provided that it shall not be lower than 20% of the distributable
net profit of the continuous business for such year.

CONTINGENCY EVENTS

External guarantees

In 2016, the Group did not have any external guarantee (2015: Nil).

Pledge of assets

In 2016, the Group did not have any pledge of assets (2015: Nil).

Contingent liability

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any major contingent
liability (831 December 2015: nil).

Legal proceedings

The Company confirmed that there was no litigation, and it is not aware
of any pending or threatened litigation against the Company which had
or could have a material and adverse effect on the financial condition
or results of operations of the Company during the reporting period.

Compliance with laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, to the knowledge of the Directors, the Group complied with
applicable laws, rules and regulations in all material aspects.
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Human Capital ADEXK

The Company always concerned about how to reasonably utilise BTHATNAHEEREREATRE
and protect human capital so as to provide security of talents for KA —EITEAAHNESIBFERILFETA
the sustainable development of the Company. In the meantime, NERERE o [T - ARQ AT A K
the Company focuses on optimizing and improving the human AR RREATITET —SZEFNBE
resources team and creates an outstanding team of management and ERREZEATHBKM -

professional talents.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 23 employees, 17 of these M2016F 12 A31 H + AEBEHB23EE
employees were located in China and 6 in Hong Kong. For further B HP178ERPE 6 BHRES -
information about staff remuneration, please refer to the relevant BHREEBHLHE  BREEAUBHRR

contents in notes 16 and 17 of the consolidated financial statements. 16 17 BEAR -
TALENTS AT Bfh
Employee composition BI#HEE

M Professional technical
personnel

HERMAR
Management personnel
EBAE

Bachelor Degree
RERELEFTE

47% W Master Degree or above
B+ R E2F
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Professional qualifications

In the current workforce, 48% employees have intermediate
professional qualification or above.

EMPLOYMENT MECHANISM

Path of development

The Company respects growth and career development of each
employee and has set two paths of career development, namely
the management and the professional technology path, and has
established the switch mechanism between the two paths. The staff
can freely choose from the two career development paths and show
their talents. Meanwhile, the Company provides guidance to staff to set
up their personal career development plan, so as to help them to make
rapid career growth.

Internal talent market

For better use of the ability and expertise of each employee, the
Company established the internal talent market. The vacancies of
the Company will be filled by internal talents firstly, through which
the aspiration of individual employees can be better realized and the
optimized allocation of internal human resources is achieved, thus
to accomplish the common improvement of both the Company and
employees.

EVALUATION SYSTEM

In order to ensure operating objectives could be effectively
implemented, the Company has established a both incentive
and restraint mechanism for staff appraisal, and tends to guide
employees’ conducts by way of continuous communication,
feedback and improvement. Also, the Company will follow the steps
of communication, coaching, tracking and assessment, during the
formation and implementation of the performance plan, so as to reach
the expected performance results, and promotes the co-development
of the Company and staff.

CULTIVATING TALENTS

The Company has incorporated international and advanced experience
in its talent cultivation, through combining its own characteristics,
formed an autonomous talent cultivation mechanism and a regulated
and highly effective training management system, which taking
“training for entire staff, work under authorisation and lifelong
education” as core values.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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TRAINING RESOURCES

The Company has a comprehensive training system, providing various
earnings, covering executive development program, cultivation and
reservation for key positions, developing staff’s general ability and
etc, within which 12 courses for basic knowledge of nuclear fuel were
developed, including aspects of the whole industrial chain from mining,
smelting, assembly of final uranium products to the disposal of spent
fuel. There are also 35 online courses, covering workplace technique,
business communication and safety culture. These courses meet the
Company’s needs for rapid talent development effectively.

REMUNERATION SYSTEM

By incorporating industry features, the Company constructed a
competitive remuneration system which appeals to quality talents and
motivates employees effectively. The remuneration system reflects
the value of positions and individual sharing and encourages long-
term service of employees, jointly striving for continuous growth and
sustainable development of the Company and sharing the results of
corporate development. Remuneration is mainly composed of monthly
salary, performance bonus, over-time pay, subsidies and benefits.

Other Information
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Company, as a green energy affiliate, pays high attention to
environmental protection. and vigorously promotes environmental
protection by promoting green, energy saving and environmental
protection concept, such as advocating the green office, encouraging
the replacement of paper document with electronic document, the use
of double-sided printing and eco-friendly appliances etc. At the same
time, the Company requests the staff to participate in promotional
activities from time to time, such as tree planting activity, and promotes
the use of public transports, or walking to substitute driving.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

During the reporting period, the Company maintained a good
relationship with its suppliers and customers which ensured the timely
delivery of goods and the timely settlement for goods.

SOCIAL PARTICIPATION

The Company has actively participated in social charity activities,
and encourage the staff to join the “Showing love” activities, such as
helping and visiting people in need. At the same time, Semizbay-U, a
joint venture of the Company, donated money to subsidize the school
fees of the children from poor family near the mines and provided
career opportunities and supported local community development.
Semizbay-U also committed to donate USD1 to the local government
for infrastructure construction when producing every 1 kilogram of
natural uranium.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND DIVERSITY

The Company respects and treats every employee the same, and
promotes equal opportunity and policy of diversification regardless of
age, sex, marital status.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries held by the Company are set out in note 38
to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 9 May 2016, China Uranium Development exercised its
conversion rights of the convertible bonds in an amount of
HK$300,000,000 at a conversion price of HK$0.23 per conversion
share and the Company has allotted and issued 1,304,347,826
conversion shares to China Uranium Development. As at 31 December
2016, there are no outstanding convertible bonds of the Company.
Details of the convertible bonds are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out on
pages 111 and 112 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group are set out in notes 18 and 19 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately HK$731 million.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

None of the Company or its subsidiaries redeemed any of its shares
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended
31 December 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Company’s
major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier: 100%
— five largest suppliers: 100%

Sales
—the largest customer: 100%
— five largest customers: 100%

China Uranium Development, the controlling shareholder, is the
largest customer of the Company. Mr. Yu Zhiping, an ED and the
chief executive officer of the Company, Mr. Xing Jianhua, an ED
and the chief financial officer of the Company, Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, a
NED and chairman of the Company, Mr. Fang Chunfa and Mr. Wu
Junfeng, NEDs, all are the Directors and/or the senior management of
CGNPC-URC, the sole shareholder of China Uranium Development, at
different times throughout 2016. Save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

In 2016, the Company (as service receiver) and CGNPC-URC
(as service provider) entered into “Shared Administrative Services
Agreement” for providing shared administrative services to the
Company by CGNPC-URC. Moreover, Beijing Sino-Kazakh (as
service provider) and CGNPC-URC (as service receiver) entered
into “Technical Support Services Agreement” for providing technical
support services to CGNPC-URC by Beijing Sino-Kazakh.
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DIRECTORS

Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

EDs
Mr. Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xing Jianhua

NEDs

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman)

Mr. Fang Chunfa (appointed on 29 June 2016)
Mr. Wu Junfeng (appointed on 29 June 2016)
Mr. Liu Mingdong (appointed on 23 March 2017)

INEDs

Mr. Qiu Xianhong

Mr. Gao Pei Ji

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In 2016, none of the Directors and their respective associates had
an interest in a business which causes or may cause any significant
competition with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There is no service contract, which is not terminable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), in respect of all Directors who are proposed and
offered for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENT

No contract, transactions and arrangement of significance to which
the Company, any of its holding companies, or any of subsidiaries of
the abovementioned companies was a party, in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, subsisted during the reporting
period.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and senior management.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 23 July 20083 (the
“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The Company has adopted a share
option scheme (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”) at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2010 and terminated
the 2003 Share Option Scheme at the same meeting.

After the adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, no share option
was granted.

The 2010 Share Option Scheme

The following disclosure is a summary of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme as required by chapter 17 of the Listing Rules:

(1) Purpose:

The purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Company and/or any of
the subsidiaries.

2) Participants:

The eligible participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme to
whom option(s) may be granted by the Board shall include any
employees, NEDs, Directors, suppliers, customers, advisors,
consultants, joint venture partners and any shareholders of any
members of the Group or any invested entities or any holders
of any securities issued by any members of the Group or any
invested entities.
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Total number of shares available for issue under the 2010 Share
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital at the
date of approval of the share option scheme:

The number of shares which can be issued is 155,105,699
shares representing approximately 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the 2010
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period must not
exceed one percent (1%) of the then total issued share capital
of the Company.

The periods within which the shares must be taken up under an
option:

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part and in
accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each grantee, which period may commence on
the day on which the offer for the grant of options is made but
shall end in any event not later than ten (10) years commencing
from the date the Board makes an offer of the grant of an option
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised:

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer
of the grant of options to an eligible participant, there is no
minimum period for which an option granted under the 2010
Share Option Scheme must be held before it can be exercised.

3

(4)

©®)

©)
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(7)

©
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The amount payable on application or acceptance of the option
and the period within which payments of calls must or may be
made or loans for such purpose must be paid:

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an eligible
participant within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is
payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

Subject to the adjustment made in accordance with the terms
of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price in respect
of any particular option shall be such price as determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion at the time of making the offer of
grant of an option (which shall be stated in the letter containing
the offer of grant of an option) but in any case the exercise price
must be at least the highest of () the closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day;
(i) the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The remaining life:

The 2010 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2010 and has a remaining
life of approximately 3 years and 3 months as at the date of this
report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in notes 3 and 16

to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.cgnmc.com
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a)

(b)

The Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation

As at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (as defined in the
part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and
8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2016, according to the register of
substantial shareholders kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can
be ascertained after reasonable enquiry by the Directors,
the following persons/entities, other than a Director or chief
executives of the Company, had an interest or short position
in the shares and underlying shares and debentures of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Name of shareholder

RRER

China Uranium Development (Note 1)

PEMERR (M)

CGNPC - URG (Notes 182)
FREZBERRE (1 R%2)

CGNPC (Notes 182)
FEZERAR (i1 K2)

Hong Kong Xinmao (Note 3)
BEEX (ME3)

Hainan Mining (Note 3)
il IER))

Shanghai Fosun Industrial
Investment Co., Ltd (Note 3)
HEEREFRERRAR (F:3)

Shanghai Fosun Hightech (Group)
Co., Ltd. (Note 3)

LHEERRR(RB) ERAR (ME3)

Fosun International Limited (Note 3)
EEERARRR (F1:3)

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT

Capacity
27}

Beneficial owner

EafiBA

Interest in a controlled corporation
XEEERR

Interest in a controlled corporation
XEEERR

Beneficial owner

EafBA

Interest in a controlled corporation
AR

Interest in a controlled corporation

REEEER

Interest in a controlled corporation
R LB

Interest in a controlled corporation
RErEER

Number of
shares

(Notes 1 & 4)
REE
GEAND)
4,323,695,652 (L)
0

4,323,695,652 (L)
0(S)

4,323,695,652 (L)
0(S)

659,400,000 (L)
0(9)

659,400,000 (L)
0(S

659,400,000 (L)

0(9)

659,400,000 (L)
0

659,400,000 (L)
0(9)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

RESNEIL

65.50% (L)
0% (S)

65.50% (L)
0% (S)

65.50% (L)

0% (§)

9.99% (1)

9.99% (1)

9.99% (1)

9.99% (1)

9.99% (L)



Name of shareholder

BRRER

Fosun Holdings Limited (Note 3)
EERRBR A (M)

Fosun International Holdings.
Ltd. (Note 3)
EERRERER AR (A5E3)

Guo Guangchang (Note 3)
FES (HE3)

State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission
of Hainan Province (Note 3)

BEANNEEEEEEER
88 (ME3)

Hainan Haigang Group Co., Ltd. (Note 3)
i NEEAR AR (M)

Capacity
&%

Interest in a controlled corporation
X EERR

Interest in a controlled corporation
XA
Interest in a controlled corporation

REEEEER

Interest in a controlled corporation
AR

Interest in a controlled corporation
AR

Directors’ Report

Number of
shares
(Notes 1 & 4)
RH#E
GEINEY)

659,400,000 (L)
0(9)

659,400,000 (L)
0

659,400,000 (L)

0(S

659,400,000 (L)
00

659,400,000 (L)
0

EEEHE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

[REBLAE 2L
9.99% (1)

9.99% (1)

9.99% (1)

9.99% (1)

9.99% (1)
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EEEHE

Notes:

1. The long position represents (i) the 4,278,695,652 Shares
held by China Uranium Development (ii) the 45,000,000
outstanding charged shares (pursuant to the share charge
dated 1 April 2011, Perfect Develop Holding Inc. (established
by the Directors of the preceding controlling shareholders
of the Company) charged 450,000,000 shares in favor of
China Uranium Development among which, 225,000,000
and 180,000,000 charged shares were released on 18
February 2014 and 31 May 2016, respectively. The remaining
45,000,000 charged shares will continue to be charged in
favour of China Uranium Development).

2. CGNPC-URC holds 100% of the issued share capital of
China Uranium Development. CGNPC holds 100% of the
equity interests of CGNPC-URC. Therefore, it is deemed to be
interested in the interest held by China Uranium Development.

3. On 8 November 2016, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with Hong Kong Xinmao (being
the subscriber), pursuant to which Hong Kong Xinmao has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total of 659,400,000
subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$0.52 per
subscription share. Such transaction has been completed
on 13 December 2016. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 9 November 2016 and
13 December 2016.

4. The letter “L” denotes the person’s/entity’s long position in
the shares. The letter “S” denotes the person’s/entity’s short
position in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any person
as at 31 December 2016 who had an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREEXAR AR

G

1. ZERRRN)PRMESRRES
#)4,278,695,6520% B 17 0 K (ii)
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D E 2 B 2014F2 518 H
20165 A31 A EMHE - 8T
45,000,000 A& K #1515 15 4 48 LA
B ¥R AT AER)

2. PEZMEERNA T EMERRE
BEETRAKN100%, FEZEER
RIS A AR S 2R 100% B AR
R AR S A T B EE
FRETFF RO LS

3. B2016F 11 A8H KA A A HE
BEK(VERREBA)FINL —1HREE
g - Bt - BEERBRERE
R RN R A GRS AR kB
774 #£659,400,000 B& R B AL 15
REEAGRARERM, 0.52787T -
BEEZSER2016F12 51307
B - B BELEARAREHA
HA2016 11 A9H KX 12 A13H

B -

4. LI RKZFAL ERIELER
MR ZER - [SIREZFA
T/BEREUMSRG PR ZA

2
B e

B EXFTHREESN - 720164512 A
318 EFWAABBEEAMALR
KA - ABRERRD REHPE#E
BIRBEESFRABKAIEXVIHBE2
R 35 EARANA T B M s ok

NN
KB o



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S BEAXQAESNER
SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Company, or any of MRANERAPTIEEEIN - NAT] ~ skEHAF
its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a ERE NG = PNCTI- =R R A AL
party to any arrangement enables the Directors or chief executives of the B RIBEEEET ST A% HE + AMEARATE
Company or their respective associates to have any right to subscribe EAERITBRABRBEESENEEAR
for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations as BEMREALQ R SEEMAE AR (F
defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of EABHFREEGD) BHAER AR
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. B RN S E R EMEA BRI &
REFEHY 77 M IS Mz R RER) o

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFERERS

The Company entered into the following continuing connected RATEBEA LB NFERER
transactions with the connected persons, and transactions have been S WL EAHER S - 20165
conducted in accordance with the agreed terms. The execution of the RHEREXHNRITIBERAT
continuing connected transactions for the year 2016 were as follows:

Name of Annual cap,
agreement, date Transaction Connected Nature of actual
and existing term parties of transaction transaction and transaction amount

jiF Z Rk the Group parties description Pricing basis EELR.
REEER EEUE  BEGYR RALERER Fd EL] ERLALE

1 “Natural Uranium Seles Framework — The Company ~ CGNPC-URGands ~ The seleof naturalranium  Acoorling to the “Ntural Uranium Seles Framework — HK$3.483,200,000HKS705,556,136;

Agreement” entered info on 13 wholy - owned subsiciary to CGNPC-URC and ts  Agreement” which was entered into on 13 October

Qctober 2013, with a tem from 9 wholly - owned subsiciary - 2013, the price per pound of natural ranium shall b Annual cap of the ‘New Netural Uranium
December 2013 to 31 December by the Group etermined with reference to the one-month, threg- Sales Framework Agreement’”
2016. The “New Natural Uranium month, six-month, twelve-month arithmefic average HKS752,000,000 (2017,
Sales Framework Agreemen” was prices of both the spot price index and long-erm HK$2,520,000,000 2018);
entered into on 6 December 2016, price index published weekly or monthly by the UG HK$2,620,000,000 (2019)
with a term from 1 January 2017 to and TradeTech and the rational price expectation of

December 2019 both partes.

Pursuant to the “New Netural Uranium Seles
Framework Agreement’, the price per pound of
natural uranium shall be determined with reference fo
the arithmetic average prices of the long-tem price
index published by UxC and TradeTech in the second
month prior o the delivery month, subject to a floor
price and a cellng price.

ROISENAIRET (RS 507 TEVHSERRALE FERTERRETE BEOBENAURSTAREHEELE 346320000087,/ 705,556, 167

HEREGE) BUERANE KEQ FHFEERAZENE #) RMMEEERAZZUC R Tclech 3R

1AIRZNI6E A3 N IERTRAESRREERREEREENIE (FRNGEEEEREMEE IR
(FRAMHERRGZIBER B3R BEARIERNENTHERNEE B 7R2,000000ET (2017 FE)
M6E12B6R:T FiEA TRBNARERER 2,520 0000007 (01885 :

N7EIA1AZ0195128318 2,620,000 000 (201058

REGIAMBEERGS) RAGERENS
BEUCHTradeTech MR AR - EANRE
ERESNEITER  ERAAERRERR
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Name of Annual cap,
agreement, date Transaction Connected Nature of actual
and existing term parties of transaction transaction and transaction amount
fiat® AH the Group parties description Pricing basis EELR
HREHR I B REMERER  REER REESE
2 *Financial Sevice Framework The Company ~ CGNPC Huasheng The Groupmay place  Accorcing to the “Financial Senvce Framework USD178,000,0001USD139,375,893;
Agreement” entered info on 22 depostts in CGNPG Agreement" which was entered info on 22 January
January 2014, vith a tem from Huasheng and gain 2014, the inerest payable by CGNPC Huasheng Annual cap of the “New
1 January 2014 to 31 December interest income. CGNPG to the Group shall be equal to or higher than (1] the Financial Senvice Framework
2016. The "New Financial Senvice Huasheng provides relevant inferest rate offered by CGNPG Huasheng Agreement': USD220,000,000
Framework Agreement’ was entered setfbment senvice and o other members of the OGN Group in simlar (2017); USD480,000,000 (2018);
into on 6 December 2016, with a grants loans and facilties — arangement; and (2) the deposts interest rate SD480,000,000 (2019)
term from 1 January 2017 o 31 (i necessary) o the as announced by other indgpendent commercil
December 2019 Company. banks in Hong Kong from time to time n simiar
arangement.

Pursuant to the “New Financial Senvice Framewark
Agreement’, save for the above pricing determining
agreement, there is a pricing determining mechanism
of setflement and simiar services fees, of which

the setflement and smilar services fegs shal ()

equal to orlower then the settlement and simiar
services fees charged by CGNPC Huasheng to other
members of the CGN Group in setflement senvices
amangements; and (i) equalto or lower than the
setflement and simiar services fees as announced by
other independent commercial banks in Hong Kong
from time to time for setflement and simir services
provided by CGNPG Huasheng.

NUEIANRRTZBBRRE 209 hEER FEETESNRENE  BENUEI ARARTGRREEREE)  178000000ET/ 19037580857
BES) ENERNUEIRIR B UIEEHEN  REREEINILIHERSRARIEER

EN6E12E3R -~k A RREERAALT RERHIRTERERE T AMRERARE, (FERBEREIER L
FRELRS IEEI016E12A6 RUGERERERZE 1% RO ARLMEUREROEREREAT R& 220,000,000 (2017 %
BT BN A1AE REFARERE.  BEEGHAE ) 480000000ETC (018 EE)
N19E12F31H 480000 000 TT (201955

BROTEBREERER) KLUAEER

MBI BRARELERRRRNE

RERRY ARRARRRRISNIERTRY
SRREERBRAT AR RISEETANE

DAREZESRFRRAER : RiFHGER

BEBUBRRMIARIZHRALEARAR

BT R RERRRER
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Annual review of continuing connected transactions

The INEDs of the Company have reviewed and confirmed the
continuing connected transactions set out above are:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
2. on normal commercial terms or better; and
3. entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement

governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The external auditor of the Company has also reviewed these
continuing connected transactions and confirmed to the Board that
these transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;

2. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions; and

3. are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (if
the transactions involve provision of goods or services by the
Group).

Details of significant related party transactions undertaken by the
Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. Except
for (i) sales of natural uranium resources to CGNPC-URGC; (i) sales of
natural uranium resources to China Uranium Development; and (iii)
loan interest income from CGNPC Huasheng have been elaborated
in the section “Continuing Connected Transactions” above, other
transactions set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements
do not fall under the definition of (i) non-exempt connected transaction;
or (i) non-exempt continuing connected transaction under chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Report
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MAJOR TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company and Fission entered into the share subscription
agreement on 11 January 2016, pursuant to which Fission has agreed
to issue and the Company has agreed to subscribe for 96,736,540
ordinary shares and plus an additional number of ordinary shares that is
equal to approximately 24.98% of the number of common share to be
issued by Fission prior to the completion of the acquisition pursuant to
the exercise of outstanding convertible securities of Fission, at a price
of CADO.85 (equivalent to approximately HK$4.66) per common share,
for a total consideration of approximately CAD82,226,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$453,924,000).

During the reporting period, the Company has completed the
acquisition of 19.99% equity interest in Fission.

Following the completion of the acquisition on 27 January 2017, the
Company became the single largest shareholder of Fission.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the annual report, for the year ended 31
December 2016, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreement.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not made any charitable donations.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2016
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited who will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Appointment of NED

Pursuant to the share subscription agreement entered into between
the Company and Hong Kong Xinmao on 8 November 2016, Hong
Kong Xinmao shall have the right to nominate one person to be a NED.
On the nomination request from Hong Kong Xinmao, on 23 March
2017, the Company has completed such appointment and Mr. Liu
Mingdong was appointed as the NED of the Company, with effect from
the same date.

By Order of the Board
Zhou Zhenxing
Chairman

Beijing, 23 March 2017
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TEERRSE

The Company is committed to establishing and fulfilling a good
corporate governance practice and procedures, for ensuring a quality
Board, sound internal control, and transparency and accountability to
all shareholders in order to enhance credibility and reputation of the
Company. We firmly believe that good corporate governance practice
can earn the trust of shareholders as well as other stakeholders, and
most importantly, preserve the long-term interests of the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance practices

The Company’s corporate governance policy follows all code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during the reporting
period and up to the date of this report, except for the deviation from
the code provisions disclosed below.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that, the independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.

Except Mr. Yu Zhiping, an ED and the chief executive officer, Mr. Xing
Jianhua, an ED, Mr. Yin Engeng, a NED (resigned on 29 June 2016),
Mr. Qiu Xianhong, Mr. Gao Pei Ji, and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung, all being
INEDs, other Directors were unable to attend the 2016 AGM due to
other business engagement.

Moreover, pursuant to the code provision E.1.2, the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should
invite another member of the committees (or his duly appointed
delegate, if such member is unable to attend) to attend. These persons
should be available to answer questions at the annual general meeting.

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, chairman of the Board and nomination committee,
was unable to attend the 2016 AGM due to other business
engagement. Such meeting was chaired by Mr. Yu Zhiping who also
answered shareholders’ questions of the Company.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE EERERE
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EERERRE
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES EEEITES RS HEETA

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the standards of KRB ERNZETRAEFTEITESFR
securities transactions for the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, SMZE KEBAEREHFTEH
following specific enquiries made by the Company, that they have % FTEESHERABESREZE2016%F
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code 12 A31 BIEFERND ETIRESTR] -
regarding Directors’ securities transactions during the year ended 31

December 2016.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg
Composition and role HERAR

The Board currently comprises 9 directors, including 2 EDs, 4 KAREESRAIRERMAR  BIE2E
NEDs and 3 INEDs. The composition of the Board is based on a WITESE AR IERITEE RSB BIULIES
comprehensive consideration of the Directors’ professional skills, TEZ - EEFMEKERESTNEER
working background and qualification. It shows the differentiated and Bt  BESSNREREZHEGEERE
diverse arrangement of Directors. As at the date of this report, the BRTEFZE2(LNZ LT HE - IR
members of the Board are as follows: WEBE  EFGKEWNT :

Remuneration Audit Nomination
Committee = Committee = Committee
Directors FMZEEE EXRZEE® REEEZEE
EDs HITES
Mr. Yu Zhiping (chief executive officer)  REFseE (EE#H7TE) M M
Mr. Xing Jianhua ERELE M
NEDs FHITES
Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (chairman) IR & (FE) C
Mr. Fang Chunfa FEERE
(appointed on 29 June 2016) (20166 A 29 HEZT) M
Mr. Wu Junfeng RBIELE
(appointed on 29 June 2016) (FA20164F 6 A 29 HEZAT)
Mr. Liu Mingdong ZIRREE
(appointed on 23 March 2017) (FR2017F 3 A 23 HEZRT)
INEDs BYEHTES
Mr. Qiu Xianhong ER St A C C M
Mr. Gao Pei Ji EIEELAE M M
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis ZTEIR L M M M
C — Chairman of the relevant Board committees C-EHEFZEEENER
M — Member of the relevant Board committees M-EHESEZEGHKE

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT



Corporate Governance Report

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategy and
policy of the Group and ensures there are sufficient capital and
management resources for the implementation of relevant strategies
and the completeness of the financial and internal control systems,
and secures the compliance of business operation with relevant legal
requirements. All members of the Board fulfills their duties and acts
in the best interest of the Group and shareholders. Unless otherwise
disclosed in this annual report, to the knowledge of the Company,
there was no financial, business, family and other material/related
relationship among members of the Board.

All Directors should comply with rule 3.08(d) of the Listing Rules at all
times to avoid actual and potential conflict of interest and duties. In
each meeting of the Board and special committees of the Board (the
“Meetings”), Directors are required to declare if they have any interest
in the matters being considered in the Meetings. If a Director or any of
his associates have major interests in the matters to be considered,
the Director will not be counted as in the quorum and voting at the
meeting. The Director shall not be present during the discussion on
related matters.

The Board complies with rules 3.10 (1) & (2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules in relation to the appointment of at least three INEDs, which
represents at least one-third of the Board, and one of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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In accordance with the requirements of code provision C.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code, the Directors have conducted a review
of the overall effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and concluded that all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management are effective.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

As the decision authority of the Company, the Board takes charge of
the corporate governance function. The major responsibilities of the
Board include the tasks stated below. The Board may delegate the
responsibilities to other committees as it thinks fit:

(@) to review the Company’s policies, programs and procedures
and make recommendations as necessary from time to time;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices to
ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to oversee the implementation of any code of conduct and/
or business ethics of the Company to ensure the Company’s
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations, including
but not limited to the Listing Rules and the Takeovers Code;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report;

® to form any committee(s) or panels, appoint members thereto,
delegate at any time and from time to time to any person
or committee(s) or panel(s), any of its powers and functions
conferred on it, review and approve the reports of the
committee(s) and panel(s), review their performance and revise
their composition and terms of reference as appropriate;

CGN Mining Company Limited
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to oversee all matters and to formulate policies in relation to the
Company’s risk management and internal control, succession
plans, remuneration and compensation for Directors and
employees, risk management, corporate governance and
corporate social responsibility, and to supervise the Company’s
management to implement such policies;

investigate any significant instances of non-compliance or
potential non-compliance of the Company; and

to do any such things to enable the Board to discharge its
obligations and responsibilities.

Major work performed by the Board as regards the corporate

governance function during the year 2016 includes:

10.

reviewing the “Internal Control Evaluation Report” of 2015;

reviewing and approving the internal audit plan of 2016;

reviewing and approving the latest version of the “Rules for
Authority Delegation Policy”;

reviewing and approving the “Comprehensive Risk Management
Control Policy”;

reviewing and approving the “Business Proposal for Thirteen-
Five Period”;

reviewing and approving the organisational adjustment to
strengthen internal control;

reviewing and approving the dividend distribution policy of the
Company;

considering major matters in relation to major transactions and/
or connected transactions;

reviewing the Model Code; and

reviewing and confirming the independence of INEDs.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors
Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 59, was appointed as the
chairman of the Board and a NED of the Company on 5 December
2013. Mr. Zhou is also the chairman of the board of CGNPC-URC,
the chairman of the board of China General Nuclear Power Services
Corporation and the chairman of the board of CGN (Beijing) Nuclear
Technology Application Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Nuclear Corporation from March 1989 to January 1996 as a deputy
director of the general affairs division of the nuclear fuel bureau and
subsequently the secretary to the executive deputy general manager of
the China National Nuclear Group. Between July 1996 and December
1999, he joined Unilever Wall’s (China) Co., Ltd. as a vice general
manager and the head of human resources and external relations,
concurrently from July 1998 to April 2001, he also served as a vice
president of Sumstar Group Co., Ltd., a company under Ministry of
Light Industry. Between May 2001 and March 2003, Mr. Zhou joined
China Universities Intelligence Bank Co., Ltd. as the executive vice
president, head of human resources and operation and management.
Between April 2003 and September 2006, Mr. Zhou joined Galaxy
Captek Co., Ltd.* (“Galaxy Captek”) At F iRl iR B R
‘A7), a member of CGN Group, as general manager. Between
September 2006 and August 2009, he was the general manager of
CGNPC-URC. He has been the chairman of the Board of CGNPC-
URC since August 2009. Mr. Zhou graduated with a bachelor of
engineering degree in metal materials engineering from the Hebei
University of Science and Technology and with a master of engineering
degree in metal materials and heat treatment from the Harbin Institute
of Technology. Mr. Zhou has more than 27 years of experience in
operation and management of largescale enterprises at home and
abroad, as well as the practical operation experience in uranium
resources exploration and nuclear resources operation system.
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Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yu Zhiping (“Mr. Yu”), aged 53, is an ED and the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Yu was appointed the chairman of the
Company and a NED on 18 August 2011 and was re-designated
from the chairman of the Board and NED of the Company to an ED
and the chief executive officer on 5 December 2013. Mr. Yu also
served as the general manager of the nuclear fuel sector of the CGN
Group, managing director of CGNPC-URC and chairman of Swakop
Uranium (PTY) Ltd. (“Swakop Uranium”) (B HRIERA
al). Mr. Yu joined CGN Group in 1989, and served as the head of
the production planning division at the joint venture of the Daya Bay
Nuclear Power (a subsidiary of CGN Group), and subsequently as
the head of the development planning division of the CGNPC, the
secretary general of the financial and economic affairs committee,
the director of the research centre, the general manager of the
strategic planning department of CGNPC, and served as the general
manager of CGNPC-URC since September 2009. Mr. Yu graduated
with a bachelor degree in engineering mechanics from Huazhong
University of Science & Technology in 1985. Mr. Yu has over 26 years
of experience in corporate management and nuclear fuel system
operation.
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Executive Director

Mr. Xing Jianhua (“Mr. Xing”), aged 46, was appointed as an ED
of the Company on 25 June 2015. Mr. Xing is also the chief financial
officer of the Company. Mr. Xing is also a director of Semizbay-U, a
non-executive director of Energy Metals Limited (a listed company in
Australia, stock code: EME), a non-executive director of Fission and
deputy general manager and the chief accountant of CGNPC-URC.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xing has served as the deputy
head and technician of the Miners Bridge area of Yinggangling Mining
Bureau of Jiangxi province, the section head of the finance department
of Changsha Research Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, general
manager of the finance department of China Potevio* (B & X (5 &
E 3% [BE)) and general manager of the finance department of CGNPC.
Mr. Xing graduated from Hunan Xiangtan Mining Institute* (H:Z &%
E2p7) with a bachelor of engineering degree in mining engineering in
1995; and obtained a master of management degree in accounting
from Wuhan University of Technology in 2002 and Mr. Xing is a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Xing has over 22 years of experience
in mining, financial management, acquisition and capital operation.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Chunfa (“Mr. Fang”), aged 47, was appointed as a NED
of the Company on 29 June 2016. Mr. Fang is currently a general
manager of the strategic planning department of CGNPC and CGN
Power Co., Ltd.* (FEIEZE HRMHBERAF]) (‘CGN Power”, listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1816). Mr. Fang
joined Guangdong Nuclear Power Joint Venture Company Limited*
(BRZEBEALAERAT) in June 1993 and he served successively
as the secretary to the board of directors, the deputy manager of
the administration department and the manager of the operation
management department at Daya Bay Nuclear Power Operations &
Management Company Limited* (KZz iz EEL SR AR ETAT)
from March 2003 to August 2011. Mr Fang served as the director of
the research center of CGNPC from August 2011 to May 2014. He
also served as the secretary of the board of directors and the company
secretary of CGN Power from March 2014 to March 2016 and from
April 2014 to March 2016 respectively. Moreover, Mr. Fang has served
as a director of China General Nuclear Capital Holdings Co. Ltd.* (&
B A A ERR AR A 7)) since March 2016. Mr. Fang graduated from
Beijing Foreign Studies Institute (1t 54 MBIFEE2FR) with major in English
language in July 1989, and obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Huazhong University of Science and Technology
(FEAFRRERAE) in June 2009. Mr. Fang was accredited as a senior
engineer by CGNPC in December 2003.

Mr. Liu Mingdong (“Mr. Liu”), aged 47, was appointed as a NED
of the Company on 23 March 2017. Mr. Liu is currently the board
chairman and deputy secretary of the party committee, member
of the strategic committee and nomination committee of Hainan
Mining, an executive director of Xinmao, a director of Hainan Fuxin
Titanim Industry Co., Ltd* (8= ZXEHFRR A F]), and the board
chairman of Hainan Xian Dai Construction Parts Co., Ltd. (8 IR
EEEER AR A E]). Mr. Liu served various positions including head
of planning division, head of financial planning department, assistant
general manager and deputy general manager of Hainan Iron and
Steel Company* (G ##g 2 &) from 2000 to 2007. After that, Mr.
Liu served as director, general manager and deputy secretary of the
party committee of Hainan Mining United Co., Ltd.* (GRE¥EEA
[£ -~ |]) from 2007 to 2010 and acted as managing director of Hainan
Mining from 2010 to 2016. Mr. Liu obtained a postgraduate degree
in engineering management from University of Science & Technology
Beijing in April 1996.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Wu Junfeng (“Mr. Wu”), aged 43, was appointed as a NED of the
Company on 29 June 2016. Mr. Wu is currently a general manager
of the asset operations department of CGNPC and CGN Power, a
general manager of Guangzhou Nuclear Power Investment Co., Ltd*
(EEZBIREABMRAT), an executive director of Shenzhen Neng
Zhi Hui Investment Co., Ltd.* (&YI|THEE 2 EAPR A7) and a non-
executive director of CGN New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (listed in the
main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1811). Mr. Wu joined
the audit department of CGNPC in July 2000. He successively served
positions including the manager of integrated department (474 #5) of
Shenzhen Daya Bay Commercial Investment and Management Co.
Limited* (YT AT/ &R % E IR AR AR), the deputy director
of the accounting department of China Nuclear Power Engineering
Co., Ltd.* (FEZITIZHERAF]), the general accountant of China
Technology Co., Ltd.* JtREFZZLLIZEAR A F), the assistant
general manager of the finance department of CGNPC and the general
accountant of Yangjiang Nuclear Power Co., Ltd.* (5T EER
72\]) from November 2002 to May 2016. Mr. Wu graduated from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (78 B & K E2)
in 1995 with major in statistics and obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
science. In 2000 and 2009, he obtained a master of management
degree in accounting and a doctorate of management degree in
accounting from Southwestern University of Finance and Economics.
Mr. Wu possess the qualification as a certified public accountant in the
PRC.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Qiu Xianhong (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 54, was appointed as an INED of
the Company on 18 August 2011. He is a Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC. Mr. Qiu is a partner of Beijing QQCPA Accounting Firm.
Mr. Qiu is also a finance consultant to China Institute of Strategy and
Management. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Qiu was the deputy
head of the financial department and asset management department
of China National Packaging Corporation, and the deputy director of
the financial department of China Patent Bureau. Mr. Qiu graduated
with a bachelor degree in financial accounting from Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics. Mr. Qiu has over 29 years of experience in
financial accounting, financial management and auditing.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Gao Pei Ji (‘Mr. Gao”), aged 70, was appointed as an INED of the
Company on 22 August 2014. Mr. Gao also serves as an independent
non-executive director of CITIC Resources Holdings Limited (listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1205). Mr.
Gao was a deputy director of C & C Law Office in Beijing between
1984 and 1993. Mr. Gao became a partner of Clifford Chance, a
leading international law firm, between 1993 and 2007. Following
his retirement in 2007, he became a PRC legal consultant to Clifford
Chance, Hong Kong office. Mr. Gao has extensive and diversified
experience in a broad area of legal practices, including banking and
finance, direct investment (both inbound and outbound from the
perspective of the PRC) in the areas of energy, natural resource and
petrochemical projects. Mr. Gao has been involved in the development
of nuclear power projects since 1985, including the development of
Daya Bay nuclear power project, the incorporation of the operating
company for Daya Bay and Lingao nuclear power plants and the
development of the Taishan nuclear power project (applying third
generation technology). Mr. Gao holds a LLM degree from the Law
School of University of California, Berkeley. He has been admitted to
practice law in the PRC since 1984.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (“Mr. Lee”), aged 49, was appointed as
an INED of the Company on 22 August 2014. Mr. Lee has been a a
certified practising accountant of the CPA Australia since 1996 and
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 1999. He has possessed over 24 years of
experience with unlisted groups, listed groups and professional firms in
finance, accounting and auditing. Mr. Lee is currently an independent
non-executive director of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (listed on
the growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1538) and Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd. (listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8292). Mr. Lee graduated with a
bachelor of economics degree from Macquarie University in Australia
in 1992.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cai Yusheng (“Mr. Cai”), aged 49, is the vice president of the
Company and the vice general manager of CGNPC-URC. Mr. Cai was
appointed as the vice president of the Company on 5 December 2013.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Cai has served as the deputy director
of the Nuclear Fuel Bureau of China National Nuclear Corporation,
project manager of the international division of Taisei Corporation,
project manager of the international division of Bechtel Group, general
manager of Beijing Qing Da Zheng Yuan Environmental Engineering
Co., Ltd* (tRBAERERE LIERMAR A 7). He graduated
from Tsinghua University with a bachelor of engineering degree in
engineering management in 1990 and got a master of engineering
degree in civil engineering from University of Tokyo in 1998. Mr. Cai
possesses 26 years of extensive project management experience and
in-depth knowledge in the nuclear fuel industry.

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (“Ms. Zheng”), aged 50, is the joint company
secretary and general counsel of the Company and the board secretary
and general counsel of CGNPC-URC. Ms. Zheng was appointed as
the general counsel of the Company on 15 April 2014 and selected
as the joint company secretary on 1 June 2014. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Zheng has served as the project manager of the Hong
Kong High Technology Development Management Company Limited*
(BFAIRBEERESIEAR 2R, investment planning manager
of the development planning department of CGNPC, manager of
the planning and finance department, financial representative and
secretary of the Board of Galaxy Captek. Ms. Zheng graduated from
Zhejiang University with a bachelor of engineering degree in industrial
automation in 1988 and obtained a master of science degree in
science and technology information from China Defense Science and
Technology Information Center in 1992; Ms. Zheng possesses the
qualification certificate for accounting of the PRC and the Enterprise
Legal Adviser Qualification Certificate of the PRC* (/b B {2 A 2 B[]
HEEK). Ms. Zheng has 20 years of experience in project investment
and financial management, 15 years of experience in corporate
governance and 10 years of experience in management of legal affairs.
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Mr. He Fei (“Mr. He”), aged 40, is the president assistant of the
Company and the general manager assistant of CGNPC-URC. Mr.
He was appointed as the president assistant of the Company on 22
August 2014. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. He held a position in
the department of international cooperation of the State Commission
of Science, Technology and Industry for National Defence, and was
then appointed to the French Atomic Energy Commission; and served
successively as the secretary of the general manager department
of the general office, secretary to the chairman of the board of the
secretariat, senior manager for business of Beijing business unit and
director of the business liaison office of the general office of CGNPC.
Mr. He graduated from the International Relations College with a
bachelor of arts degree in English in 2000 and obtained a master of law
degree in civil and commercial law from Renmin University of China in
2009. Mr. He has worked in the nuclear power industry for an extensive
period and developed extensive understanding of the domestic
and international nuclear power industry, and has rich corporate
management experience.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors, including the chairman and the chief executive officer, are
required to retire from office by rotation once every three years and are
subject to re-election by shareholders at the annual general meeting
in accordance with the Articles of Association and the Corporate
Governance Code. The Articles of Association provides details in
relation to the procedures of election and appointment of the Directors.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any further re-appointment
of an INED who has served the Board for more than 9 years will be
subject to separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Besides, pursuant to article 112 of the Articles of Association, Directors
appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
general meeting after their appointment, and shall be subject to re-
election by shareholders.

All Directors will sign director service agreement with the Company
immediately after their appointment for an initial term of two years
and subject to retirement and re-election of at least once every three
years. The contract sets out the details of the duties and obligations
of Directors. All Directors understand they have joint responsibility
towards all shareholders in terms of the operation, business and
development of the Company. They are required to fulfill Directors’
duties according to the director service contract and relevant laws and
regulations. All Directors confirm that they provide sufficient time and
effort in company affairs, express their views cautiously and diligently
and fulfill their Directors’ duties.

Directors’ Interests

As recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of part XV of the SFO, none of the Directors held any shares of the
Company or associated corporations as at 31 December 2016.
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Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors will receive an introduction package related
to the laws in relation to Directors of a listed company and their duties,
which covers the statutory and regulatory obligations of a Director.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5, Directors should participate in
continuous professional development training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Company encourages all Directors to
participate in continuous professional development to ensure better
fulfillment of Directors’ duties and contribution to the Company’s
development. During the reporting period, all Directors participated in
continuous professional development by attending internal training,
seminar or forum. Furthermore, attending training seminars or reading
materials is also beneficial to continuous professional development.

In 2016, a summary of training taken by the Directors is set out as
follows:

Directors =

EDs HITES

Yu Zhiping RETFEE
Xing Jianhua ERERSE
NEDs FHITES
Zhou Zhenxing BRI S
Fang Chunfa FEERAE

Wu Junfeng RBIESLE
INEDs BIFHITES
Qiu Xianhong Ef Sk A
Gao Pei Ji SEESE

Lee Kwok Tung Louis RIS E
a: Attendance in person: On 17 November 2016, the Company held a

training session for Directors, which covered the governance structure
of Hong Kong listed companies and the latest regulatory requirements,
the status and trend of nuclear energy development, the status and
trend of disposal of spent fuel.

b: Reading training materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and obligations.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
should be in charge by different persons. During the reporting period,
the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company were held by Mr. Zhou Zhenxing and Mr. Yu Zhiping,
respectively. The chairman of the Board is responsible for ensuring
that the Board is functioning properly, with good corporate governance
practices and procedures, whereas the chief executive officer,
supported by the EDs and the management team, is responsible for
managing the Group’s businesses, including the implementation of
major strategies and measures adopted by the Board.

NEDS

NEDs, including INEDs, are experienced individuals from different
industries and backgrounds. At least one of them possesses
the appropriate accounting qualifications and related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules. Based on
the expertise and experience of each of the Director, the Directors
provide independent judgment and advice on the Company’s
management. The number of NEDs representing more than half of
the Board members, which helps the Company to make objective
and independent judgment and decision. The advice of NEDs shall be
considered as major advice, in case where the conflicts of interest of
related matters arises. The fixed initial term for NEDs is 2 years, and
continue thereafter, the expiration of 2 years, the Company and NED
himself could by notice in writing terminate the employment according
to the relevant terms in the Director’s service agreement.

Each INED has made an annual confirmation of independence in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that, all INEDs meet the independent guidelines as set out in rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and that they are independent.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Zheng Xiaowei (“Ms. Zheng”) has been appointed as joint company
secretary since 1 June 2014. In the meantime, in accordance with
the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company appointed Ms. Lai
Siu Kuen (“Ms. Lai”) of KCS Hong Kong Limited, as the joint company
secretary, to assist the work of Ms. Zheng. The role of the company
secretary is to support the chairman of the Board, the Board and
relevant committees, to ensure smooth communications and timely
transmission of information. At the same time, the company secretary
plays an important role such as to ensure the Board meetings
are convened in accordance with laws and regulations, and the
Board’s decisions are executed correctly. The company secretary
is an important communication bridge between the Company and
shareholders, it also assists the Board to perform the responsibility
to shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules. The primary
contact person in the Company is Ms. Zheng, one of the joint company
secretaries of the Company.

In accordance with the rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Zheng and
Ms. Lai have received no less than 15 hours professional training for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD PROCESS AND ATTENDANCE OF
MEETINGS

There are at least 4 regular Board meetings held every year, and
a special Board meeting is convened when necessary. In addition
to acting by written resolutions, Directors participated in the
meetings either in person, by proxy or through electronic means of
communications. Board members have full access to the business
development of the Company at the meetings at regular interval.

At least 14 days’ notices of all regular Board meetings were given to
all Directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for discussion. The finalised agenda and accompanying board
papers were sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were altogether nine
(9) Board meetings held by the Company. The attendance of each
Director at the Board meeting and relevant committee meetings are as
follows:
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HERE ERETAH

Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Position Meeting Committee Committee Committee

Rz Eze ENZEE yMzEg REZEE

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing Chairman of the Board and NED and chairman 6/9 212
kAL of the nomination committee

ESRIRRFUTES RLZBEIR

Mr. Yu Zhiping ED and member of the nomination committee 6/9 01 1/2
FEFEE and remuneration committee

HiTEZ RHZEEZR FMZEEZE

Mr. Xing Jianhua ED and member of the remuneration committee 99 11
FRERE H7ES  HFMEREZRR
Mr. Chen Qiming (resigned NED 34

on 29 June 2016) IHITER
REHAEE

(201656 7 20 HEHE)
Mr. Yin Engang (resigned NED and member of the audit committee 4/4 2/3

on 29 June 2016) FNTESRERZELZE
FRAIGE

(1201646 A 29 A EHE)
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Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HERE, ERETAH

Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Position Meeting Committee Committee Committee
Rz Eze ENZEE yMzEg REZEE
Mr. Fang Chunfa (appointed NED and member of the audit committee 2/5 212
on 29 June 2016) FHTEF EREEEZE
hRERE

(R2016%6 20 BEEH)

Mr. Wu Junfeng (appointed NED 2/5
on 29 June 2016) FHITES
RLBEE

(201656 A20REZ)

Mr. Qiu Xianhong INED, chairman of the audit committee and 99 5/5 11 2/2
il s e the remuneration committee and member
of the nomination committee
BUFHTEE BREEQIR FMZES
TERREEZERZE
Mr. Gao Pei Ji INED, member of the remuneration committee 99 il 212
REERE and the nomination commitiee

BUFHITES FMZREZERREZREZE

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis INED, member of the audit committee, the remuneration ~ 9/9 5/5 11 2/2
FEREE committee and the nomination committee
BUINTES  BHZBEZE  TMZE8ZE
RkiFEZEE%E
* At the specified Board meetings for reviewing connected transactions * 201610 183H K12 A13H BFAMERE
held on 13 October and 13 December 2016, Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, Mr. Yu EEeATHABBRECHEE  AMAE
Zhiping, Mr. Fang Chunfa and Mr. Wu Junfeng were required to abstain Ee - FAIREALEE REFEE  HHEL
from voting, but they may attend the meetings at their discretions. ERREEFEHTFERREEA  BARHER

BHEEH -
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder
or a Director arise, the matter would be considered and approved in a
physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Other Directors and INEDs with no material conflict of interest would be
present at meetings dealing with such conflict.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of potential legal action against Directors.

DELEGATION AND WORK DONE BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership and oversees the Group’s business
management, strategic decisions, performance and affairs.

The Board has formulated a clear written policy that delineates matters
reserved for Board approval of the Group. The reserved matters
include, among other things:

1. the development strategy and planning;

2. corporate policies;

3. financial planning;

4, investment planning;

5. annual budget;

6. major disposals and acquisitions;

7. major connected transactions;

8. appointment and resignation of Directors, company secretary

and other senior management;

9. other significant operational and financial matters.
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In addition to work relating to corporate governance function, other
major work performed by the Board during the year ended 31
December 2016 includes:

1. approving the 2016 business plan and budget planning;

2. approving the Directors’ report, audited financial statements
and auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December 2016;

3. approving the unaudited interim results for the period ended 30
June 2016;

4. proposing the re-election of Directors and the authority of the
Board to fix the remuneration of the Directors to be approved
at the 2016 AGM,;

5. proposing the share issue and repurchase general mandate to

be approved at the 2016 AGM,;

6. proposing the re-appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited as the auditors of the Company and the authority of
the Board to fix the auditor remuneration to be approved at the
2016 AGM,;

7. approving the subscription agreement and the underwriting
agreement of natural uranium products entered into between
the Company and Fission and obtaining the written approval
from the controlling shareholder;

8. as required by China Uranium Development in respect of
the exercise of its conversion rights of the convertible bonds
in an amount of HK$300,000,000, approving the issue of
1,304,347,826 conversion shares;

CGN Mining Company Limited
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9. approving the resignation of Mr. Chen Qiming as a NED, the
resignation of Mr. Yin Engang as a NED and member of the
audit committee, the appointment of Mr. Wu Junfeng as a
NED and the appointment of Mr. Fang Chunfa as a NED and
member of the audit committee;

10. approving the Mining Principles Agreement and its
supplemental agreement entered into between the Company
and Kazatoprom;

11. approving the New Natural Uranium Sales Framework
Agreement entered into between the Company and CGNPC-
URC and submitting the agreement for approval at the EGM;

12. approving the New Financial Service Framework Agreement
entered into between the Company and CGNPC Huasheng
and submitting the agreement for approval at the EGM,;

13. approving the subscription agreement entered into between
the Company and Hong Kong Xinmao and approving the issue
of 659,400,000 ordinary shares.

The day-to-day operation and management of the Group is delegated
to the senior management. Certain authorities are also granted to
relevant Board committee, the granted authorities and responsibilities
are reviewed by the Board from time to time.

BOARD COMMITTEES

There are three committees under the Board of the Company,
which are audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, respectively, with its terms of reference established. Each
specific committee performs on specific area, provides comments and
recommendations to the Board for consideration.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company is delegated by the Board to
exercise its specific rights within the ambit of the terms of reference.

During the reporting period, the audit committee of the Company
comprised one NED, namely Mr. Yin Engang (resigned on 29 June
2016)/Mr. Fang Chunfa (appointed on 29 June 2016), and 2 INEDs,
namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong (Chairman) and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis.

The function of the audit committee is basically to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems
of the Group, and oversee the audit process. The audit committee
also serves as a focal point for communication, among Directors, the
external auditors, and the management as regards financial reporting,
internal control and the auditing.

Major work performed by the audit committee during the year ended
31 December 2016 includes:

1. assessing the independence and objectivity of external
auditors;

2. reviewing the internal control and risk management systems of
the Company;

3. reviewing the audited annual results for the year ended 31

December 2015; and

4. reviewing the unaudited interim results for the period ended 30
June 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board had no
disagreement with the audit committee’s view on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee is delegated by the Board to exercise its
specific rights within the ambit of the terms of reference.

During the reporting period, the remuneration committee of the
Company comprised two EDs, namely Mr. Yu Zhiping and Mr. Xing
Jianhua, and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Qiu Xianhong (chairman), Mr.
Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis.

The function of the remuneration committee is basically to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of all remuneration of EDs, NEDs and senior management and review
the remuneration packages of the EDs and senior management with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives.

Major work performed by the remuneration committee during the year
ended 31 December 2016 includes:

1. reviewing the management’s remuneration packages for the
year 2016, with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
formulated by the Board; and

2. making recommendations to the Board as to the remuneration
packages of individual ED and senior management for the year
2016.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding the Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

FigE (B )
0-1,000,000
1,000,000-1,500,000

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest
paid individuals are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

T A=t

FHESE
HWZ B e E FLRERENT ST
R -

RIEER - ARFIFMEESHMEH
TTi%%u?f‘ﬁi&#ﬁi%ﬁEi ; JJ/USZE
BB IEMITE SRR A (/E) -
BEEARFRR AR -

FZEenBERRARNTES 3k
WITEEMRAEEENFTMER MRS
MEFSRLER  W2ERRATHKE
BRI ERNTEE RS REIEE N H M
Ha -

HE2016 F12 A31 BILFE  HFHEE
ENFBIERHRE -

1. REEERIUHATSHRAR
#2016 EERBHMES ;

2 MEERH2016FERNGTES
BREREHFWES LR
=

BRIECEEATHEBASE  SRER
EXKE(TEEES)NEZE2016F 12 A
31BUEFENFESFMETISBER

Number of individuals

AB

%%&ﬁ% =AM SRS - &
RER B M FERRMEET ©

Annual Report 2016
ZE—NFFR

81



82

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee is delegated by the Board to exercise its
specific rights within the ambit of terms of reference.

During the reporting period, the nomination committee of the Company
comprised one NED, namely Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (chairman), one ED,
namely Mr. Yu Zhiping and three INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu Xianhong,
Mr. Gao Pei Ji and Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis.

The function of the nomination committee is basically to review and
formulate the nomination procedure as regards the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of Directors; review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations or
any proposed changes to the Board to implement the corporate
strategy; and make recommendation to the Board on candidates for
appointment as Directors. The nomination committee follows rigorous
selection procedure in choosing the right person as a member of the
Board. Various criteria such as appropriate professional knowledge,
experience, skills and possible contribution of the candidate will be
considered.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, major work performed by the
nomination committee includes:

1. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. reviewing the terms of reference of the nomination committee
and their effectiveness in the discharge of their duties and

considering the need for any changes;

3. making recommendations to the Board as to nomination of
directors for re-election at the 2016 AGM,;

4. making recommendations to the Board as to the change of the
Board and Board committee members;

5. making recommendations to the Board as to the re-designation
of Directors; and

6. assessing the independence of INEDs.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the “Board Diversity Policy”. The Company
recognises the merits of Board diversity and sees the edge of
Board diversity in driving competitiveness. In making up the Board’s
composition, the Board considers various skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other attributes of the Board
members. All Board appointments are based on the talent, skill and
experience of the individual, as well as gender diversity, so as to meet
the operational needs.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the HKFRSs have been adopted, appropriate accounting
policies have been used and applied consistently, and reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates have been made. The Board is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The Company’s auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited acknowledged
its reporting responsibilities pursuant to the Corporate Governance
Code. The auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the independent
auditor’s report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for setting up and maintaining
effective risk management and internal control systems and for
reviewing its effectiveness, to safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders’ interest. The management of the Company at each level
assesses and reports on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by performing reviews and
testing. Internal control department reports to the audit committee
once a year on key findings regarding risk management and internal
controls. Audit committee, in turn, communicates any material issues
regarding risk management and internal control systems to the Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the audit committee
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems, and no serious deficiencies were identified.
Therefore, the Board considered that the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are effective, and complied with the
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.

Comprehensive risk management

In 2016, the Company was committed to perfecting its comprehensive
risk management system. With reference to relevant risk management
requirements of the “Risk Management — Principles and Guidelines” of
ISO31000:2009 standard and the Corporate Governance Code and
the Corporate Governance Report published by the Stock Exchange,
the Company effectively identified, tracked and controlled the risks. It
also set up a comprehensive risk management mechanism and formed
a Comprehensive Risk Management Policy. Such system defined the
contents and requirements regarding risk management responsibility
system, risk management flow, business risk classification and risk
reporting mechanism. The Board, management, the risk management
department were responsible for their relevant duties within risk
management and reviewed on the implementation of risk management
once a year to ensure the efficient operation of the system. Meanwhile,
the Company classified the risks into three levels, namely major
operating risk, specific risk (including project investment risk) and
general risk, and established different management process for those
risks separately.

Internal audit

In 2016, according to the internal audit plan approved by the Board,
the audit department carried out a series of audit work including:
intermediaries (mainly refer to professional agents) service contract
audit, financial management audit and risk management evaluation.
Through the above audit programs, the department identified 13
audit problems, proposed 16 audit recommendations and launched
7 reforming plans. Through regularly implementing specific audit
measures and regularly providing management advices every year,
the Company is able to prevent from and control the potential risks in
relevant sectors and its management, also, shows its effectiveness of
internal audit in risk prevention and internal control, which ensures that
the Company’s operation complies with laws and regulations.
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Disclosure of inside information

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the information disclosure policy which
contains the detailed procedures to ensure that inside information
could be identified timely and remain confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is effectively and consistently made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid by the
Company to the auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, is set
out as follows:

Services rendered FriR it BR 7%
Audit services ENZIRTS
Non-audit services eI RS

The significant amount of fee incurred for non-audit services arose
from (i) the review of interim financial statements for six months ended
30 June 2016 and (i) the preparation of cash flow projections comfort
letter for the purpose of the circular dated 9 December 2016 issued
in connection with the major and continuing connected transaction in
relation to New Natural Uranium Sales Framework Agreement and New
Financial Service Framework Agreement.

SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETING

In order to ensure that all shareholders of the Company enjoy equal
status and effective exercise of their own rights, the Company
convenes general meetings every year in accordance with the Articles
of Association. During the year 2016, two (2) general meetings were
held, namely the annual general meeting held on 19 May 2016 and
the extraordinary general meeting held on 29 December 2016. The
attendance of each director at the annual general meeting is set out as
follows:
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Number of meetings attended/

Number of meetings held

HERE,SRETRE

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing [R5 A 1/2
Mr. Yu Zhiping REFEE 2/2
Mr. Xing Jianhua FERELE 172
Mr. Chen Qiming (resigned on 29 June 2016)  FRERBASEA4 (A 2016 4F 6 A 29 HEHE) 0/1
Mr. Yin Engang (resigned on 29 June 2016)  F B[4 (A 201646 A 29 HEHT) 11
Mr. Fang Chunfa (appointed on 29 June 2016) 7 &AS LA (R 201646 A 29 HET) 0/1
Mr. Wu Junfeng (appointed on 29 June 2016) R{&I&5E4 (A 201646 A 29 HZE(E) 0/1
Mr. Qiu Xianhong ERSE St A 2/2
Mr. Gao Pei Ji EIRESLE 1/2
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis FRIR AL 2/2

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, on the requisition
of one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up share
capital of the Company having the right to vote at general meetings, the
directors are obliged to proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
and deposited at the registered office of the Company in Cayman
Islands and/or the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong. The requisitionists must state the purposes of the meeting and
sign the requisition letter.

If the Directors do not convene a meeting within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may convene a meeting, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
may be made in writing and sent to the attention of the joint company
secretary, Ms. Zheng Xiaowei, in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CGN Mining Company Limited
Rm 1903, 19/F., China Resources Building
No. 26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2. By facsimile: (852) 2116 4031

3. By email: ir.cgnmc@cgnpc.com.cn

Voting by poll

Pursuant to rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules and article 72 of the Articles
of Association, any votes of the shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll, except where the chairman decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter
to be voted by a show of hands.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a general
meeting shall follow the procedures below:

On the requisition in writing of either: i) any number of shareholder of
the Company representing not less than one-fortieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or ii) not
less than 50 shareholders, the Company shall, at the expense of the
requisitionists:

a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be proposed and is intended to be
proposed at that meeting;

b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one
thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.
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The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands and/or
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the joint company secretary not less than 6 weeks before
the general meeting, and in case of a requisition requires notice of a
resolution, not less than 1 week before the general meeting for any
other requisition.

Change in Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there is no significant
change in constitutional documents of the Company.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SCOPE OF REPORT

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the operation which could
cause material effect to the environment and society of the Group
is coming from the mining activities in relation to Semizbay-U. This
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report covers the
operating sites of the CGN Mining in Kazakhstan for the year ended
31 December 2016, and its contents are mainly about the Semizbay-U
and the Semizbay Mine and Irkol Mine (hereinafter “mine”), of which
CGN Mining holds a 49% equity interest. The reporting period is for the
year ended 31 December 2016, which is the same as the period for the
annual report of the Company. Unless stated otherwise, the definition
used in this report carries the same meaning as listed in the Definitions.

This report has been drafted according to Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules, namely the “ESG Reporting Guide”. It is the Company’s first
ESG report drafted in compliance with these guidelines, and provides
general disclosure regarding the requirement “to give an explanation in
the event of non-compliance” contained in those guidelines.

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

As a listed company, CGN Mining discloses its information regarding
business operations and progress in projects, etc., and posted on
the Company’s website www.cgnmc.com and the Stock Exchange’s
designated website for information disclosure (HKEX news: www.
hkexnews.hk). All disclosures are prepared and published in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Furthermore,
upon receiving an inquiry from investors, the Company will promptly
contact the investors, assist them in understanding the Company’s
operating information, and answer the investors’ questions by
inviting them to visit the Company in person or through a telephone
conference, etc. Concurrently, the Company will, from time to time,
organize roadshows in the form of performance presentation meetings,
etc., to which it will invite some investors or potential investors and
analysts, in order to present the Company’s latest news.
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A ENVIRONMENTAL

A1

Emissions

The uranium mine of Semizbay-U in Kazakhstan mainly
provides natural uranium used in the downstream
production of clean energy. The scope of business is
closely related to the environment, and the mine also
concerned significantly about its operating process which
may affect the environment, as well as to aim at improving
the environment. From year 2015, the mine was granted
an emission permit from the Kazakhstan government’s
environmental authority, and was able to meet the
emission standards stipulated in its regulations and the
law. Semizbay-U has also implemented a series of actions,
including regular measurements of greenhouse gas
emissions to ensure compliance with emission standards,
and long-term monitoring of the airtightness of equipment
and ventilation systems to prevent leakage from emission
gas pipes that would affect the employees working in the
facilities.

After processing, domestic sewage is recycled and reused
in various water usage sections in the mine, which helps
in water conservation and reducing sewage. Following
chlorination, the domestic sewage of the uranium mine
hydrometallurgy workshop is transported through plastic
pipes to a biological purification pool for purification. When
the sewage has been purified, it is reused in the production
area and base camp, for example to irrigate greening
facilities, clean tank trucks that transport commercial
stripping liquid, make leaching solutions, etc. The disposal
of general waste in the mine has also been effectively
controlled, waste separation facilities have been provided
for separating plastic, glass, and metals waste for recycling
purpose. Concurrently, Semizbay-U has signed agreement
with the office accommodation service provider, which will
provide timely recycling of used printer cartridges in order
to reduce the generation of hazardous waste.
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With regards to its purchasing system, Semizbay-U has
made clear that it will primarily use products provided
by Kazakhstan suppliers included in the list of national
suppliers published by the Sovereign Wealth Fund. As for
the maintenance activity of the equipment in the mine,
Semizbay-U requires the service providers to implement
on-site maintenance to the greatest possible extent, in
order to reduce the need for Semizbay-U employees
to travel, as well as the need to transport the involved
instruments. All these measures help to reduce overall
carbon emissions into the environment.

Semizbay-U strictly abides by the relevant Environmental
Protection Laws of Kazakhstan, and there have been
no cases where the company has been prosecuted for
violation of any laws related to environmental protection
within the reporting period.

Use of Resources

In addition to controlling the sources of pollution during
the production process, the efficient use of resources
in the mine can minimize the damage caused to the
environment and increase the resource use efficiency. In
the process of uranium mining, leaching liquid plays an
important role in extraction of uranium. In the mine, all the
solid waste containing iron would be collected and put in
leaching liquid pools to increase the quantity of ferrous and
ferric iron, thereby abetting the leaching of underground
uranium, so as to improve the resource efficiency and
increase the output.

The industrial sewage generated in the mine’s
hydrometallurgy workshop, the cleaning sewage, and the
sewage from cleaning receptacles containing chemical
products and from commercial stripping liquid tank trucks,
etc., is all recovered, recycled and allocated to leaching
liquid stations, and directly returned to the in-situ leaching
industrial mining flow process, in order to achieve efficient
use of water resources. Furthermore, energy and water
conservation is widely promoted in the mine, including
signs posted near washbasins to remind employees to
conserve water.
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HEREARE

The Environment and Natural Resources

In order to reduce the environmental impact from
Semizbay-U’s uranium mining operations, Semizbay-U
has aggressively adopted innovative technology for the
recycling of waste so as to reduce emission. Semizbay-U
conducts central collection of the sewage from both its
uranium mining area workshop and the mining base camp,
and transports the sewage to the biological purification
station through underground pipes. After purification and
disinfection, the sewage is then sent to the leaching liquid
pool in order to abet the recycling process. Semizbay-U
also proactively looks into the emission of greenhouse
gases. In 2015, it began to use solar heat exchanger to
comprehensively replace fossil fuels for indoor heating,
using advanced technology to reduce fuel consumption,
wastage of natural resources and the environmental
damage caused by the emission of greenhouse gases.

Semizbay-U pursues the local policy of a green economy,
and prioritizes the purchase of energy-saving raw
materials. Furthermore, after the mining work has been
finished, the company will replant the area in order to
restore the original environment to the greatest possible
extent and reduce environmental damage.

Regarding the hazardous waste generated in the mine,
such as used oil, used batteries, drilling fluid, etc.,
Semizbay-U has contracted the eligible processing
company to handle the recycling. Other than ensuring the
handling process complies the legal requirement, it helps
encourage wastage recycling. With regards to the used
iron plates, used containers, used tires, and other such
waste generated during the mining production process,
these are turned into flower pots and other such things in
order to beautify and green the mine.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Semizbay-U also understands the importance of education
in promoting environmental issues. By organizing regular
training and examinations in environmental matters for
the employees, the company is able to deepen and
disseminate various aspects of environmental awareness
among its employees. Furthermore, the company
constantly encourages its employees to reduce office
waste material, and strives to improve the employees’
environmental awareness.

B SOCIAL

B1

Employment

Semizbay-U consistently upholds the policy of equality
of its employees. When hiring employees, it treats all
applicants according to the principles of fairness and
equality. Concurrently, Semizbay-U follows the guidance of
relevant authority of Kazakhstan regarding hiring practices.
They do not set any restrictions on male to female ratio,
and do not limit the ethnic or cultural background of
their employees, and advocates a policy of employee
diversification and anti-discrimination. When promoting
employees, the main considerations are the employee’s
work ability and their contributions to the company.

Employees are the driving force behind the company’s
continued operations. Semizbay-U provides various
benefits at different levels for employees, and strives to
make the employees feel the company’s appreciation.
Semizbay-U clearly lists numerous benefits, such as
social insurance and medical insurance, in its employment
contracts, and also includes benefits to cover other
aspects of life, such as holiday expenses, etc. Semizbay-U
also pays particular attention to the needs of female
employees, and provides female employees with up
to 3 years maternal leave, as well as maternal leave
compensation.

In strict abidance with the labour laws of Kazakhstan,
Semizbay-U provides full-time employees with one
month’s paid annual leave, and the company’s
compensation for dismissal and retirement are both paid
according to the relevant labour laws.
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Semizbay-U consistently and strictly abides by the relevant
employment laws, and there have been no cases of
prosecution due to any violation of the relevant laws during
the reporting period.

Health and Safety

For companies engaged in mining, the safety of the
employees during the mining operations is extremely
important. The guiding principle of Semizbay-U in
managing the safety and health of its employees is to take
preventive measures. Semizbay-U focuses much on the
analysis of the working environment and the evaluation of
the risks in the mine in order to assess the level of potential
risk, and takes actions to remove potential dangers that
have been identified so as to protect the safety and health
of employees. During the inspection process, Semizbay-U
rectifies those operating conditions that are not fulfilling
the safety and occupational health rules, to avoid the
employees encountering any potential health and safety
problems, and to alert the employees to observe the
safety rules by working in the mine. Semizbay-U has
established internal preventive measures on health and
safety, and reminded the risks for potential work injuries or
occupational ilinesses. As a corporate social responsible
firm, Semizbay-U cares about fulfilling its health and
safety obligations in accordance with the articles of the
contractual agreement signed with its employees.

The company’s primary responsibility during mining
operations is to ensure the employees’ safety. Semizbay-U
provides appropriate personal protective equipment to
the employees with potential health and safety hazards in
their work, including masks that protect against dust and
hazardous gases, safety harnesses for working at height,
special acid-resistant work wear, gloves, glasses, etc.
Concurrently, in order to maintain the effectiveness and
adequate supply of the protective equipment, Semizbay-U
organizes regular purchasing and maintenance of the
employees’ work wear, work shoes, and other personal
protection equipment. It also conducts regular operational
testing of the relevant equipment, vehicles, and machines,
and strictly executes its testing plan for potential dangers.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Semizbay-U also takes a stringent view on the monitoring
of the occupational safety and health of its contractors,
and requires the contractors to provide their employees
with the appropriate protective equipment, and to establish
isolation zones in dangerous areas. The contractors must
also provide training in safe operations and inform their
employees about risks.

Semizbay-U strictly abides by the relevant safety laws,
and there have been no cases of prosecution due to any
violation of the relevant occupational safety laws during the
reporting period.

Development and Training

Enhancing the employees’ technical skills and knowledge,
as well as providing training, are very important for
the company’s sustainable development. Semizbay-U
provides employees with regular training on technical skill,
including courses in engineering design and the application
of instruments and software, in order to enhance the skills
of its employees. Semizbay-U also arranges language
training, including English and Kazakh for employees
whose mother tongue is non-Kazakh, in order to improve
their language and communication skills.

In addition to provide class-style training courses,
Semizbay-U also arranges annual winter and summer
camp study programs, through various activities,
employees can learn about lean production and the key
factors for lowering production costs and improving
production efficiency.

Labour Standards

Semizbay-U consistently upholds the principle of strict
abidance with the local labour laws of Kazakhstan in order
to operate in accordance with the law and demonstrate the
importance that it attaches to the rights of each individual
employee.
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Semizbay-U abides by local labour laws, and prohibits
the employment of child labour. Semizbay-U also strictly
abides by the requirements of the local labour laws in
preventing forced labour, and makes appropriate and
reasonable arrangements for the employees’ working
hours and workload.

There have been no cases of child labour or forced labour
at Semizbay-U within the reporting period.

Supply Chain Management

Semizbay-U endeavours to improve its environmental,
social and governance performance. Semizbay-U also
aims at making a positive impact to the society through
supply chain management. When evaluating suppliers,
Semizbay-U would assess the appropriateness of the
supplier’s industrial technology, and consequently
considers the possibilities for reducing environmental
impact and consumption of raw materials. Semizbay-U
also assesses the safety of the supplier’s industrial
equipment, to determine whether or not the equipment
may cause physical harm. Semizbay-U requires its
suppliers to provide their employees with the appropriate
protective equipment and use the protective equipment
during work, as well as to provide the appropriate
measures and training to protect the employees’ health
and safety.

When selecting its suppliers and determining its
purchasing approach, Semizbay-U must give priority
to purchase from suppliers that are on the lists of
organizations employing handicapped people. Through the
process of supply chain management, it helps encourage
the development of caring companies. Semizbay-U will
also verify the integrity of the suppliers during the selection
process, and pay close attention to their companies’
governance history.
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Product Responsibility

As unsafe products constitute a threat to human health
and life, Semizbay-U places great importance to product
quality and safety, and safety is its foremost consideration.
Radioactive and chemical pollution must be prevented
during both the mining of natural uranium and the
enriching process. Concurrently, to ensure personal and
environmental safety, all containers must be as airtight as
possible. All tank trucks must be fitted with signs to show
that they are carrying dangerous uranium products, in
order to warn all other vehicles and pedestrians.

Strict quality control of products is of crucial importance
to the company’s success. With regards to quality control,
the natural uranium products from Semizbay-U are all
compliant to international standards, and the company’s
rules stipulate that it must conduct chemical analysis of
samples from the products it delivers, in order to ensure the
reliability and quality of the products.

Semizbay-U has also stipulated a strict policy with
regards to customer information. According to this policy,
all employees are strictly prohibited from disclosing
information about customers who purchase natural
uranium. With regards to the advertisement and promotion
of products, due to the unified nature of the usage pathway
of the produced products and their quality assessment
standards, Semizbay-U maintains consistency between
the product information that it discloses publicly and the
actual product information, and never exaggerates or omits
any part of it.

Semizbay-U strictly abides by the relevant product
responsibility laws, and there have been no cases of
prosecution due to any violations of laws related to product
responsibility or confidentiality.
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Anti-corruption

Semizbay-U consistently safeguards the principle of
conducting business honestly and operating fairly,
has clear rules against corruption, fraud, etc., and has
drafted a policy to prevent bribery in accordance with
Kazakhstan’s local Anti-Corruption and Criminal Laws.
The Anti-Corruption Policy defines basic anti-corruption
principles such as interest conflicts, and decides the
policy’s goal and mission, authority and responsibility,
as well as the preventive measures of the anti-corruption
policy, etc. Semizbay-U has established comprehensive
monitoring of actions involving extortion and blackmail,
and has strictly stipulated the necessary measures to
prevent extortion and fraud. Furthermore, all purchases of
services and goods by the Semizbay-U Company must
be done, in accordance with the purchasing procedure of
the Kazakhstan Sovereign Wealth Fund, by announcing
bidding information to the suppliers through its and
the government’s official purchasing website in order
to conduct an open bidding procedure. It ensures the
openness, fairness, and impartiality of the bidding process.

To give the employees a thorough understanding of its
anti-corruption policy, Semizbay-U will provide information
to help employees to prevent money-laundering, and will
also provide special training and education to prevent
extortion, fraud, and other such activities, thereby
strengthening the employees’ anti-corruption awareness.

Semizbay-U strictly abides by the relevant Anti-Corruption
laws, and there have been no cases of prosecution due
to any violations of the relevant laws within the reporting
period.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Community Investment

While developing its business in Kazakhstan, Semizbay-U
is also actively engaged in the various needs of the local
community, with the hope of giving back to the local
community, improving it, and embodying the spirit of
“Taking from society, giving back to society”. Semizbay-U
enthusiastically participates in charitable donations, and
provides funds to support community building. Its donation
projects encompass various domains in the community,
including the construction of schools, sport facilities,
orphanages, etc., in an effort to improve community
facilities.

In addition to participating in charitable donation
programs, Semizbay-U also cooperates with educational
institutions, and has started internship programs with
numerous technical schools by sending students to work
in the production operation units. This is to promote the
educational development by taking concrete actions.
Through this, a large number of students can have the
opportunity to experience the concept of “study through
practice, contribute to society”.

Concurrently, Semizbay-U actively participates in
community activities, and invests in the community.
During every major festival, Semizbay-U’s employees will
participate in the festivity activities arranged and organized
by the local organization, and strongly support such
activities to activate community interactions, strengthen
cohesion, and jointly build a harmonious, integrated
community. In addition, in order to improve the employees’
sense of social responsibility, Semizbay-U also encourages
its employees contribute to social development by taking
an active part in community activities.
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF CGN MINING COMPANY LIMITED
HEZREERRATE

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN Mining
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 107 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON THE
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on pages 129-131.
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The key audit matter

The Group has 19.98% interest
in an associate, Fission Uranium
Corp. which is a listed company
in Canada. As at 31 December
2016, the interest in an
associate held by the Group is
approximately HK$520,316,000.

Following a review of the
business, the outlook for
the industry and the market
conditions, as the uranium
price was in a decreasing trend
from the date of acquisition
to the end of reporting period
and the Canadian dollar was
in fluctuation, there is a risk
of impairment in respect of
the interest in an associate;
management has carried out
the impairment assessment on
the interest in an associate.

We considered this a key audit
matter because this involves a
significant degree of management
judgement in respect of
the valuation methods and
assumptions for the estimation
of the fair value of the interest in
the associate.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our procedures were designed
to review the management’s
assessment of the indicators of
impairment and understand and
assess the reasonableness of the
methods and assumptions used
in the valuation model to estimate
the recoverable amount of the
associate.

We have discussed and assessed
the indicators of possible
impairment with the management
and the component auditor
and, where such indicators
were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing.

We have assessed the valuation
methodology and compared
significant inputs to third party
sources. We have also understood
and assessed the key assumptions
and critical judgement used by
the management based on our
knowledge of the business and
industry.
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18 M XA

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON THE
INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies on pages 129-131.

The key audit matter

The Group has 49% interest
in a joint venture, Semizbay-U
Limited Liability Partnership.
As at 31 December 2016, the
interest in a joint venture held
by the Group is approximately
HK$186,467,000.

Following a review of the
business, the outlook for the
industry and the market
conditions, as the uranium
price was in a decreasing trend
from the beginning to the end
of reporting period, there is a
risk of impairment in respect of
the interest in a joint venture;
management has carried out the
impairment assessment on the
interest in a joint venture.

We considered this a key
audit matter because this
involves a significant degree
of management judgement
in respect of the valuation
methods and assumptions for
the estimation of the fair value of
the interest in the joint venture.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our procedures were designed
to review the management’s
assessment of the indicators of
impairment and understand and
assess the reasonableness of the
methods and assumptions used
in the valuation model to estimate
the recoverable amount of the joint
venture.

We have discussed and assessed
the indicators of possible
impairment with the management
and the component auditors
and, where such indicators
were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing.

We have assessed the valuation
methodology and compared
significant inputs to third party
sources. We have also understood
and assessed the key assumptions
and critical judgement used by
the management based on our
knowledge of the business and
industry.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

18 M %A

. REERRARFEL ST ERS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Pang Wai Hang.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: PO5044

Hong Kong
23 March 2017

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

RE 2K s R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

o é E é

2016
2016 &

GLE
TERr

2015
20154
HK$’'000
FHT

Continuing operations HEMER
Revenue e 8 707,749 708,422
Cost of sales HEMRA (284,244) (420,579)
Gross profit ESl 423,505 282,843
Other operating income Hseg A 8 7,269 17,416
Administrative expenses TS (41,278) (31,390)
Changes in fair value of investment properties REMENREEE 19 2,158 1,044
Share of results of a joint venture e —EaB RS 44,575 5,360
Share of results of an associate FEfh—fEE A EEE 33,284 =
Finance costs BB AN 10 (5,601) (21,990)
Profit before taxation PR AR A 463,912 253,283
Income tax expenses Fr{S R 11 (74,782) (49,920)
Profit for the year from continuing operations SE E IS ENEF 13 389,130 203,363
Discontinued operation FREMER
Profit for the year from discontinued operation BN EEENER 12 - 94,640
Profit for the year AEE il 389,130 298,003
Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company: RATEE ANEEFERET
— from continuing operations — BT 389,130 203,363
— from discontinued operation — IR - 94,618
389,130 297,981
Profit for the year attributable
to non-controlling interests: FEE R s A s A -
— from continuing operations — B EK - -
— from discontinued operation —REIERFE I X = 22
- 22
389,130 298,003
Earnings per share FREF 15
From continuing and discontinued operations WIFEE RIS BT E
Basic B-9IN HK7.05 cents HK7.36 cents
7.0558 7.36 751l
Diluted BE HK6.61 cents HK5.39 cents
6.61 381 5.39 781l
From continuing operations RIFE MR
Basic K HK7.05 cents HK5.02 cents
7.05 2l 5.02 %Al
Diluted B HK6.61 cents HK3.79 cents
6.61 81l 3.79 7l
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

reEmRkHMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

108

2016 2015
2016 F 20155
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT AT
Profit for the year REZRT 389,130 298,003
Other comprehensive expenses: Hi2ERY :
Items that may be subsequently B2 EnmEl -
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation BERBRARMBRREEL
of financial statements of subsidiaries ELER (4,412) (6,412)
Exchange differences on translation of HE—HREERNBRREL
financial statements of a joint venture ZERER 3,620 (100,139)
Exchange differences on translation of HE RGO EMERREE
financial statements of an associate ZEHRER 29,459 -
Reclassification adjustment for the BHRALERB AR R
cumulative exchange difference REGREREZRRE
included in profit or loss upon
disposal of subsidiaries 32 - (81,270)
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEEM2EKE
for the year (%) 28,667 (186,821)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERENRESE 417,797 111,182
Total comprehensive income for the TIATEEAEERE
year attributable to: Wes4ass
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 417,797 111,149
Non-controling interests IEERER - 33
417,797 111,182

CGN Mining Company Limited

REREEXARAT



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BEIR IR

As at 31 December 2016 720161231 H

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
2016 FF 20154
12A31H 12 A31H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER G 18 17,347 20,339
Investment properties WEYE 19 29,021 28,778
Interest in a joint venture R—EaegbE ER 20 186,467 138,272
Interest in an associate R & B 21 520,316 =
753,151 187,389
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables FEYRF R AU IR 22 8,886 185,721
Amount due from an intermediate JE U — Pl R AR A )
holding company A 26 2,650 10,074
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries EWR M B A RZIE 23 1,080,947 476,588
Bank balances and cash RITHRGENIRE 24 40,915 285,528
1,133,398 957,911
Total assets BEEHAE 1,886,549 1,145,300
Current liabilities nRBAE
Trade and other payables R R EMENRE 25 8,803 46,453
Amount due to an intermediate FEN — AP AR A B
holding company £ Q1] 26 13,238 11,772
Amount due to a joint venture BR—HEEERE 27 5,813 3,293
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERRIZH B A RIFIA 23 378 2,891
Convertible bonds AR ES 29 - 289,933
Income tax payable TSR 26,353 20,449
54,585 374,791
Net current assets REEEFE 1,078,813 583,120
Total assets less current liabilities BEERERRBEE 1,831,964 770,509
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BEIR &

As at 31 December 2016 7201612 A31H

31 December

31 December

2016 2015
2016 FF 20154
12A31H 12 A31H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THIT
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital %N 28 66,007 46,369
Reserves i 1,750,552 713,281
Total equity A 1,816,559 759,650
Non-current liability *RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEERE 30 15,405 10,859
1,831,964 770,509
The consolidated financial statements on pages 107 to 222 were HNFIO7TE222B 2 26 B HERN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23
March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director &% Director %

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

Equity attributable o owners of the Company

LI N
Equity
componentof  Exchange Propertes Non-
Stare  Share  Capital converble translation Reserve  Refained revaluation ~ Other controling
capital  premium  reseve  bonds  reseme find  camings resene reseme Total  interests Total
#REs D ek
S v BREE REEN 0 RE HMRE & B &
HESOD0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00 HESOMD  HKSOM  HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSOMD  HKSOM
ot T thm ot th TR T TR AR
(Notea) (Notel)
(iita) (iith)
At Janvary 2016 RNGE1A1A 46369 99561 69414 (626,06) /S R AR /) (B6365 759650 759,650
bedofraesuponconerson - REATARERE
of oomertlebonds Xl 300 310 (9414) 1553 2554
Poftfor e e TER 130 130 10
Oeoompeensienpernse  AEREM2ERY
forthe year;
Bchange iferences on RENEL RS
fansionof rencilstgements. 7E{EE
0f ubsideries (4412 4412 4412
Botange dfeences onenelon {5 -FA 202
oftencasaemenisolapit Ff7EYEE
Vet 360 - 360 360
Botange dfeences onenelon {15 -EEEAEH
offrencil sttemens EiRizR
ofan assocle prL prL 45
Tota compehenseincome TERENGEE
forthe ear 28667 39,10 i 41
e e, YA (R RARA)
ofransacton cost 654 3033 30929 3999
Srareofoheresene ofenassocate Bl —ERENSENER 39 3 3649
At 31 December 2016 RubERAYA 66007 1,661,112 (307,89 s TaM (8216 1,816,559 1816559
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Conso[iplgted Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

Equiy atoutable o owners

Equiy

comporentol Echenge Shae

Swe  Captd convedk  bensaton  opfins

oemlm resene bonds e Iesene

o BE
HRSO00 RS0 HKS 00

T T A

Resene
fund

Ehig
HHS10

Retane
eanigs

0f the Company

Propertes Non-
roveluaton contoling
1ESene nfrests

#

[z o

HS00  HIS00
T T

At Janvary 2019 RMGEI AR B 0TI MR 18T (67 1 601 (6359 901 - 13078% 1640 130947
e of shass poncomersion. - BB EAE

of convertle bonds i 1343 o (9413 261564 281564
Pt e e RN 097581 097581 0 s
Otcomperesieopene  AEERHAERT

forthe year

Bchnge dfeencss o A v

erson o ancil eements. B3R

ottt - - - ] By B
Recassfeaionadlstmenti e ESIREEREAT

anvdieechagsdfoee  AEAREREY

icludedin oo loss upon Eizaie

(isposal o suosidres 61.210) 61210 (1,210
Bonpdfeenssntandeion  RE-BASHETRREL

offrencil Saements JEfz2

dfajintenue (0139 (0139 (00139
Todoomehersiepersg)  AEERE(R bk

ncomg for e year (166832 2979t 111,149 S A1)
Merger resenes aisng fomoommn -~ A R4 GRS 7 ARHR

contolcombinaion (o 534) - 06369 (1030899 (10308%9)
Disoose of s HEHEAR - T O - S

At31 Decembe 2015 RM5E12R A 639 %087 S 5] e W 06369 790660 750,650

Notes: B e -

(@) Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) have (@) PR EARLME (TR ]) K2 HEAF]
appropriated 10% of the profit to reserve fund. The reserve fund is BN Z10%BAREES - FEESE
required to be retained in the accounts of the subsidiaries for specific RENHB AR ZIRE AERERR -
purposes.

(o) The other reserve represents (i) the difference between the (o) H i (&8 (1) IBIEHERIZEHI T 2 %254 6

consideration of United States dollars (‘USD”) 133,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,030,899,000) and the aggregate paid-in
capital of b RF MK EHERIREGR AT (for identification purpose, in
English, Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium Resources Investment Company
Limited, referred to as “Beijing Sino-Kazakh”) of Renminbi (“RMB”)
823,770,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$944,534,000) acquired
under business combinations under common control and (i) share of
other reserve of an associate.

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT

U B &9 1R {8 133,000,000 7T (18 & 1 4
1,030,899,000# 7T ) F1L R Ig #h & JRIEE
BRAR(MERFR]) BERERRBEAR
#5823,770,000 7T (85 74 47 944,534,000 745
T0) 2 RIH) 258 K (i) PG — B & R H b
i fE -



OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
on land use rights

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Changes in fair value of investment properties

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Bank interest income

Interest income from overdue trade receivable
from an intermediate holding company

Interest income from overdue sale proceeds
of disposal of subsidiaries

Loan interest income from fellow subsidiaries

Trade deposit interest income from a joint venture

Share of results from a joint venture
Share of results from an associate

Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

2016 2015
2016 5 20156
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT AT
BEED
BREUAT AR 463,912 347,842
HE
BsmpAE - 15
BT ARENHEER
- 102
M - BEREERTE 1,950 3216
BREMELNBEE (2,158) (735)
AR A 5,601 21,990
HERBAR 2 - (99,040)
HRITHISUA (46) (669)
—RERA R B
B HMEHA - (3,514)
HEMB AR Z AR
ZFBHA (269) =
RZHB AR ZEHFBHRA (4,273) (6,319)
—HAELEZEAFTAEKRA (161) (3,326)
EfE—HaatERE (44,575) (5,360)
FEfE—FHa (33,284) =

HENX - BEIREERFE - 81

Operating cash flow before movements in

LEASEPN LETENE

working capital 386,697 254,387
Increase in inventories GE=M - (6,771)
Decrease in trade and other receivables FEURER 3R % B fth R IR 121,517 43,239
Decrease in trade and other payables BT R E e 5 aR (37,667) (83,183)
Increase in current account with an intermediate —fR R B A Al R A

holding company 8,990 3,956
Increase (decrease) in amount due to a joint venture FER—& B tEFIEEm (R D) 2,521 (8,563)
(Decrease) increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEfE ZHTB A AIZIE (R ) 10 (2,503) 70
Cash from operations (AR & 479,555 204,135
Hong Kong tax paid ERBEBHE (62,053) (35,391)
The United Kingdom Corporation Tax paid EREBEMER (1,371) =
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReTBAEREFR 416,131 168,744
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEBREETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

2016 2015
2016 20156
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt THT THL
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEH
Repayment from fellow subsidiaries RAZMBARER 1,051,153 11,325,994
Interest income from fellow subsidiaries RZHB AR ZFEWA 4,449 7,595
Interest income from overdue trade receivable —RIR R A R 2 B M
from an intermediate holding company BRRZFIBHA 3,577 -
Interest income from overdue sale proceeds HEMB A Az BH YNGR
of disposal of subsidiaries ZHBHA 269 -
Bank interest income received BUSRITHISHA 46 658
Trade deposit interest income from a joint venture —REEREZEAFTHEHMA 161 3,326
Deposits advanced to fellow subsidiaries RRZMRBARRE 2 FR (1,655,517) (10,472,024)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  WERZE (5) (863)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries (net HENBARZRERAFR
of bank balances and cash disposed of) (MR HEZHTEERES) 32 - 50,973
Payment for common control business combinations 3 R4 £ HA b = (1,030,899)
Cash inflow from deferred cash consideration HEMB LN BT & 4B
from disposal of subsidiaries ZHREMA 35,000 -
Acquisition of an associate W — e b 39 (437,363) -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBHFARSFR (998,230) (115,240)
CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY METEBHRERS
Net proceeds from issue of shares by subscription ARETRNEIIBEE 339,929 —
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReRBEEBEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2) e (242,170) 53,504
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENZRERELEEER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 285,528 233,665
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ka5 E (2,443) (1,631)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END REAZRERALEEER
OF THE YEAR, represented by unpledged AERRRIEELRS
bank balances and cash 40,915 285,528
1 1 4 CGN Mining Company Limited

REREEXARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B ILEE

GENERAL

CGN Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liabilities. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its parent is FEHEZERE AR A7) (China
Uranium Development Company Limited) (“China Uranium
Development”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of /1 &% i3 2 AR A &) (CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co. Ltd.) (“CGNPC-URC”), which is in
turn a subsidiary of EEZEEBRE AR (China General
Nuclear Power Corporation) (“CGNPC”). CGNPC is the ultimate
parent of the Company. Both CGNPC-URC and CGNPC were
established in the PRC and state-owned enterprises.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to the “Group”) are property investment,
trading of natural uranium and other investments. The
Group discontinued its operations in selling, distributing and
manufacturing of pharmaceutical and food products during
the year ended 31 December 2015 following the completion
of the disposal of Yugofoil Holdings Limited (“Yugofoil”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Yugofoil Group”) on 25
March 2015.

The functional currency of the Company is USD. As the
Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of the Company
consider that it is appropriate to present the consolidated
financial statements in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”).

—REH
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EREEAR AR ([FEZEELRQ
Al KB AR - HEZEEAT
RANRANREERT] - . EZH
EXERIDEZEE QRN E
RIIBE AR -

EN/NCIWA S i = e 3:
EUA BN FRZ [RREM] —

B o

RRARREWEB AT (58 [ A&
B2 EEBRRYERE - XA
HE 5 REAIRE - §201553 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments and

Interpretations, issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/

or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #,£20164%12 831 H It E[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Leases®

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions®

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts®

FERFET RGBT EEM
R E 2R ([ FRMBER

X8 ) #)

[ = R a5t

B BB R £ Rz # 7] R ARMER]
BERYBREER

AREEW EIEF AT E B
AR ER T R] HAENERT BB

e

BREMBHREEN SRMTIA

F9% (2014 F)

EEMBREEL  REARFHAN
E15% N

EEMBREEL HEe
E1657

Rl WRATEl
ETRIETA

BAGETER PAREREERER
F125IETA ERRIEAE

BEMBREEN REEEHEZIA
FIORRELET ELRCABE
ERAFBRETR  HERIE®

BEMBREEN  ARDAERSHM

BORBHA  XBNDER
Es

BRMBHREER  ERBYBRE
FAFEFR ERIE 45 RE
BR—-HERZ
BBYHHREEA
FOREHTA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;%2016 12 A31H It EE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

Effective date not yet been determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2015 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS
9 that were issued in previous years with limited amendments
to the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair
value through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”)
measurement category for certain financial assets. The finalised
version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss”
model for impairment assessments.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREXAR AR

FERFET RGBT EEM
R EER ([ BFRMBER

EHEA ) @)

EEMEMRERZHET REIERT

EBMEREEL (E)

! R2017%1 A1 Bk 2 &R 2 F
FEHAR A 3K o

2 R2018F1 A1 Bk 2 BB 2 F
FEHARI A2 -

8 R2019F1 A1 Bz B HB 2 F
S AR A K

4 B B AREEE

ARAPEFEY RTIXAE
S FERETR] RRER] BB 5
RS SR B R0 R4 MR
WEEBRTE -

& 8 B I R & % Al 55955 (2014
F)-£@ITA

722009 G F8 6 2 B B B 76 o &5 %
AIFE ORI AN BMEBE 2 » EKET
EZHMBRTE o AER 2010515
ZBANBRELERNEIRMAR
BBEZDERFTERP LR

HE - 2013F - M BHHREE
AI| 2 QSR AE TS AT RIR S U
i AT EREMBRRTEL
MRBRESHREBRELES - 1
2015 FHM B BM B IMELEAZE9
S B B AL AR AN AR S BT JE AR A
BB B HREERFEIRHTE
RE HBAETESREESIASH
[ER A EY BRI B2 E R Es
WEIE | ([RARBEFIERITHE M
2HWENRE]) T2 - H9
HRFAEHREIEEBRER] - BF
B s e ZE RI S8 O 51 ) SR AR Wi AR I
AREFHESIAT [FBHEEEE]

B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) that are relevant to the
Group are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that
is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;Z=2016E12 31 H It EE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)
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With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting
for an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were added.
Those requirements eliminate the threshold that was
in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under
the impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses should always be accounted for. The amount
of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely information
is provided about expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B ILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging
their financial and non-financial risk exposures. As
a principle-based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks
at whether a risk component can be identified and
measured and does not distinguish between financial
items and non-financial items. The new model also
enables an entity to use information produced internally
for risk management purposes as a basis for hedge
accounting. Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit
eligibility and compliance with the requirements in HKAS
39 using metrics that are designed solely for accounting
purposes. The new model also includes eligibility criteria
but these are based on an economic assessment of
the strength of the hedging relationship. This can be
determined using risk management data. This should
reduce the costs of implementation compared with
those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it
reduces the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;Z=2016E12 A31H It EE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Regarding the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with customers,
featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions
to determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) |dentify the contract with the customer;
ii) |dentify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

V) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B ILEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may have material impact
on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in the
financial statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
initial estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;Z=2016E12 31 H It EE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured
by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payment made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and impairment
expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be charged to
profit or loss following the requirements of HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on lease liability will
be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective. HKFRS 16 replaces all existing lease
accounting requirements and represents a significant change
in the accounting and reporting of leases, with more assets
and liabilities to be reported on the consolidated statement of
financial position and a different recognition of lease costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$2,124,000.
HKAS 17 does not required the recognition of any right-of-
use asset or liability for further payments for these leases;
instead, certain information is disclosed as operating lease
commitments in note 36. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of HKFRS 16. The new requirement to recognise
a right-of-use asset and a related lease liability is expected
to have an impact on the amount recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and the directors of the
Company are currently assessing its potential impact. It is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until
the Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;Z=2016%12 31 H ILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment properties that
are measured at fair values.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares its
financial statements using accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s financial statements
in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B ILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (jii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, power over the investee may be obtained through:
(i) a contractual arrangement with other vote holders; (i) rights
arising from other contractual arrangements; (i) the Group’s
voting rights and potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of
the above, based on all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All'intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;Z=2016%12 31 H ILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the end of the previous reporting period
or when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B ILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control of those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in an associate and a joint venture are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method. Under the equity method, investments in
an associate and a joint venture are initially recognised at cost.
The Group’s share of the profit or loss and changes in the other
comprehensive income of the associate and joint venture are
recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
respectively after the date of acquisition. If the Group’s share
of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate or joint venture, which determined
using the equity method together with any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or joint venture, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

If an associate or a joint venture uses accounting policies
other than those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made to make the
associate’s or joint venture’s accounting policies conform to
those of the Group when the associate’s or joint venture’s
financial statements are used by the Group in applying the
equity method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #;Z=2016%12 31 H ILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of
the investment, any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the associate or joint venture is recognised
as goodwill and is included in the carrying amount of the
investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s or joint venture’s losses (if any), the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to its investment in the associate
or joint venture. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
not separately recognised. The entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate or
joint venture. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group’s ownership interest in an associate or a joint
venture is reduced, but the Group continues to apply the equity
method, the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest is reclassified to profit or loss if
that gain or loss would be required to be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B ILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture (Continued)

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate or joint venture are recognised in
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. The
Group’s share in the associate’s or joint venture’s gains or
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings (classified as finance leases) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2016412 A31H ILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes an owner-occupied
property when there is a change in use, as evidenced by
commencement of an owner-occupation, the fair value of
that property at the date of transfer is the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting for that property as an item of property,
plant and equipment.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial asset and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B ILEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amounts due from an
intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2016412 31 H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the credit period ranging from 25
to 30 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance amount are
recognised in profit or loss. When trade and other receivables
are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to an intermediate holding company, a joint venture and
fellow subsidiaries and convertible bonds are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2016412 31 H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest rate of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the bonds into
equity, is included in equity (equity component of convertible
bonds).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in equity component of
convertible bonds until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in equity component of
convertible bonds will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in equity component of convertible bonds will be
released to the retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity components are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognise its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
as defined above.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

3.

FESHBE#)

BREEZRERR(E)

A G AHERNEE 2 KR E 2
B AKBEAEEMBRSES
Bz FREEFR o 1An] BRI A8
K=z B EE - RIREEET
WHREERREELEN - IR
HipER T RERDEECHAAE
BE—BOREEZREELEN
ZENESG ©

A EISE R AR EREEERAN
RERBEMET Z2BSE - KT
EEREER - fAErARKRRERE
TIABERIRER KRR = (E © %R
RERERRE RS E G
BREEMEEFERAR(RERE
MEBET AU EHFE)

st —REE (KREELEM)
ZA B RIERHREE - Bl
REE(HRSELEN) 2FREE
EDREE AT EI S5 - B{EEERD
R RS P HERR

REERBERERBER - BEK
ReELEM) 2RAESHSE
HZERIfhat < FIRE S 58 - 1R
BNzEEENMSRERESF
EXEERBEBRTRZLEE
(RREELEN) REET 2RE
18 - BB R ERERE R T

7
s ©

Annual Report 2016
T NEFEER

139



140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2016412 31 H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy below.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees (after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005)

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2016412 31 H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associate and interest in joint venture, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
general principles above.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2016412 31 H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period, except for exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the exchange translation reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

3.

FESHBE#)

SN (8)

REEBINER(AHEEAEEE
SNETE 2RI TS MR B —
KB AR (BIEEINERS) MR G
MHE B RAREL —HHRES
B (BHEBINER) W RS2
MHEEISRREH —HBRERE
(BIREBINER) MERTE N
B RARERE ARGZE
B RET 2 ARE X Z 3R
BN BRERS

WiE BN RIGE & 2 P B NPT UE
AHBBEZ AR BEFEE - THEIE
AN EHCEERAE - RS
HEHRAERE 2 EREXRSHR
g -ELAEEERRELFEAR

HE

EROGEKEEAE BRI DR
b & O e T AR AR - HOS
BARENRE - rARMEESD
BRREHE -

AL BE A
REHE 2 e WAREREESF
HIAAB AV TE B fERR o

A EBERAHA

REHENFAERE - RIEMHE

Annual Report 2016
T NEFEER

145



146

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2016412 31 H It EE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease, except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Retirement benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (defined contribution plans)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminate the
employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-based
payment transactions, leasing transactions, net realisable value
of inventories and value in use of tangible assets for the purpose
of impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as
follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value hierarchy
for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value
on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities from
investment properties that were measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties in the PRC were held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantively all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group’s deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company determined that the presumption
that the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model recovered entirely through sale
was rebutted. As a result, the Group continues to recognise
deferred tax liabilities on change in fair value of investment
properties on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of the
properties will be recovered through use.

Significant influence over associate

As per note 21 to the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company considered Fission Uranium Corp.
(“Fission”), in which the Group has 19.98% equity interest, is an
associate of the Group as the Group has significant influence
over Fission by virtue of its contractual right appointed two out
of nine directors to the board of directors of Fission.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment were depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account their estimated residual values. The determination of
the useful lives and residual values involved management’s
estimation. The Group assessed annually the residual value
and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and
if the expectation differed from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the depreciation in the year and
the estimate would be changed in the future period. As at
31 December 2016, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment was approximately HK$17,347,000 (2015:
HK$20,339,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;201612 A31H It EE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables,
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate
holding company

When there was objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group took into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows were less than expected, a material
impairment loss might arise. As at 31 December 2016, the
carrying amounts of other receivables, amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries and an intermediate holding company
were approximately HK$3,715,000 (2015: HK$42,255,000),
approximately HK$1,080,947,000 (2015: HK$476,588,000)
and approximately HK$2,650,000 (2015: HK$10,074,000)
respectively.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment was
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying amounts
exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment are the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In determining
the recoverable amount, use of estimates such as the future
revenue and discount rates is required. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
was approximately HK$17,347,000 (2015: HK$20,339,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates of market conditions. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used
in the valuation have reflected the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties being
recognised in profit or loss. The carrying amount of investment
properties measured at fair value at 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$29,021,000 (2015: HK$28,778,000).

Impairment loss on investment in a joint venture

At the end of the reporting period, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of investment in a joint venture to determine
whether there is any indication that the investment has
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the investment is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The
determination of recoverable amount of investment in a joint
venture involves estimates as to: (1) future revenues based
on forecasted uranium prices; (2) actual production volume
of uranium mines held by the joint venture; (3) exchange rate
between Tenge, the currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan
(“Kazakhstan”), and USD; (4) the discount rate to be applied
to such revenues and costs for the purpose of deriving
a recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount of the
investment is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. The carrying amount of investment in a joint venture is
approximately HK$186,467,000 (2015: HK$138,272,000) as
at 31 December 2016. No impairment is recognised for current
and prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2016412 31 H ILEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on investment in an associate

At the end of the reporting period, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of investment in an associate to determine
whether there is any indication that the investment has
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the investment is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The
determination of recoverable amount of investment in an
associate involves estimates as to: (1) the appropriateness of
the comparable transactions selected under market approach;
(2) the indicated resources of uranium; (3) exchange rate
between Canadian dollar (“CAD”), the currency of Canada,
and USD and (4) the uranium price adjustment rate to be
applied to such comparable transactions for the purpose of
deriving a recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount
of the investment is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the investment is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
an impairment loss of approximately HK$220,032,000 was
recognised in profit or loss and included in share of results of an
associate. The carrying amount of investment in an associate is
approximately HK$520,316,000 (2015: nil) as at 31 December
2016.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets including investment properties
and identifiable assets and liabilities of an associate at the
acquisition date are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The directors of the Company are responsible to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for
fair value measurements. Details are set out in notes 19 and 39.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The directors of the
Company work closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the

caN M98 koany Limited
P EZEEERAR

4,

FTESTTHE R A TH
BEZEZEFERIR &)

Rt THMEEZ TERR(F)
R—EET R REZRIEER

RREBA R - AN ARETR
—HBE R ZIRE C EREENE
EBANRBERZIRED BB
EERE - WEEEMAETR - 8
flETRZIRE 2 Al IR Bl & BELAEE R,
BEEE(NE) 2RE - BER—H
Bt 2108 2 AR El S Y K
HEr - (MBEMSE T ELR
RGZEEMN  QIBELZLIHEIR ;
@ MEREMNITEETT 2 EX
Q) AEE R W ETREmE AR &
LEERAZ S 2 ShE TR E o fHfh
FTRZIRE 2 e S FERERE
B AZRE ZREEREE AT
Q4% - HZE 201612 A31 B ik
FE - NEERERABERSEL
220,320,000 7T + W51 A FEAS
—fEE R LR - R20165F
12A318 ' R—EBELFE IR
& 7 BRMA{E49/5520,316,000 7% 7T
(20154 : f#) o

AR EFTERIGEESF

RUMBE2HREH  ARBEZETE
E(BREREMERKERH—MH
BEPENAEREERAR)Z
DRAEFE -ARFEFREET
BRRAEFEZEREETER
BARUR - FBEIINME19R%
39 °

EhEFEEXREZAAER - K
SEFERAESZABRENSEH
R o HEZERE —BRARE
AEEEZREFE=77A B RIAER
EITHE - ARREFRESERIN
AR ER R & A (ERAAEER 2
BETERBARE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not been recognised
the tax losses of approximately HK$63,685,000 (2015:
HK$60,858,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. These losses relate to subsidiaries that have a history
of tax losses and the Group has not accounted for the relevant
deferred tax. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. The directors of
the Company determine the deferred taxation assets based
on the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates and the
best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for coming
years during which the deferred taxation assets are expected
to be utilised. The directors of the Company will review the
assumptions and profit projections by the end of the reporting
period.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes convertible bonds disclosed in note 29, amounts
due to an intermediate holding company, a joint venture and
fellow subsidiaries, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained earnings. The directors of
the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As a part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital, and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s
capital structure.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. EmTIHA

156

Categories of financial instruments

THMI RS

2016 2015
2016 £ 2015 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables (including B EW RIS
bank balances and cash) (BIERITEERIRS) 1,133,398 940,245
Financial liabilities SHEEE
At amortised cost JRESER AN 28,232 354,342

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from an intermediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amounts due to an intermediate
holding company, a joint venture and fellow subsidiaries and
convertible bonds. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. UXEREEEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#&)

Currency risk EHEE

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such AEEmMERFEERRE - AR
exposures arise from rental income and purchases by BEEHESWARRNEEBNZE
the Group in currencies other than the entities’ functional BRNINAEEE AN BT
currencies. Approximately 100% (2015: 60%) of the Group’s PRI o NEBE #100% (20154 :
rental income and nil (2015: 6%) of the Group’s purchases are 60%) B T & U A K £ (2015 4F -
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency 6%) HOELEE LA = E B AL EH FRAE 2
of the group’s entity making the purchases. In addition, certain e B AN EEEFIME o thoh -
portion of trade and other receivables, amount due from an & T 280 FE U BR 3R K E At i U sk
intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries, bank 78~ R — R EIERR A B MR &R
balances and cash, trade and other payables, amount due to B ARFIA - RTTETFTRRE -
an intermediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries are FERTER R R H AL FETFRIE - FERT—
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of Bk NN AR E = NGIEN
the entity to which they relate. 18 - HAE 2 ERETh e B LASK

ZEKEH -

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the end of TREMMEER RS RS RE
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised AR EYEENAFEAEETERE
monetary assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other BT RE B AN B EEEE
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. 2B o

USD’000 RMB’000 HK$’000 CAD’000

TEn ARBTT THER T

Presented in: 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
BIRA 2016%F 20155 2016F 2015 2016%F 20154 20165 2015
Assets LE 905 945 33,942 41,362 498,475 364,256 - 44535
Liabilities BE - - (12679 (10,250)  (2,799)  (4,936) (89) -
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging N EE E IR BT AN SRR o SR
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange M- SEEERINERKE - WRE
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency ETREEE YR E AINER D o

exposure should the need arise.

Annual Report 2016
—B—NFEH

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of RMB, USD,
HK$ and CAD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity (i) to a 5%,
5% and 0.5% increase or decrease in HK$ against the RMB,
CAD and USD respectively for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015. 5%, 5% and 0.5% are the sensitivity rates
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% or 0.5%
(2015: 5% or 0.5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax profit where the
respective functional currency strengthen 5% or 0.5% (2015:
5% or 0.5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% or 0.5%
(2015: 5% or 0.5%) weakening of the respective functional
currency against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit.

UsD’000
TR

2016
2016 &

2015
20154

2016
2016

Presented in:
=)

Profit or loss St SR (34) (35) (857)

RMB’000
ARBTR

2015

20154

(1,074)

2016

MBEREREBRRBUR
(#)

B¥ER(E)

AEETZMPARE - X8
TRMMTER R

TRFFIAEE (1) B E 2016 F M
20156 12 A31 AIEFEHBE TS
RIEARE - it kETHESE
E5% * 5% % 0.5% 2 BRKE ° 3%
BREELL R (5% 5% Kk 0.5%) &
MEZEEA BRINERBRIERSED
RERERAZHRE RREEE
FEONETE KA REE £ 2 BB EEAT
YERTAH o

PREESMEBTEMARGEE ZINE
FHEEMIEE RN RS R R
FLHNEE [ K 7 5% 8%,0.5% (2015 4F
5%3%0.5%) BBIEL 2 REFEE o
N2 ESFE T MiB R D) B B 1
H BB E® F {E5%5,05% (2015
F : 5% 54 05%) FTE BB 1% i 5
ZFHiE o BRI RE B B RS
EHEE{E5%550.5%(20154F : 5%8%
05%) & EEFEKIER 2 55

ve-
HK$’000

TER
2016

CAD’000
Tz

2016

2016

2015
20154

2015
20154
(2,069)

(1,500) - (186)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable-rate bank balances and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
including bank balances and cash and amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would increase/decrease by approximately HK$4,668,000
(2015: HK$3,372,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank balances and
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries.
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverability of each individual trade debt
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk
attributable to the amount due from an intermediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries to be insignificant as the
default risk of the advance to the intermediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries is limited considering the intermediate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries has sufficient net
assets to repay its debts and a good history of repayment. The
Group does not expect to incur a significant loss for uncollected
amounts due from an intermediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 100%
(2015: 100%) of the total trade receivable as at 31 December
2016.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Besides, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 100%
(2015: 100%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer within natural uranium trading
segment. However, the directors of the Company consider the
credit risk to be insignificant as the major debtor was immediate
holding company of the Company with good creditworthiness.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed

adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity risk tables

Less than
1 year

145
HK$'000
7

MBEREREBRRBUR
(#)

FERR(E)
BB TR

Total Carrying
undiscounted amount at
1-5 years cash flows 31 December

AEE M1283182
155 REREBER REE

HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAL

2016 2016
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiEemas
Trade and other payables FE(EE R R E MR 8,803 - 8,803 8,803
Amount due to an intermediate FEf—EEERA ﬂr
holding company 13,238 - 13,238 13,238
Amount due to a joint venture EN—HAEERT 5,813 - 5,813 5,813
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRZNEAR ,MIE\ 378 - 378 378
28,232 - 28,232 28,232
2015 20155
Non-derivative financial liabilities FESHEE
Trade and other payables JERIRF R E M ER FUR 46,453 = 46,453 46,453
Amount due to an intermediate e —R AR A AR
holding company 1,772 - 1,772 1,772
Amount due to ajoint venture ER—BEERETA 3,293 - 3,293 3,293
Convertible bonds 3| }ﬁﬂ&%% 300,000 - 300,000 289,933
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZHBARZE 2,891 - 2,891 2,891
364,409 - 364,409 364,342

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded

at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values due to their immediate or short-

term maturities.

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT

[RE
TREEREBRAEIAAETIR
BAREBEANMRESRED
WEERE °
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BREZEEEREAAERS I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING 8.
INCOME

Revenue represents amount received and receivable from sales

EERARHEMEERA

LEBEFAIKRESE - AFFTH
R HE R R A RA 2B W
R EWIR - ARSI AARER -
KA EHER 2 SR M X B a0

of natural uranium, net of returns, discounts allowed and sales
related taxes, and gross rental income during the year. Revenue

recognised during the year from continuing operations is as

follows. To
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FEx FAT
Revenue EER
Sales of goods HEE MW 705,556 700,391
Gross rental income (note) e A4z (i) 2,193 3,031
707,749 703,422
Other operating income HipeE WA
Bank interest income RITHBULA 46 549
Loan interest income from fellow EEILIEEPNCIPASECIN@N
subsidiaries 4,273 6,319
Interest income from overdue —FEI R R IR B 2 38 A FE LK
trade receivable from an AR Z A B A
intermediate holding company - 3,514
Interest income from overdue HEWEA Rz amEERR 2
sale proceeds of disposal MEWA
of subsidiaries 269 -
Trade deposit interest income —MEEEEZBATFE
from a joint venture WA 161 3,326
Management fee income BIEBWA 2,504 -
Tax on disposal of subsidiaries HERSRER 2 WEEH
reimbursed by the acquirer RERLERBARFNR
of Yugofoil Group - 3,706
Others HAth 16 2
7,269 17,416
Total revenue Pellig=s 715,018 720,838

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H L& &

8. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING 8. HEEERHMEKZHEWA
INCOME (Continued) (%)
Note: An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows: MisE : AKBEZHSBAFEITET :
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Gross rental income AN 2,193 3,031
Less: Outgoings (included in i AR
cost of sales) (T ASHERKA) = (170)
Net rental income WA FRE 2,193 2,861
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. ZEEH
Information reported to the chief executive officer (“CEQ”), AEBERUERD Bk D EBRIAF
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of EEMABERAMTIENERZER
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance REWENBIBE TR
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided. RENERRRFER - TR22E
Operating segments identified by the chief operating decision IR BRI A 5 B SR DARB A AN
maker are the same as the reportable segments of the Group. SERAHRE D EAER ©
Pharmaceutical and food segment (the “Disposed Business”) ZpkRas s ((HEXB DR
was discontinued in year ended 31 December 2015 (details 2015412 A31 BEFEETHL
set out in note 12). Accordingly, the Group’s reportable and B (FEERMEE12) - Al K&
operating segments from continuing operations are as follows: Eay Rl RS MR MR EE D
HBLRR :
a) property investment segment engages in leasing; a) WRBEDHIEHE
b) natural uranium trading segment engages in trading of b) RARHE 5 7 #B4E KR i
natural uranium; and 2% Rk
) other investments segment engages in investment in a c) HiE D A2 ERER
joint venture and an associate. —Re®Ek—REBERX -
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the NG B A G A ) B RS AR K
above reportable segments. it AR E > # -
1 64 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 831 H ILE[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

9.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable and operating segments:

Continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2016

DEBE R &)

DI REE
REBZARERKED T2 2
Wies REEAMT

SIEIE R

BZ2016F12A31 HILEFEE

Natural

Property Other uranium
investment investments trading Total
MERE HittikE RAHES st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THERT TER THET THET
Revenue EEHE 2,193 - 705,556 707,749
Segment (loss) profit DE(EE) &M (65) 77,859 409,670 487,464
Other income and gains H A A R dzs 7,269
Central administration costs RRITHA A (25,220)
Finance costs BB A (5,601)

Profit before taxation from BB ERGRTANGRF

continuing operations 463,912

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Property
investment

MEEE
HK$'000
THEL

HZE20156F12 A31 BILEE

Natural

Other uranium
investments trading Total
HiwiRE RRMES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TET

Revenue SE 2 3,031 - 700,391 703,422
Segment (loss) profit &b (E518) m A (2,536) 5,360 269,218 272,042
Other income and gains HAA R dza 17,416
Central administration costs H R AT AR (14,189)
Finance costs AE R A (21,990)
Profit before taxation from FHE I R TR AR R

continuing operations 253,283
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned by (loss from)
each segment without allocation of central administration costs,

directors’ salaries, other income and gains and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the CEO for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

DEER (#)
PEBYN T 48 ()

REEDE8 2 S FTBUR M FE 3 At
ZAREEEGFHRRMER - 2 EEF
(B1R) & BMARBEH (B4
Bi8) » WARD AR RITHBARA »
E=HH - A ARKERBE
B o W TSt B IR D B K R B RTAS
AEFRATEREZAE

Segment assets and liabilities ITHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities TREVANREF A RE R KEEDER
by reportable and operating segments: AT BEERARE :
Segment assets DEEE
2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Property investment YR E 46,839 55,980
Other investments HMin&E 706,783 138,272
Natural uranium trading KARE 5 4,738 125,800
758,360 320,052
Unallocated corporate assets KOMARIEE 1,128,189 825,248
Total assets BEMAE 1,886,549 1,145,300

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

9. EERE)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREE(E)
Segment liabilities DEEE

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT AT
Property investment ESg= 8,597 4,850
Other investments HiigE o _
Natural uranium trading KARE 5 6,999 46,564
15,596 51,414
Unallocated corporate liabilities RoBEARIAE 54,394 334,236
Total liabilities BEER 69,990 385,650

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, bank
balances and cash and other assets for corporate use
including certain property, plant and equipment and
other receivables.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than amounts due to an intermediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries, convertible bonds, income
tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and certain other
payables.

RERDHBEERDHBEZERD
fems :

. B & U IR 2% B 8 & A AR
B RITBEFERREAR
FRRMGEZHEMBEE
BRETYE BEIR
R LA B EL it & YR IR D -
PMEEEANKERED

B e

O B e — R AR A F
RIE R A R & M 8 A2 A
RIE - AHRERES - BN
FrE® - BEHRBREER
T H A A FRIESN - PR

BEREADRELEDES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. SHER @
Other segment information Hith D S BE
Continuing operations SRR
2016 2016 &

Natural
Property Other  uranium
investment investments trading Unallocated Total

NRER  HAfRE RRMEZ K9 st
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn  TEx  TEx  TEn  TEn

Amounts included in the FEABERUANEER
measure of segment profit BT ARE

or loss or segment assets:

Addition to property, RENE - BEREE
plant and equipment 5 - - - 5
Depreciation and amortisation WER#E 917 - - 1,033 1,950
Changes in fair value of investment AWML ALEEH
properties (2,158) - - - (2,158)
Operating lease rental on land T REF EEHERS
and buildings - - - 1,846 1,846
Share of results of a joint venture Eli—HadhrEs - (44,575) - - (44,575)
Share of results of an associate (Note)  [E{f— Bt & (> 24 () - (33,284) - - (33,284)
Amounts regularly provided to the EHIHEEHTERAEIE
CEO but not included in the BEFBERD BEE
measure of segment profit or RO BEEHEBZRE
loss or segment assets:
Interest expense L - - - 5,601 5,601
Income tax expense FSHis - - - 74,782 74,182
Bank Interest income FATHEMA = = = (46) (46)
Loan interest income from fellow RZNBARZEFFE
subsidlaries WA - = = (4,273) (4,273)
Interest income from overdue sale  HEMBEAF 2 BEEL
proceeds of disposal of subsidiaries 2 F E4A - - - (269) (269)
Management fee income EEBYA - - - (2,504) (2,504)
Trade deposits interest income from  —FASAEZERFFIE
a joint venture WA - - (161) - (161)
Note: MaE
An impairment loss of interest in an associate of approximately #7220,032,000 7% 7T KR BB B B 5 AR FE
HK$220,032,000 is included in the share of results of an associate. fE—FRIBEE (DR SR -

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. ZDHER(E)
Other segment information (Continued) HihpEHEE (&)
Continuing operations (Continued) FEIEET ()
2015 2015
Natural
Property Other uranium
investment  investments trading  Unallocated Total
NERE  EfRE AAHES RO st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THr THr T THr
Amounts included in the measure  stEAHERFINEER
of segment profit or loss or BEARE
segment assets:
Addition to property, RENE  BERZ
plant and equipment 111 - - 624 735
Transfer from investment properties  BR 5REME 17,963 - - - 17,963
Depreciation and amortisation WER#S 526 - = 9% 1,522
Changes in fair value of BREMEL AR ER
investment properties (1,044) - - - (1,044)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BERX
plant and equipment JEEEE - - - 81 81
Operating lease rental on land THEET EERERS
and buildings - - - 3,290 3,290
Share of results of a joint venture Elh—TaErELE - (5,360) - - (5,360)
Amounts regularly provided to the  Em B EH{TE R HEEA
CEO but not included in the BREERD PEERL I
measure of segment profit or EETEZFE
loss or segment assets:
Interest expense FlEm® = = = 21,990 21,990
Income tax expense FEH - - - 490 49,920
Bank interest income FATFEMA = = = (649) (049
Loan interest income from fellow RZRBAR ZEFFISHA
subsidiaries - - - 6,319) 6,319
Interest income from overdue — R AR Rl 2 AR
trade receivable from an ZHEWA
intermediate holding company - - (8,514) - (8,514)
Trade deposits interest income —HAECEZBAFFEMA
from a joint venture - - (3,326) - (8,326)
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e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. EERE)
Geographical information 15 R
Continuing operations SRR
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (“HK”), the AEBWEBLNES - HE - 1B
PRC, Kazakhstan and Canada. TEHTIA M IIZE K o
Information about the Group’s revenue from external BRAREERBINIE P RIBAD
customers is presented based on the location of the BRI RIBIRGEFTIE 25 - B
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current assets AAREBRIEREBEENELRIRE
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets. BEMENHEZS

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMBEFHBA FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
2016 20154 2016 20154
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FTET T FET FHETT

HK B - - 2,178 3,211
PRC i 707,749 703,422 44,190 45,906
Kazakhstan NS TET HTIE - - 186,467 138,272
Canada mnEX - - 520,316 =

707,749 703,422 753,151 187,389

Information about major customers BREETEEFZEH
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years AT #7128 B R FEFEF I A{h A&
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group is as EHEAREBRI0%NEE ZI
follows: A
2016 2015
2016 & 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&TT
Customer A' HER 705,556 700,094
! Revenue from natural uranium trading segment L RERAME 5D Z WA
1 70 CGN Mining Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

10. FINANCE COSTS

11.

AR ESZ EERE

Imputed interest expense on

B & R AN
2016 2015
2016 &

20154
HK$’'000
T

HK$’000
FERT

convertible bonds (note 29) X (B5E29) 5,601 21,990
INCOME TAX EXPENSES Fries®iz
Continuing operations BB ERK

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000

FAT

HK$°000
TR

HK Profits Tax BAEMFN
— current year —KREE 67,341 44,259
— under (over) provision in prior years —iB{FFEEET E (GBEERME) 682 (376)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax on HERBATINPRERDE
disposal of subsidiaries st
— current year —KEE = 3,706
UK Corporate Tax R ER
— current year —REE 646 478
— under provision in prior years —BAEFEREBETR 659 -
69,328 48,067
Deferred tax RIETIE 5,454 1,853
74,782 49,920

HK Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

ERFEHRIZZMETER G E
ERUR LA 16.5% H T KT E o

RIBEFBEEEMSTOL ([REMF
BOE D REBRIES - FEREQ
AR MEFE 2 HER25% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;Z=2016E12 31 H It EE

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Certain PRC subsidiaries were either in loss-making position for
the current and the previous years or had sufficient tax losses
brought forward from previous years to offset the estimated
assessable income for the year and accordingly did not have
any provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for both years.

The subsidiary operating in the United Kingdom (“UK”) is
subject to Corporation Tax Act of UK and the tax rate of the UK
subsidiary is 20% for both years.

Pursuant to the tax law of the Kazakhstan, withholding income
tax is levied on 10% of profit before distributed to overseas
investors. The Kazakhstan Income Tax is withheld by the joint
venture when 49% of total dividends were distributed to the
Company by the joint venture.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI for both
years.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREXAR AR

11.

RBHEZE @)

ARERE RBEERE - BT HEM
BATEREERR sl
4 2 BB R LR S R f st
FESRRIUA - B RAEE RB
G FE 3 AT (AR Bl EE PTG B0 B
1%0

REEZE 2 KB ARARERE
EEMAEHE - RENERRNRE
EFR2HEH20% °

REBMERATETE - IR
B IREINEE ZBRBANG N 2
10% Uk - il ha iE se BB PSR

BELEERERARADIK49%
Z AR ST ©

REFSHERRBRLES A
BER - AEERAFEBE
FEBRAANAEHS NRBREL
BEMREH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 11.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the

profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss as follows:

RBHEZE @)

REFHEH X E
RERTE B RS BR A T -

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

fRAEmRA

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TExT FHET
Continuing operations BEMER
Profit before taxation B FE B % A 463,912 253,283
Tax calculated at rates applicable HABRE R AERERR
to profits in the respective tax Al 7 Bl Rt E 7 18
jurisdiction concerned 79,968 42,147
Tax effect of share of results JE(E—EAECEIBETE
of a joint venture (11,144) (1,340)
Tax effect of share of results FEE— s E R o HG e
of an associate (5,492) -
Tax effect of income not taxable BERTRA Z TS5 2
for tax purpose (258) (1,385)
Tax effect of expenses not TR 2 s 2
deductible for tax purpose 3,571 5,157
Tax effect of disposal of subsidiaries HEREB A a2 G2 - 3,706
Deferred tax on undistributed —MaetERDE AT
earnings of a joint venture A IR AE R T8 5,028 1,049
Tax effect of tax losses not RIERBEER 2B
recognised e 1,768 962
Under(over) provision in prior years @ FEERET T GREERE) 1,341 (376)
Income tax expenses for the year REERER S H 74,782 49,920

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 30.

EIET IR IF S PRE S0 °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &,£2016%12 431 H L& E

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. FESEMEK
On 25 March 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase MN20156E3H25H @ & &£ & 5]
agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Yugofoil VHERKEHE UERE
Group, which carried out all of the Group’s pharmaceutical 101,250,000 JT M@ 55 = 5 i
and food products operation, to an independent third party for EHNMEREER D ZIRE - M
a total consideration of HK$101,250,000. The disposal was e REBENEAEE A R
completed on the same day, on which date control of Yugofoll REMER - HETKER - R
Group passed to the acquirer. e RE B G b R T YRS
ZHER-

Following the completion of the disposal of Yugofoil Group, the REERSRERTHKE - AEE
Group discontinued its operation in the Disposed Business. The RIEHRNZEEEBNEE - HE
profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 from the Disposed 2015F 12 A1 BIEFEZHEE
Business was set out below: b zopinpal Eadlp (N

2015
20154

HK$’000
TAET

Loss of the Disposed Business for the year FRAZLEEB 2 EE (4,400)
Gain on disposal of the Disposed Business HEZLEER 2z W 32 99,040
94,640
The results of the Disposed Business for the year ended 31 HE2015F 12 A31 BIEFE%ZH
December 2015 was as follows: BEBHEENT ¢

2015
20154

HK$’000
TAET

Revenue X 35,221
Cost of sales SHERKAR (29,071)
Gross profit EF 6,150
Other operating income E At A 60
Selling and distribution expenses THE R HAX (3,362)
Administrative expenses THAX (7,020)
Changes in fair value of investment WEYMEI R EEE)

properties (309)
Loss before taxation FRE AR (4,481)
Income tax credit FriSHiii e 81
Loss of the Disposed Business for the year FRZLEER 2 EE (4,400)

1 74 CGN Mining Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 831 H I E[E

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 12. FHEMER 2
RN EXRBAERERBENLT

Income tax credit from the Disposed Business included the
following:

2015
20154

HK$’000
TAET

Deferred tax JRIEFETE (81)

201512 A31 BIEEE » AR
Al ENERER 2 2Bk - B
EP BB A RB R 10% 85
M B EFTISH -

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
disposed of its entire interests in Yugofoil Group and the 10%
on the gain on disposal of subsidiaries in the PRC is subjected
to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax.

ZHEEEHE 2015512 A31 H
IFREEBREATEIAE :

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 from the Disposed
Business included the following:

2015
20154

HK$’000
TET

Amortisation of intangible assets BiNmT A E 15
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B b TR E K 102
on land use rights
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense B &R AR X WS 28,756
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - B LR EITE 1,694
Operating lease rental on land and buildings ~ +3 RiEF 7 KLBEHR S 110
Staff costs 8 TR 5,232
Research and development costs B Ak A 7
Bank interest income RITHEUA (16)
Rental income from investment properties HEMERSIWA 1,986
Net exchange loss RIE H B8 136
Annual Report 2016 1 75
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &,£2016%12 431 H L& &

12.

13.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

Net cash outflows on the Disposed Business was as follows:

12.

FEEMER =)
ZHELE BRI FEAT

2015
20154

HK$’000
TAET

Operating activities R EE (1,327)
Investing activities KEEH (110)
(1,437)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Continuing operations

Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense and included
in cost of sales

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Operating lease rental on land
and buildings

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) (note 16)

Share of income tax expense of

a joint venture

Share of income tax expense of

an associate
Net exchange loss

Net loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

13.

S L v

RERE A EHIRR TFIFIA -

Gl

R RS At AHE
DRNOVEN SRS

Wx - BERRETE

T REFZEEHERS

BTRA(BREEHE)
(Kf=E16)

e —RAERLEMERH

FEIE— B & R EHS

JHIE S B 1R

HEWE - BB KRR ER
FE

NEERF
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
HK$'000
FHET

HK$’000
TR

1,270 1,250
284,244 420,409
1,950 1,522
1,846 3,290
14,746 9,444
14,465 7,896
3,110 -
2,748 703

= 81

CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 831 H I E[E

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: nil).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of HK2 cents (2015: nil) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2016 per share has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued operations attributable to the

14.

15.

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

[ d=)

REZE2016F 12 A 31 B ILFEH
I 4 e 3% sl s ak R B2 AR 8. (2015
F )

RARERE EESRBREE
Z2016F 12 A31 HIEFE 2K H
RS AER2 BN (20155 « &) -
ZERRR S FBENE A R
RBFRGHE -

FRAR
HE RS ST I S R A TS

RABHE NBHRERBEIEEB R
FRBEUXBNERERLEER
MTHZ T HIBIRA R

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$'000

T

HK$°000
TER

Earnings &7
Earnings for the year attributable AR ESRERRAZ ARF]

to the owners of the Company for the HAANEIEFERNET]

purpose of basic earnings per share 389,130 297,981
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ~ AEENE 2 B L RRZFE -

Interest on convertible bonds ABREER A 5,601 21,990
Earnings for the year attributable Rt EERES AT 2 A AR

to the owners of the Company for the BB ANELEFERBH

purpose of diluted earnings per share 394,731 319,971
Number of shares BAEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EERERET 2

shares for the purpose of basic LR METHH

eamings per share 5,515,784,641 4,047,298,131
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ~ E#iEmifE 2 B L@k & -

Convertible bonds ARRES 459,729,151 1,893,984,514
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EEREERT 2

shares for the purpose LB S E

of diluted earnings per share 5,975,513,792 5,941,282,645
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BERER (#)

=y (et 34
AATEE AR B2
HO AR AN J 8 B R T3 T B &
W

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 15.

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of the

Company is based on the following data:

Earnings 27
Earnings for the year attributable to BRFTESRERNRE TR
KDRIHE AEIEFERNRF

the owners of the Company for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings

2016
2016

HK$'000
TER

2015
20154F
HK$’000
T

per share 389,130 297,981
Less: earnings for the year from W R EEERNERRA

discontinued operation - (94,618)
Eamings for the purpose of basic eamings ~ BRHESREARFZ AR T

per share for the year attributable BEAREERRT

to the owners of the Company 389,130 203,363
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ~ EL#iEaifE 2 B L@k o /2

Interest on convertible bonds ABREER A 5,601 21,990
Eamings for the purpose of diluted earnings R s E SREERF 2 KA T

per share for the year attributable BB ANEEARERRAF

to the owners of the Company 394,731 225,353
Number of shares REE
Weighted average number of ordinary FARETESRERRF 2 L@

shares for the purpose of basic MEFEHE

eamings per share 5,515,784,641 4,047,298,131
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ~ E#S&afE 2 Bir Limikr 2

Convertible bonds ARES 459,729,151 1,893,984,514
Weighted average number of ordinary BARTESREERF 2 LEk

shares for the purpose of diluted INFEFIE

eamings per share 5,975,513,792 5,941,282,645

1 78 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 831 H I E[E

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
From discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operation for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was earnings HK2.34 cents
per share and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued
operation was HK1.59 cents per share, based on the profit for
the year from discontinued operation of HK$94,618,000 and
the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings per share.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

From continuing operations

Salaries, allowances, other

¥ o R HAbEA

15.

16.

BERER (#)
EZEY I 34

HE2015F12A31BILFE © kB
BN EBHERELRRBTAS
B&2.34 Bl R B I B E BN E
IS 2T AEIRAF 1.59 8L -
TERR B IEFE M EBNF NG
#194,618,0007% 7T & | X F st &
BRERREERFNDTE o

BETRAS (BEESHE)

REFEMEER

2016
2016

2015
20154
HK$’000
FAT

HK$’000
FET

benefits and bonus NAE4T 12,410 8,155

Retirement benefit schemes RIREFIFT B IR
contribution 2,336 1,289
14,746 9,444

The subsidiaries in HK operate defined contribution schemes
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance which are available to
qualified employees. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the subsidiaries in independently
administered funds. Monthly contributions made by the
subsidiaries are calculated based on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under
the relevant requirements, as appropriate. The employees
are required to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up
to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employees are entitled to 100% of
the employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement
at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

BANBARIRAERERRER
SR ATE S A BIRGIHETERHE
FEtal([REEFTE)) - ZFF

EvEERNBRRCEENEY
EERTADHRTE - KEZEA
R TIIR R B AR E PRI BALAE
FBAR AN 25 T B 0 3k Bl E s
(FRERBRAME)FE - BEAR
H A # 2 5% &= 1,50078 TLF
HEER - MRS AR B R L BIME
o BEMNESERRIK - FHHTR
BARTIFEENHZE100% 2 BE
58 I LR -
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16.

STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

From continuing operations (Continued)

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Company in this country participate
in respective government retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the Schemes are calculated
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay
the ongoing required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined contribution
schemes operated in HK.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$2,336,000 (2015:
HK$1,289,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in note 34.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREXAR AR

16.

BTN (BRESEHE)
(4
RE R (48

RETEEREERZR - AAF
Z BB A2 EZIRBATRAR
B E(TZFaHE)) - &t
ZEMBARAMZFTEIFELH
R ABENEERER ZRIKE
A o [z FaBIF 2 HR TR
o B AR (I P R T AR AR A A 2
EANLEE - PEARERAR
AR AE B SI A 2 2 BUR KR
Mo REBZETE 2 BIEER
RBZ SR EIEL N -

BRAAEFIFT & BN A KB H B
BAEREREFZZETTEIARR
BREEZERHIEEEL Z #

TRAEEE -

B850k 2 #8572 2,336,000 7%
7t (20154 : 1,289,000 7T) + Al
AEERASHMERZETEE
2K o

ARRAAEEE TRIEBREL
FBERHIESS o
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17. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten
(2015: ten) directors and the chief executive were as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

17.

EERRSEHEMA L 2N

&

(@) EERFETHASME
BB+ (20154 ¢
TR)EERETEITHAE
ZE&mT
HZE2016F12A31HILFE

Other emoluments
Hihie
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus contribution Total
-4 BAER
i REMERN META Bl st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FHET THET THET
Executive directors: HITEE -
Yu Zhiping' FET - 950 - - 950
Xing Jianhua EEE - 864 - - 864
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Zhou Zhenxing AR 200 - - - 200
Fang Chunfa’ HEE 75 - - - 75
Wu Junfeng’ Rt 75 - - - 75
Chen Qiming® BRESER® 75 - - - 75
Yin Engang® FEHS 75 - - - 75
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTEE
Qiu Xianhong e 120 - - - 120
Lee Kwok Tung Louis TER 120 - - - 120
Gao Pei Ji BEE 120 - - - 120
860 1,814 - - 2,674
! Mr. Yu Zhiping was also the CEO of the Company and ! ?fiﬁ_iﬁﬁiﬁ’&ﬂﬂﬁ
his emoluments disclosed above included those for HENTE @ EXHBEE
services rendered by him as the CEO. REMNHEERERR
TERBRRITE MBS
2 Appointed on 29 June 2016. 2 ?§2016$6 A29H % &
8 Resigned on 29 June 2016. : 10201646 H29 ABHE -
¢ Mr. Liu Mingdong was appointed on 23 March 2017 ¢ §U5H§%$392017¢3H
as a non-executiue director of the Company. 2§§ ;ﬁfiﬁﬁ$’&ﬂ3£iﬂ
TEE -
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17. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 17. EERBESHMA T 2N
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued) cAC )
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EEZERFETHAEMS
(Continued) (%)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HZE2015F 12 A1 BILFE

Other emoluments
e
Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit

and other  Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus  contribution Total

; BINER
e  RAMER BfEiEa FE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THL THL

Executive directors: HITEE -
Yu Zhiping' FET - 950 = = 950
Xing Jianhua® Fgl - 444 - - 444
He Zuyuan’ faa’ - 40 - - 40
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Huang Jianming’ B 126 = - S 126
Zhou Zhenxing [FiRA 200 - - - 200
Chen Qiming RaEiEA 150 - - - 150
Yin Engang FEEH 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive directors: BUKHTES:
Qiu Xianhong g9 120 - - - 120
Lee Kwok Tung Louis HEIR 120 - - - 120
Gao Pei Ji SR 120 - - - 120
986 1,814 - - 2,800
! Mr. Yu Zhiping was also the CEO of the Company and i RETLEEMARRAL
his emoluments disclosed above included those for HERNTE  EXFARE
services rendered by him as the CEQO. BENHBED OEEE
THERERBIITE N
W< -
2 Appointed on 25 June 2015. 2 R 201546 H 25 B BHE -
8 Resigned on 25 June 2015. 3 A20154E6 A25 A EBHT °
¢ Resigned on 3 November 2015. 4 R20154 11 A3 BEHE -

CGN Mining Company Limited
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17. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
retirement benefit schemes contribution for directors is
borne by CGNPC, the ultimate parent of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“CGNPC Group”). No apportionment has been made
as the directors of the Company consider that it is
impracticable to apportion this amount between their
services to the Group and their services to CGNPC
Group.

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2015: two) were directors and the CEO
of the Company whose emoluments are included in
the disclosures in note 17(a) above. The emoluments
of the remaining three (2015: three) individuals were as
follows:

Salaries, allowances and e R R HEAMEF

17. EERBSHMA L 2B

€@

(@ EERXETHAEHS
(%)
REZE 2016 F & 2015 12

(b)

AS1HLLEFE  E=ENK
BAEF BRI ARR]
REBRRTERZEEAT
REKTE DR (il EZ
SH )AL - ARARRE
ERRIERAEE LT E
TSR BIR AR TS T 0 % 2K
B AAAT - B E AL
D o

REHMAL

RAEEREZRSHFMA
TH - WHB2015F : W
Z)BARREEREF
I8 - HEMD & Lt
F17(a)FIEHFE - 82T
=ZAL(20155F : =%)
B AT

2016
2016 &

2015
20154
HK$’000
FAIT

HK$°000
TR

other benefits 2,369 2,062
Discretionary bonus BIETEAL 88 126
Retirement benefit schemes — R{RIRAEH2IH R 323 140

contribution

2,780 2,328
The emoluments were within the following bands: HMSEATEHEN :

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

£ % 1,000,000 57T

1,000,001 % 7T % 1,500,000 & 7T

Number of
Individuals

2016 2015
2016

20154
Number of
individuals

A

2 3
1 =
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - MERRE

Leasehold
land and
buildings

HE
THRETF
HK$'000
TAT

Leasehold
improve-
ments

BEME

%65

HK$'000
TAL

Plant and
machinery

PRz Bkes
HK$'000
TEL

Motor
vehicles

&
HK$'000
TAL

Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment
fRifl - %E
R AR
HK$'000
THT

Total

fo3t
HK$'000
i

COosT KA
At 1 January 2015 1201541 A1H 47,942 5,592 83,196 9,577 12,068 168,375
Exchange realignment [ 53 AR 972) (26) (229) (48) (52) (1,327)
Additions NE = 577 108 — 178 863
Disposals = - (165) = = (185) (350)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAF (47,679) (5401)  (83,075) (9,529 (7,343 (153,021)
Transfers from investment ERRRENE
properties (note 19) (K7 19) 17,963 - - - - 17,963
At 31 December 2015 12015% 12 A31 B 17,260 577 - - 4,666 22,503
Exchange realignment [ 5 % (1,094) - - - (1) (1,121)
Additions NE - - - - B B
At 31 December 2016 #2016 128 31 B 16,166 571 - - 4,644 21,387
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z:HERRE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1A1H 36,311 4938 58313 9,018 7808 116,408
Exchange realignment [ (113) (17) (264) (34) (70) (498)
Provided for the year REERE 1,379 178 493 156 1,010 3,216
Eliminated on disposals HERKH = (160) - - (109) (269)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAF (37,146) (4827)  (58,542) (9,140) (7038  (116,693)
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31 B 431 112 - - 1,621 2,164
Exchange realignment AR (69) - - - (1) (74
Provided for the year TEERE 844 103 = - 913 1,950
At 31 December 2016 R2016E12 8318 1,212 305 - - 2,523 4,040
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 R2016 12 A 31 A 14,954 272 - - 2,121 17,347
At 31 December 2015 R2015% 12 318 16,829 465 - - 3045 20,339

CGN Mining Company Limited
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. V¥ - WENKRE &)
(Continued)

The carrying values of properties shown above comprise: i BREERE :
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiBT

Land and buildings outside REBIRINZ

HK: THREE :

Medium-term lease FREATRE 14,954 16,829
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Ltz - BRE K& E TR
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives BEEERAT A A B RF R
and rates per annum: HITE :

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the term HE+T R  IREESFHK
of the lease or 40 years B¥F 405 - AR E
B
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term HEWHEEE EHEFHNGF
of the lease or 5 years ARG & B2
Plant and machinery 10% to 20% BB R#EE  10% £ 20%
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office B HER 10%ZE27%
equipment 10% to 27% EENSg
Annual Report 2016 1 85
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19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

19. REYHE

HK$’000
FET
FAIR VALUE ARE
At 1 January 2015 ®2015F1 A1 H 117,637
Net increase in fair value recognised 2 REBZERZ A5
in profit or loss 735
Exchange realignment IR (2,422)
Disposals of subsidiaries HEHBAT (69,209)
Transferred to property, plant and EEEYE HEK&
equipment (note 18) 2t (FE18) (17,963)
At 31 December 2015 R20154 12 A31 H 28,778
Net increase in fair value recognised B R BRER Y A5t
in profit or loss 2,158
Exchange realignment b A S (1,915)
At 31 December 2016 A 201612 A31 H 29,021

The carrying value of investment properties shown above are
situated in the PRC and held under medium-term lease.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the investment properties held by Beijing
Sino-Kazakh as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date
by an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group, Avista, who has among its staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience
in the location and category of property being valued. The
valuation was arrived at on an open market value basis by
using the income approach of capitalising the net rental income
receivable from the existing tenancies and the reversionary
income potentials.

CGN Mining Company Limited

REREEXARAT

tRAFEEZREDE UL S
CREBEPHEERA -

AEBMARBEEMEREUR
B RIEENEEM G 2 FE
S ARABRAGE - X H8E
ARSI B

1b AR IS 2016 4E K 2015 6F 12
ABVBFFHEREMENRARET)
EREAREEERRE B EER
SR AEMEmATETREME
B XEmIo BT AESAEA
Zeel  BAMHMGEYER
ot Bh R E AR 2 [ EALER o 3Z{h
BEREARAMEREE  BRRERA
HETHE BREXMLKREEA
AEMES A FEREREEH
SULATEER
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair values of the investment properties held by Yugofoil
Group on the disposal date in 2015 were arrived at the basis
of a valuation carried out on the date by an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group,
Avista Valuation Advisory Limited (“Avista”), who has among
its staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued. The valuation was arrived at on an open market
value basis by using the income approach of capitalising the
net rental income receivable from the existing tenancies and the
reversionary income potentials.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The Group’s investment properties that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are
HK$29,021,000 (2015: HK$28,778,000). They are grouped
into fair value hierarchy Level 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs fair value measurements is observable.

Part of the investment properties held by Beijing Sino-Kazakh
has been transferred to owner-occupied purpose since 1
July 2015. The fair value as at the date of change in usage
of approximately HK$17,963,000 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Avista. The
valuation was arrived at on an open market value basis by using
the income approach and the reversionary income potentials.
Increase in fair value of approximately HK$465,000 was
recognised in profit or loss on the date of transfer.

19.

BREWHE &)

HEREBR2016FHENKRE
MENRRAETIER AR EE R
BB A BRB RN LN ER
AHERE AR AR (13w ]) g
T EMmER - XEBEHIBTH
TRRNEMEEE R HAEOHM
EEYRAEMmE R ELRR 2 HE
&h - RMERRARMEREE -
BRERBHEHETNHE  EBEX
EREREHENHSWAFERK
HOEAEESWAMER -

B AT — £E PR P 3 S
8 o RHENEIAAETE -
%2 BAREAEALRRS (A
-

REBZIREMHE NN TS HEREZ
DA 1E29,021,000# 7T (2015 4 -
28,778,000 )5t E  T1RAR
BEAERNEESEAAABES
& o

HoltRPRmEENIREME
R2015F7A1HEEZ=HAA
B HRNBRAAARAZAAR
{E17,963,0007% T Jh B R X ZE
ERE ANAEEERREBME
RIBARAMEEESBIRAERE
BB ATMES - AR EEINL
465,000 T Ty A 8% H HiTE 1825
PER o
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

There were no transfers between levels in fair value hierarchy for
the two years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

19. BEWXE #)

20164 K% 2015F 12 A31 H
FRTEAARBSRIE ZHNE
WEEFS o
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of EEREYESE=FARETE
investment properties: BFt

Valuation Significant
technique Key input unobservable inputs

TUBR, EEEH

AR TERAE

All Investment Income approach Income approach takes into account  Term yield and reversion yield

properties net rental income of the properties are at 6%.
derived from the existing leases and/
or achievable in the existing market
with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which
have been then capitalised to determine
the market value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate.

FrE&REY % WATE WNETE REBMEARGHER HRREXREBREER
B/ SERRTS EARRZEASK 6% -

NFE - Ae i AREE 2 BREAE

NEEERE  BREREETIAER

EAIER —EE BN R ETE

188

The fair value measurement of the investment properties
determined by using income approach is negatively correlated
to the term yield and reversion yield. A slight increase in term
yield and reversion yield used would result in a significant
decrease in fair value measurement of the properties and vice
versa.

The net increase in fair value of approximately HK$2,158,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: HK$735,000) for continuing
operations.

CGN Mining Company Limited
REZEEAR AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 20.

Cost of unlisted interest in R—Ee&EEHEZIELT

R—Eegb¥ R
2016
2016 &

2015
2015 4F
HK$’000
T

HK$’000
FERT

a joint venture FEZR RN 793,730 793,730
Share of post-acquisition results G UERIE SE4E M E A
and other comprehensive ZHAX
expenses (607,263) (655,458)
186,467 138,272

Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2016 and 2015
are as follows:

Place of

incorporations

establishment Class of
Name of entity Form of entity  and operation shares held
BREH BRr TR REENE  FrieRGER
Semizbay-U Limited liability ~ Kazakhstan Ordinary shares

partnership

VNG EREEAY  WERMA LEk

Summarised financial information of material joint
ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s joint
venture is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

AN ENI0I6EI2AZI B R
20154 12 A 31 BHIEBOT ¢

Percentage of

ownership held

by the Group

KEEfI5#HE  Principal activities

BA TEERES

49% Extraction, preliminary
processing and sale
of uranium oxide on

Semizbay and Irkol

fields
49% R A MIREEE
Semizbay J Irkol & 15
k=Kl
BEAGECENKERYE

AEEECERENUBERER
FHIITX » TXHBEERIETD
BELFEREFEMHHRELEM
B TSR TR SR ©

RULFREMBHRERT - fEDRE
AR TR
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20. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 20. R—HEEeErEiERmw)

Semizbay-U ENG)
2016
2016 2015 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Current assets BB E 275,161 207,392
Non-current assets EmBEE 530,924 550,317
Current liabilities mENEE 358,813 355,506
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 66,727 120,016
The above amounts of assets and FhEEREESRE
liabilities include the following: BIETY
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHEEE 8,352 12,991
Current financial liabilities mEIE BB E
(excluding trade and other (B IEFEBR R E A
payables and provisions) FEAS SRIE R B A5 ) 289,844 264,943
Non-current financial liabilities ERHERAR
(excluding trade and other (TEEEMERR A
payables and provisions) FET FRIE N B 6,005 27,648
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
Revenue e 551,941 786,887
Profit for the year N [ g A 90,970 10,938
Other comprehensive income AEFEMZEmPEA ()
(expenses) for the year 7,388 (204,365)
Total comprehensive income AREZHEZEWA (F%)
(expenses) for the year 98,358 (193,427)
1 90 CGN Mining Company Limited

REREEXARAT
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INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Semizbay-U (Continued)

The above profit for the year include the following:

R—BegbE ER 2

WAE (&)

IR M BRI

2016 2015

2016 2015 4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

Depreciation and amortisation PrE REY 88,941 113,549
Interest income 2 U A 720 1,017
Interest expense B 20,206 43,233
Income tax expense TS 29,520 16,115

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in the joint venture is set out

as below:

HRAERRZBETH A

SEEEEENEENT

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

HK$’000 HK$’000

TEIT FAT

Net assets of Semizbay-U HAREEFE 380,545 282,187
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ AREEE A A

interest in Semizbay-U A RE R L 1) 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AREBERH AR

interest in Semizbay-U H SR BR (B 186,467 138,272

No contingent liabilities incurred related to the Group’s interest
in a joint venture.

AEER—HAECENERLE

KARME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21, A—EHELECER
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Cost of listed interest in R—EEE b EmEs
an associate (Note 39) Z A (FtsE39) 453,924 -
Share of post-acquisition profit FEMRUREB & m T R H b 2 M Uk
and other comprehensive (FzEa)
income (Note a) 62,743 —
Share of other reserve R E b fE 3,649 -
520,316 =
2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FATT
Market value of the interest in R —E L A
the listed associate ZHE 360,096 -
Details of the associate as at 31 December 2016 are as follows: R2016 6 12 31 B 2B &b 35F
BT -
Place of Percentage of
incorporations ownership held
establishment Class of by the Group
Name of entity Form of entity  and operation shares held KEBfE Principal activities
BREH BREp TR REENE  FrieRGER FEEAM IEEKED
Fission Corporation Canada Common shares  19.98% (Note ¢) ~ Acquisition and
(2015: nil) development of
exploration and
evaluation assets
Fission % JIIEYN TER 19.98% (fititc) WERFEMIRR

(20154 : 4) TEBE

1 92 CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Fission was acquired by the Company on 27 January 2016.
Details of the acquisition are set out in note 39.

As at 31 December 2016, the management of the Group
reviewed the interest in an associate for impairment and
determined that interest in an associate is impaired based on a
valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer, HF Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“HF”). The fair value
of exploration right held by Fission is arrived on a fair value less
costs to sell by using the comparable transaction approach
and adjusting the uranium price. The fair value is categorised
as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy. The key inputs
used in level 3 fair value measurement are the comparable
transactions, uranium prices and the indicated resources of
uranium.

During the year, the market uranium price decreased, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$220,032,000 was
recognised and included in the share of results of an associate
for the current year.

The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Fission
because it has appointed two out of the nine directors of
Fission under the terms stated in the subscription agreement
entered into by the Company and Fission on 11 January 2016
(“Subscription Agreement”).

During the year, Fission issued approximately 263,000 ordinary
shares upon exercise of share options granted to the directors
and employees of Fission under the share option schemes of
Fission. As a result, the Group’s interest in Fission reduced in
aggregate by 0.01% (2015: N/A). The effect on the deemed
disposal of partial interest in Fission is minimal. No loss on
deemed disposal is recognised.

The market value of the Group’s interest in an associate

disclosed above is based on the quoted market price available

on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “FCU”, which
is level 1 input in terms of HKFRS 13.

R—EEREcEER D)
MI5E -

(@ ANAER2016F 1 A 27 Asep ki
Fission © & #E MM 739 o

R2016F 128310 A& B E
BEEEMN MBS SE 2 ESR
8 WIREE L& IR E A ERD
BT A RERER AR ([EE])
FrEEfTH(SEME T MIE ° Fission
BENBREZ ARBERATE
HEARIR AR ERE SRR
BRAESHHENE=H - F=
FMARETENEZHASIE AT
BHBRRS - HEKEESHEHE
IR o

FAN BRAAHERTH® &
220,032,000 7 7T Ky 8 (B /&5 18 I A
FENEGL MBS CEEERRE

(b) AEEE FissionfT{EEAFE - T
AR IR ZN A B B Fission 74 2016 4
1B 11 BRI M RE R ([RER
=D YIARGRR - AEBEERN
HFission EEPEEMNEES ©

©) F W FissionfTFEARR KB A4
SrEMEEEREES R FRERE
% » 3£1749263,000 f% @R ©
It ANEEE A Fission FUHEZE S 2R
20.01% (20154 : &) - RIELE
B64 Fission ARAERI R/ 2 15 8L ©
BIEH &R EMEERES -

PR AN BN — R b
BENMEDNREZRZESFRS
PR RS FCU" ARz & (BIst
BBV BREERNF1HTM S HE
—REWABIE) MEERT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

21.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21.

Summarised financial information of a material associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associate is set out below. The summarised financial

information below represents amounts shown in the

associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.

N—EEErE R 2
BABEOE S HBEREE

BRASEEABECE CMBE
FHEZEFIINT o T ATt 2 B 75
ERBR RS D ERBERM
B &R R B 2 B 5 R P AR

T e

LB ECENEAMBHRRTERA
AN °

Fission Fission
2016
2016 &
HK$’000
FET
Current assets BB E 290,573
Non-current assets ERBNEE 2,565,665
Current liabilities mENEE 2,732
Non-current liabilities ERHAER 249,321

The above amounts of assets and FHEEREBELEBIETY
liabilities include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents Re kReEHEEE 288,769

Current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other
payables and provisions)

nBEREAE (TEREEMNERR
Ko B e A5 SRR e k)

Non-current financial liabilities
(excluding trade and other
payables and provisions)

FRBEBAE(TEERMENX
e B Ath A< R TE B 48 )

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 21. R—EHEhEIER )
Fission (Continued) Fission (&)
2016
2016
HK$’000
FHET
Revenue Wz =
Loss for the year AEEEE (41,645)
Other comprehensive AEFHAA S
income for the year 147,441
Total comprehensive REFZ A EWES
income for the year 105,796
Other reserve for the year IS E A 18,261
124,057
The above loss for the year include the following: L AFEEBEERET
2016
2016 FF
HK$’000
FBT
Depreciation and amortisation YT N 732
Interest income 2 U A 3,168
Interest expense FBERXZ -
Income tax expense ez 15,566
Annual Report 2016 1 95
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H L& &

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21. R—EHEbE R E)
Fission (Continued) Fission (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to _E AR D 2 2 RES B TS A R
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate is set out as SHEMEMEMNSERDOT ¢
below:
2016
2016 &
HK$’000
FExT
Net assets of Fission Fission & ) 5B 2,604,185
Proportion of the Group’s ZNE B/ Fission HYREZS L 1
ownership interest in Fission 19.98%
Carrying amount of the Group’s RE B Fission HYE S FBREI{E
interest in Fission 520,316
No contingent liablities incurred related to the Group’s interest REEN— RS DR AR
in an associate. HARBE -
22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, FEWERRF K HMEWFRIE
2016 2015
2016 £F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Trade and bills receivables (Note (a))  FEUBRFN M FEUEETE (Fi 5 (@) 4,738 125,800
Less: impairment loss recognised in 3 : FEWBE TR~ B FEZRE
respect of trade receivables 518 (MI5E (b))
(Note (b)) _ _
4,738 125,800
Prepayments, deposits and TERFE -~ e RHALEU
other receivables (Note (c)) 38 (M () 4,148 59,921
8,886 185,721
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances. AR BN Bk % E A A A R
Han o
1 96 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 831 H ILE[E

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

At 31 December 2016, trade and bills receivables represents
amount due from the immediate holding company, China
Uranium Development.

The movements in impairment loss of trade receivables were
as follows:

22.

FE Wi Bl 7K . L fth P WL RROR
(#)

Bt %

Rt

(a) HZE2016F 12 A31 B + FEIERK
REWRERE ER—HEEER
AR BEHEREAE

(b) FEM R SURE S IR B AN T

At 1 January M®1A18 - 4,330
Exchange realignment P 5 AR = (18)
Eliminated on disposals R EHE A B

of subsidiaries - (4,312)
At 31 December ®12A31H = =

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were no impairment
loss provided.

At 31 December 2016, included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables are HK$88,000 (2015: HK$3,577,000) due
from an intermediate holding company, CGNPC-URC.

At 31 December 2015, included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables was approximately HK$16,764,000
(equivalent to Canadian dollar (“CAD”) 3,000,000) for deposit
paid for the acquisition of 19.99% equity interest of Fission
pursuant to the Subscription Agreement which is detailed
in note 21. The deposit was transferred as a part of cost of
investment during the year ended 31 December 2016 which is
detailed in note 39.

R20164F 2015412 A31 A, A&
EEW AR ERE B LS -

(© M2016F 12 431 H * A FIE »
e RHE MR IE 0 E— M
PERA B B E R RAFIEN
88,000/87T (20154 : 3,577,000/8
JT) °

R2015F 12 831 A  FBFIE -
Re REAMERRABRIERER
e RS Fission 19.99% A% FT Sz f+
HI5] € %9 16,764,00078 7T (A& R
3,000,000 1n7e) (G EE21) ©
H =20164F 128318 It & ¥ -
BTSRRI ERARN —I D
(FHLAAMIEES9) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, FEWERF R H i EWFIE
(Continued) (&)
The Group normally grants to its trade customer credit periods AREBRAAMDBIRTEE S
for natural uranium segment ranging from 25 days to 30 days BEEHRRZEEBNTF258E30H
(2015: 25 days to 30 days) after delivery dates. (20154 : 25HZE30H )H=EH] -
The following is an ageing analysis of the trade and bills RREHEEER - AEKEER
receivables presented based on the invoice date, which AHRENZEZEHEARE - EUL
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates, at the RRRERERRR DT o

end of the reporting period.

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Within 30 days 30K 4,738 125,800
The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated AEBENEHAEEERENGEEEI
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant SN EHETI (B 2 FEU R K R H A e
group entities are set out below: WERIELR T
HK$°000 RMB’000 CDN$’000
THT ARETR Tz
Presented in: 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
FIRA 2016 £ 20154 2016 20154 2016 £ 20154
Trade and other FEURBR T R E At
receivables FEW TR 433 35,850 3,061 2,991 - 3,000
1 98 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B ILEE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, CGNPC
Huasheng Investment Limited (“Huasheng”) and A izt
75, fellow subsidiaries of the Company, performed certain
treasury activities for the Group and CGNPC Group. Pursuant
to the arrangement, the fellow subsidiaries receive funds from
the Group, pool the funds together with funds from CGNPC
Group companies and provide intra-group financial services
for the Group and CGNPC Group. The fellow subsidiaries will
reimburse interest to the Group with reference to the prevailing
market interest rate. At 31 December 2016, the Group has
approximately HK$1,080,871,000 (2015: HK$476,586,000)
and HK$76,000 (2015: HK$2,000) due from Huasheng and
m EH% 8115 respectively under this arrangement. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group earned
interest income amounting to approximately HK$4,177,000
(2015: HK$6,221,000) and HK$96,000 (2015: HK$98,000)
from Huasheng and #EZBf 7% respectively under this
arrangement.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-bearing ranging from
0.06% to 1.36% (2015: 0.54% to 1.35%) per annum and
repayable within one year according to terms of deposit
agreements.

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable within a specified credit term.

The Group’s amounts due from (to) fellow subsidiaries that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

23.

R () B AKMEARK
|

#H £2016F %2015 12 A31H
LEFE PEZEREEBRA
B[R] RPEZMBATE
ERtEZEEH#ETE THMER
&) o BIR%HE - ARWBAREAR
EEKNMES HESEFPER
SEMNERES  WAAEER
FEZEBRHEEEANB SR
Bo-REMBRARBELXRER
BTG FRRAEBEEMNFE -
R2016F 128318 AEE R
B LBER FEWCEE R & P B
X I8 #91,080,871,0007% 7t (2015
4 : 476,586,000 T ) & 76,000
78 JT(20154F : 2,000/ 7T ) ° &
E2016FE12A31B IEFE - K
EERBZZHESRINERRPE
1% B 75 B ER 1) B R A 49 4,177,000
77T (2015 4F : 6,221,000/ 70) &
96,0007 JL(20154F : 98,0007
JT) °

FIETYEEAR - 120.06% £ 1.36%
(20154F : 0.54% % 1.35% ) FEH)
FH = B RIBBF R B IGKE
R—FRNEE -

NI R IEEPNCIE/SEDEE 3 i
TEEERRIBEE WEEMHRK o

AREE R () R AR HT B A RFIR
MBS EERELRBZIESR
WIS KB FIEFFIANT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW 23. EW(T) BRAMEB QTR
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) e
HK$'000 RMB’000
TR ARET R
Presented in: 2015 2016 2015
WRE: 20154 2016 & 20154F
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries KR ZNBATZIE 496,577 326,544 68 1
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERRI A B A nlZUE - = - 2,232
24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24, RITHEFRRE
At 31 December 2016, bank balances comprise of R2016F12 4318 R1T& T
bank balance of approximately HK$40,906,000 (2015: B 15 IR 17 45 17 940,906,000 7% 7T
HK$285,518,000). Bank balances carry interest at average (20154 : 285,518,000 7T ) ° R
market rate of 0.15% (2015: 0.22%) per annum. THEFIZETEFHEFNEI5%

(20154F : 0.22%) 51 8. °

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in AEENBBEEEEBEEEU
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant INZEBTIEZRITHEFERIREM
group entities are set out below: T~
HK$°000 RMB’000 USD’000 CAD’000
Tz ARET T TER Tz

Presented in: 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

FIRA 2016F 20154 2016 20165 20165 2015 2016F 20154

Bank balances BOEERES

and cash 1,466 1,862 28,443 29,930 905 945 - 41535
200 CGN Mining Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25, FE(ERF R EMENSFE

2016 2015

2016 § 20154

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET AT

Trade and bills payables FETBR TN M FE N 24 1,419 42,637
Accrued expenses and FERTF S R E A AT RUE

other payables 7,384 3,816

8,803 46,453

At 31 December 2016, included in trade and bills payables
is amount of approximately HK$1,419,000 (2015: HK$
42,637,000) due to a joint venture of the Company,
Semizbay-U.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period:

Within 30 days 30 AN

R2016F12 A31H » B BR X
K e E B4 /1,419,000 7T
(20154F : 42,637,000/ It ) & &
RAEARBZEEREM AR
1A o

RBEHEAER @ BIRRZE A H
277 ERBERREN RS 2 R
DT

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TATT

1,419 42,637

The average credit period on purchases of goods was 30 days
(2015: 30 days) after delivery date. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit time frame.

FEERCTHEERAIERE
30K (20154 : 30K) - KEEE
BV ERREEBUR - LR
BREMNRENEERNEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

25.

26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant

group entities are set out below:

25.

FE A B 7k I HL fth PB4 FKOR
(#)

7tk B LA R AT AL B A
Sz WA 2 B AR R EL A A
IHRERT ;

HK$°000 RMB’000 Pound sterling
FET AR¥T (“GBP”) 000
T 5L s

Presented in: 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HIRA 2016F 20154 2016F 2015F 20164F 20154
Trade and other FERTBR X K2 EAth

payables FEt FIE 2,799 1,790 838 978 - 7
AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) AN 26. W () —BEPEEZERD

INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due from an intermediate holding company
represents the rental receivable from CGNPC-URC.

The amount due to an intermediate holding company
represents unsettled amount of management service provided
by and the expenses paid by CGNPC-URC on behalf of the
Group.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free, and repayable within
a specified credit period.

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT

B IR

JE U — 8 P R AR 2 B SRR BB U
hEZEEEREE -

JE A — R rp PR A R SRR BN P &
iR B RAANRE RN
RNEEEERKE -

ZARTEER - Tt ERARE R
ZIFROEERR

=
=23
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

AMOUNT DUE FROM (TO) AN
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY
(Continued)

The Group’s amount due from (to) an intermediate holding
company that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

Presented in:

SRR

M — R R A R FUR

Amount due from an intermediate

26. FEW () — B EERA
AIFIE (#)

REB Y () — AR A E
AR EBERELRE 2T
REERINZ EEIERTIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

HK$'000
BETT

2016 2015 2016 2015
2016

20154 2016 20154

holding company - = 2,370 8,440
Amount due to an intermediate J (~f —FSeh AL A B ZE
holding company - 3,146 11,841 7,040

AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the amount represents
other taxes in relation to purchase of natural uranium
resources from Semizbay-U, a joint venture of the Company,
charged by the local government of Semizbay-U. The
amount is reimbursed to Semizbay-U in accordance with a
purchase agreement entered into between the Company and
Semizbay-U. Included in the amount as at 31 December 2016
was approximately HK$301,000 of the other payable for the
delay of settlement of trade payable.

The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
a specified credit period.

27. BY—HESELENRER

R2016F KX 2015F 12 A31H * #%
FIEEBABARREERESHN
AIRBRAMERMZAHHARE
AT H) AR IR o 5% IE TR &
RNAREF AR AEE BEM
SAHAT © B A2016F 12 A 31
H X} IE A 2049301,000 7% 7T A AT
BEAENERR 2 HMERNK -

BRSEER - T EMRETERE
EHREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 431 H I & &

28. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015,

1 January 2016 and
31 December 2016

28. BRZA

Number of
shares Amount

REEE =8

BREEO0.01BITZ EE

JATE ¢
M20151 818 -

2015412 A31 8 -

20161 A1 B K

HK$000
TAT

A

2016412 A 31 H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRARE
At 1 January 2015 R20159F1 A1H 3,332,586,993 33,326
Issue of shares upon conversion REBH AR E 5
of convertible bonds 21 TRR (D 1,304,347,826 13,043
At 31 December 2015 and ®2015412 A31H
1 January 2016 K 201641 A1H 4,636,934,819 46,369
Issue of shares upon conversion PABEIR ARG (S 5
of convertible bonds R 21T AR 1,304,347,826 13,044
Placing and subscription of new shares Ao &R 659,400,000 6,594
At 31 December 2016 R20164F 12 A31 H 6,600,682,645 66,007

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$300,000,000 and HK$300,000,000 were converted into
1,304,347,826 and 1,304,347,826 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
and HK$0.01 each at a conversion price of HK$0.23 and
HK$0.23 per share respectively.

On 8 November 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with an independent third party for subscription of
an aggregate 659,400,000 new shares of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$0.52 per share. The gross proceeds
raised amounted to HK$342,888,000 (before transaction
costs of approximately HK$2,959,000) and resulted in the net
increase in share capital and share premium of approximately
HK$6,594,000 and HK$333,335,000 respectively. The
subscription was completed on 13 December 2016. Details of
the subscription are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 9 November 2016 and 13 December 2016.

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT

REZE2016F & 2015F 12 31 H
IEFE - A& A $£/4300,000,000
78571 5%.300,000,00078 7T A AT AR &
FoRlRERESIR023B T KT
f%0.23 7 7T % #1451,304,347,826 %
1:.1,304,347,826 IR & E 5 0.01 78
JCN 0.01 B ITH TR o

2016411 A8H » ARG H—
BEILFE=FARBESRE
19 0.52 % TR & $£ 659,400,000
BRANA RIFTAR D T 5] S R BB Wk o
FIT{S 3k 18 42 52 3% = 342,888,000 7
TC (R EF AR F K 72N 492,959,000
BIT)  BERARRGEESD 5
8% 15 7% 8 0 496,594,0008 7T M
333,335,000/ 7T © sRMER 2016 F
12 13 B 5ERK ° R Z 5155
RARF HEA2016511 FOH K&
2016 12 A 13 HH AL °
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016412 831 H I E[E

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. A (#)

All the ordinary shares issued during the year ended 31 REZE2016F K 201512 A31H
December 2016 and 2015 rank pari passu with the then IFFEFRADEITH L B S RS
existing shares in all respects. REBRMONRE HEZERMAL
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. AARES

On 18 August 2011, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “CB”) in principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 to China Uranium Development. The CB are
denominated in HK$. The CB entitled the holder to convert
the CB in full or in part (in an amount of HK$1,000 and integral
multiples thereof) into the ordinary shares of the Company at
any time on or after the date of issue of the CB up to seven
days prior to the maturity date on 17 August 2016 at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.23 per share, subject to adjustments.
If the CB had not been converted, it would be redeemed on 17
August 2016 at its principal amount.

The CB contained two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element was presented in equity heading
“equity component of convertible bonds”. The fair value of the
liability component is calculated as the present value of the
stream of future cash flows. The effective interest rate of the
liability component is 5.43% per annum. The movement of the
liability component of the CB for the year is set out below:

ARATEF201148 A 18 H [7)9 Bl
B R I1T AN %8 4 600,000,000
Bz EBAMRES ([T #]ER
&%) o AIRRRES OB TATE o
AMRESFEE A ER TS
REH Bz 2 EEEZF A
(20164F8 A17 H )R- H Z (E{AIkF
Mg TR ESBES B (£58
71,0008 70 & B EREE)1RY)5
EIREFNR0.23/8 0 (7] T A% )&
BARRREBIRARD o WAREE
®RAMRES - AR 201668 A
17 AUAE ARG EEER -

ARBESEEMED - AENE
;AR o A O R [AIHARES
sy | BN ZERARZS - B
BRSO RABEBARKRERE LR
Bt E - AEID ZERNERBF
M 5.43% ° TR ETIFA A HEAR
BEFAEFD 22

HK$’000
FTET

At 1 January 2015 201561 11 549,507
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HER SR (FE10) 21,990
Conversion of shares (note 33) H AR (FzE33) (281,564)
At 31 December 2015 R20154F 12 A31 H 289,933
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HEN ST (FiEE10) 5,601

Conversion of shares (note 33) HAaR ) (FsE33) (295,534)

At 31 December 2016 M2016512 831 H -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &,£2016%12 431 H L& E

30. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior year:

30.

Change in

fair value

of land and
buildings

and
investment
properties
THREF
URRENEZ
ZIHENE AAEED
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT  THR

Accumulated

tax depreciation

IEFERIE

T BRAEE BB R
T EEERIER ERAENRAM
28

Change in
fair value of
properties
upon transfer
to investment

properties venture

NFERZE -HaE

REN=KZ tE
NAERD i @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAT

Interest
in a joint

At1 January 2015 R2015%1A1R 7,382 6,277 3,375 3,399 20,383
Charged to profit or loss MERETA 462 261 - 1,049 1,772
Transfer from investment ftrEnFEE

properties to property, mE - BE LK

plant and equipment 2,341 (2,341) - - -
Eliminated on disposals of HENBA AR

subsidiaries (7,073 (201) (3,377) - (10,651)
Exchange realignment B iR (139) (269) 2 (239) (645)
At 31 December 2015 2015612 A31 R 2,928 3,727 = 4,209 10,859
(Credited) charged to profitorloss ~ #MEzs (T ) 315 (114) 540 = 5,028 5,454
Exchange realignment B (171) (260) = 477) (908)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12 531 H 2,638 4,007 - 8,760 15,405

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$63,685,000 (2015:
HK$60,858,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the tax losses of approximately HK$63,685,000 (2015:
HK$60,858,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$63,685,000 (2015: HK$60,858,000) that will expire after
five years from the year of assessment to which they relate to.

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEZEEAR AT

RFEHELEER  AEEAH
R R B 2 R B A B IE S
1847 463,685,000 78 7T (2015 4 :
60,858,000/ 7T) B & BRI K
HOw I HR - I £ 4) 63,685,000
7 70 (20154 : 60,858,000/ T ) 2
HEBBEAECHEELE - RER
FiE k518 49 63,685,000 7T (2015
% 1 60,858,000 7T) M ELELFRRE 2
ABEERTAFEER
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER
COMMON CONTROL

The Group adopted merger accounting for common control
combinations in respect of the acquisition of Beijing Sino-
Kazakh during the year ended 31 December 2015.

On 16 May 2014, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with CGNPC-URC to acquire 100% equity interest
of Beijing Sino-Kazakh at a consideration of approximately
HK$1,030,899,000. The acquisition was completed on 15 April
2015.

The ultimate parent of the Company and Beijing Sino-Kazakh
is CGNPC and the aforesaid transactions are regarded as
business combinations under common control.

No significant adjustments were made to the net assets and net
results of the above entities as a result of the common control
combination to achieve consistency of accounting policies.

31.

HEZEHT 2% 66

ANEEFGEZE2015F12 A31 B 1k
FEU R A IS ShAY L RE S &
HENEHETE o

R2014F5 8168 » A QRS Eh
Bz R RN E R BRI
U AL R MG 8 2 100% A% AE @ X
B #41,030,899,000/8 7T ° Z MW
BB 20154 4 A 15 B °

EA/NCIVS S ARGl =F i ol =SS SYNC]
SPEZE R B A HKEE
BT ZEBAG -

R AFEEI & H R ERE SR
2B B ER B ERFE
ENFEEFRENAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &,£2016%12 431 H L& &

31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 31. HEEFH T 2E£KE Bt
COMMON CONTROL (continued) (%)

FEE 2015 12 A31 B IFFE3
A7 HEEH T 2 EBA M mE AR
E@MN 20154 12 A 31 B 2Bk
SAREZE2015F 12 A31 HILSF
B2 FEFTERABRRMIENT ¢

Statements of adjustments for business combinations under
common control occurred during the year ended 31 December
2015 on the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2015
and the results for the year ended 31 December 2015 were

summarised as follows:

The Group
including
Beijing
The Group Sino-Kazakh
excluding Beijing and
Sino-Kazakh and excluding
discontinued Beiing  Adjustments  discontinued
operation  Sino-Kazakh (Note) operation
REETER REEAHEL
Bl ) REBHETE
FEEUER LRl BB BERELER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TR TAT
Year ended 31 HE015F12A31 ALLFE
December 2015
Revenue BEH 700,391 3,031 - 703,422
Profit before taxation BT AR A 250,082 3,201 - 253,283
Income tax expense FERSm (48,067) (1,853) - (49,920)
Profit for the year REEEF] 202,015 1,348 - 203,363
As at 31 December 2015 1201551231 B
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,034,110 184,178 (1,030,899) 187,389
Current assets nYEE 911,944 45,967 - 957,911
Total assets BEE 1,946,054 230,145 (1,030,899 1,145,300
Current liabilities mEAE 369,941 4,850 - 374,791
Non-current liabilities =N 1563 10,706 - 10,859
Total liabilties Bafm 370,094 15,556 - 385,650
NET ASSETS FEE 1,575,960 214,589 (1,030,899 759,650
Capital and reserves BARGHE
Share capital AN 46,369 944,534 (944,534) 46,369
Reserves @ 1,529,591 (729,945) (86,369) 713,281
Equity attributable to owners AT A e
of the Company 1,575,960 214,589 (1,030,899) 759,650
Non-controlling interests JEERRRERS . - - .
TOTAL EQUITY B 1,575,960 214,589 (1,030,899) 759,650
208 CGN Mining Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 831 H I E[E

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS UNDER 31.

COMMON CONTROL (continued)

Note: The adjustment represents elimination of the share capital
of Beijing Sino-Kazakh against their investment costs. The
differences have been recorded in other reserve as at 31
December 2015.

The effects of adopting merger accounting for common
control combination on the Group’s basic profit per share from
continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2015
were as follows:

HEZS T 2¥% S 6
(#)

Bz :  FARIEIL R R AR A EEIRE K
AHIESE - R2015F 12 A31 H=
FEENEMEEAR -

HEBAEEREZ 20155612 A
1AL FERFEEEHTRER
w2 FEEEHIE RS e 5

EZRBERMAT

2015

20154

HK cents

il

Figures before adjustments TR B 4.99
Adjustments arising on common E RS & 6

control combination E4 7R 0.03

Restated figures after adjustments AR 2 BHIIE 5.02

Annual Report 2016
ZE—NFFR

209



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &,£2016%12 431 H L& &

32. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. HEMEBQT
As set out in note 12, on 25 March 2015, the Group entered a0 BY sE12P0 B2 K 0 1020164 3
into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its 100% A25R » REBEFTHE RIEKE
equity interest in Yugofoil Group, to an independent third party B MBMYE=FHEHEREL
for a total consideration of HK$101,250,000. BREEZZHEE BRER
101,250,000 JT °
Included in HK$101,250,000, there was (i) a consideration BYBEB=ZFANBHERE
for the disposal of 100% equity interests in Yugofoil at 101,250,00078 7T & & (1) 1 & 4
HK$61,250,000 and (i) an assignment of an advance owing to = R 100% f% # # %5 61,250,000

the Group by Yugofoil of HK$40,000,000 to an independent
third party.

ALK ()R RATHER AR E
40,000,000 87T ©

HK$°000
FERT

The net assets of Yugofoil Group at

HwEREERHE RS

the date of disposal were as follows: ZEBEEFENAT
Intangible assets W EE 134
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 36,328
Investment properties KEWE 69,209
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights b /(& FRETE( A E 208 19,040
Inventories T8 38,175
Trade and other receivables P WS AR R % B A P W kIR 35,360
Bank balances and cash WITEF MRS 15,277
Trade and other payables FEFBRFR N A A 3R IR (112,857)
Value added tax payable FERTIZ(ER (237)
Income tax payable FERTPTIS TR (4,624)
Amount due to ultimate holding company FE B ARIRRR A B FRIE (40,000)
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIES & (10,651)
Net assets disposed of Pt EEEFE 45,154
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMB AR 2 M
Consideration received and receivable B EWKRE
Cash received 2R S 66,250
Deferred cash consideration LR BB
(included in other receivable) (GT AEAth U GRIA) 35,000
101,250
Total consideration BRE 101,250
Net assets disposed of FrtE&EFE (45,154)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect  H RN EB AR EEFE 2 E5HE N,
of the net assets of the subsidiaries ERNKEWNEB AT
reclassified from equity to profit or loss ZIEHI R A R B
on loss of control of the subsidiary oIk Sy 81,270
Non-controlling interests R 1,674
Assignment of amounts due R S R E IR
from Yugofoil Group (40,000)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W 99,040
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZESRAFRE
Cash consideration received YIRS RE 66,250
Bank balances and cash disposed of L ERTEFELE S (15,277)
50,973

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEREXAR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31
December 2015 contributed approximately HK$35,221,000
and HK$4,400,000 to the Group’s revenue and net loss for the
year respectively.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the bondholder
converted convertible bonds in aggregate principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 (2015: HK$300,000,000) at the
conversion price of HK$0.23 (2015: HK$0.23) per share
whereby a respective total number of 1,304,347,826
(2015: 1,304,347,826) conversion shares were issued. As
a result of the conversion, share capital and share premium
of the Company have been increased by approximately
HK$13,044,000 and HK$351,904,000 respectively (2015:
HK$13,043,000 and HK$337,934,000 respectively) while
the carrying amount of the convertible bonds and the equity
component of convertible bonds have been decreased
by approximately HK$295,534,000 and HK$69,414,000
respectively (2015: HK$281,564,000 and HK$69,413,000
respectively).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting held on 2 June 2010, a new share option scheme
(2010 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted. Details of which
were set out in the Company’s circular dated 27 April 2010.

32.

33.

34.

HEMB AT #)

H E2015F12A31 A L F [E -
HEWBATRAFEHAEH
B & R REEBFES R ERL
35,221,0007% 7T }.4,400,000/ 7T °

FEFRESRS

NEZE 201612 A31 BILFE
BEHFEARLBESR0.23E
JL(20154F 1 0.23787L) R A&
# A #£ 5300,000,00078 7T (2015
£F : 300,000,000 7t ) #) 7] # f%
&% - Bt £ 3171,304,347,826
% (2015 4F : 1,304,347,826 % )
B o AR A ATIRIRERE - 7]
BRREFRAIBLRESERD S
Y BR E 1B 5 51 RL 2> £ 295,534,000
% JT 69,414,000 7T (2015
F : 5 Bl £281,564,0007% 7T &
69,413,000/ 7T ) * AN A AIHIRR AN
KWt im(B 7 Rl Hn49 13,044,000
7 7T }&3851,904,0007% 7T (2015
F: 5 5l £13,043,000% 7T &
337,934,000587T) °

RS

BIER 2010F 6 A2 AHR/TZIRE
RAERE LBRA—HERAZRER -
RNR P E R — BB ER S
(Te0105 R #ERT 2 ) - BT
BEHNA AT HE201064 H27H
i A
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34.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The board of directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant option to the eligible participant including any
employees, any non-executive directors, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture partners and
any shareholders of any members of the Group or any invested
entities or any holders of any securities issued by any members
of the Group or any invested entities. The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted under its share option scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of its issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the 2010 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of passing the relevant resolution
adopting the share option scheme unless it is approved by
shareholders in a general meeting of the Company. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the options to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares in issue unless it is approved by shareholder
in a general meeting of the Company. Any grant of options
under the share option scheme to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates must be approved by independent non-
executive directors (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is the grantee of the options). Any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, in any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no share
options were granted, cancelled or exercised.

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZEEER AT

34.

B El (2

RAREFSAWEREGERRE
EFEEERE - RIEAEEERK
BRAIEREERE 2 IEE
FRNTES EF - HEF T
F - B - BRA - EEBHERR
Ry AEBEEML B R R FIFIRE
ERMBITIELFZIFAA - BEIT
EAREA A R AR R Bk AN A A
FTER AN () L b BB AR A T B AT IS
BEARME T A BE BIT 2 AN A RIIR (D L
B AREZTEBBARRTE
BT Z 30% ° BEITHERE
2010 FF BB AR #E 51 B R AR &R B (£ ]
H {th BB AR AR AT BIFT I L BB AR A T ]
BERITZ DB - TSBIBEM
BRiETE 2 ERRERERER
BB BTN Z 10% * BRIEARRR
RARBRRA S HERIVERIGR © Br
ERA DB RA SRR M -
GRIBRE AR HEENEMI12
8 AR IR AR AT BT 2 AR 1D 48
BRZABEHEITRNZ1% ° BIF
BRETERARREMNES - £
ZITRABSFERRERFEESH
2 A T R AR RS
FENITE S (T RIER A BERER
BAZBMNIENTES) 280k -
M RAEM12@ B BB R AR R Z
FTERRABI N TESFTHHS
EEZEBATIREZBRER
BEBETRMDZ01% KAERES
5,000,000 77t (1RIFAR D % H B
Bz WmEE)  AERAQF
PR A S IERR AL -

RELZE2016F K 2015512 A31H
IEFE - MER - T
IR AR A o
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (@)
financial statements, the Group had the following

35. FBALRS

BRRAGEAVHHRRAE
i T WEEIN  AEE
FREBBALEHELIN

material transactions with related parties during the

year: THEARS :
2016 2015
2016 20155
HK$°000 HK$'000
THx TAT
Sales of natural uranium AR ERHEEREE
resources to CGNPC-URC RAHER U} - 297
Sales of natural uranium AR BERREHRE
resources to China Uranium KAMER
Development (i 705,556 700,094
Purchases of natural uranium BHAARBE
resources from Semizbay-U AAHER (i) 282,024 416,892
Other taxes related to BHEHDA
purchases of natural uranium BERRHE R
resources from Semizbay-U HifiE (i) 2,220 3,293
Management fee paid e ERBERRERE
to CGNPC-URC (i) 5,467 3,359
Interest income from overdue REZMEEERY
receivable from FEMRER SR 2 FI B I
CGNPC-URG 0 - 3514
Loan interest income EREF WA
from Huasheng (v) 4177 6,221
Loan interest income from R EZEI®  REREREZ 2 FIEMA (vii) 9 98
Rental income from RETEGHEEEZ
CGNPC-URC HEBA () 2,193 3,081
Trade deposit interest income REHAAES
form Semizbay-U EAFFE S UA (i) 161 3,326
Compensation for delay of settlement  BIEIfE R BE 17 (&
of trade payable (il 301 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &,£2016%12 431 H L& &

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEALRZ @)
(Continued)
(@) (Continued) @) (&

2016
2016 &

2015
20154
HK$’000
FBT

HK$’000
FERT

Notes
BisE

[ CGN Global Uranium Limited
("CGN Global") {49 (i) 124 70
£BRTBREE

Business and administration
service fee paid to CGN Global
Uranium Limited (‘CGN Global’)

1) General Uranium UK Ltd
("General Uranium”) 31
EEER (vil 254 _

Staff cost paid
to General Uranium UK Ltd
(“General Uranium”)

Management fee received KR EZHE R EEE

from CGNPC-URC (ix) 2,504 -

214

Notes:

M

On 15 October 2013, the Group entered into a
framework agreement with CGNPC-URC for the sales
of natural uranium resources for the period ended 31
December 2016 at prevailing market rates. Interests
at LIBOR plus 2% per annum on overdue amounts for
the overdue period will be charged to CGNPC-URC.

On 31 July 2015, the Group entered into an
amendment to the framework agreement entered
into on 15 October 2013 with CGNPC-URC that the
subsidiaries of CGNPC-URC, including China Uranium
Development, can also be the purchaser of natural
uranium resources. Interests at 0.5% per day on
overdue amounts for the overdue period but not more
than 10% of the delayed due amount will be charged
to China Uranium Development.

On 1 July 2015, the Group entered into a sale
agreement with China Uranium Development for the
sales of natural uranium resources for the years 2016
and 2015.

CGN Mining Company Limited
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®2013F10A 158 -
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AR E E 20164 12 A 31
BIFHRIERATHELE
KRS E R 7] SAEZE
& o MHIRIB S N HI AR
1% LIBORN2% & £.[4]
A% i 2 % R AR FI2, o

MR201567 A31 8 * A&
B E iR ERREET
®2013F 10 A15H &7 32
RAEZE ek - TR - PR
IS EANE AR (B
EREHHEER) ] AKX
REHE T - BEARIES
R EREAR %2 0.5% B 218
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(@) (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(ix)

On 18 May 2016, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Semizbay-U for the purchases of
natural uranium resources for the year 2016 with other
taxes in relation thereon borne by the Group.

On 1 July 2015, the Group entered into a purchase
agreement with Semizbay-U for the purchases of
natural uranium resources for the year 2015 with other
taxes in relation thereon borne by the Group. The
Group is required to pay trade deposit to Semizbay-U
before delivery under the agreement with an interest
rate of 4% per annum.

The Group entered into a service agreement with
CGNPC-URC for the management services provided
by CGNPC-URC.

The Group entered into a framework agreement with
Huasheng to deposit amounts with Huasheng and
generate interests from such deposits.

The Group entered into a rental agreement with
CGNPC-URC to lease out the investment properties to
generate rental income.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
CGN Gilobal provided the business and administration
services to the Group and charged for services fee.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, General
Uranium shared the finance staff with the Group and
charged for services fee.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, the Group placed the deposits in & FEAZBf
7% to generate interest income with reference to the
prevailing market interest rate.

The Group entered into a management agreement
with CGNPC-URC to provide the management
services to CGNPC-URC for three years to generate
management fee income.

35. EEBEALRF (&)

@ (&

BaE : (%)

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii

(iX)

R2016F5 18R » A&
B £33 A B3t B 2016 F £
BRAMERMI L EE
hag - Htb BB EBRA
R B o

R2015F7A18 » A&
B B2 A AR 2015 5 /8
BRAMITLBE RS
H A BT I8 B AR B
& - BiRHE - ASEA
RMHARZNESES -
FRERA% °

AR E R EiR R R
B B R R AR SR A
BB 32 IR 5 7] S AR 75 1
e
REEBEFERENERT
FUAEEF ST ZAESR
E °

ANER B B E AR S IR
HALREYETLHE
ek - MEEMEESHEA -

REE2016F % 20154
12 A81 B IEFE ' CGN
Global iRt H)Z 75 RITIK
RS F A& B R B AR TS
g °
REZE2016F 12 A31H
1E4EE » General Uranium
HEAEELANBEE R
B AR TS &

RE E2016F K% 20154
12A31BLEFE A&
BN EZABEFEAR
o AEAERNBHWA (K
S2EZRTISHE)

REE R = F A B
EUREHEERGEE
RINERE W MEEE
BEEWA -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

@)

(Continued)

All transactions were conducted with terms mutually
agreed with the counter parties.

Details of connected transactions of the Company
are disclosed in the “Directors’ Report” section to the
Annual Report.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company during
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is as
follows:

35.

BBEEA LR ()

@)

(%)

ERSIREER ST
FEER] heka] 40 ©

ARFIAER HFBEREF
WIEFERS | PHE -

TEEBABZME

RELZE2016F K 2015 12
AB1HIEFEARARRES
ZB&mT ¢

2016 2015
2016 £F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Short-term benefits R HEAE A 2,674 2,800
Post-employment benefits B = A - -
2,674 2,800
The remuneration of directors of the Company and RAREZEREZTHA
key executives was determined by the remuneration BrMedBFEMEE gL

committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

CGN Mining Company Limited
REZEEAR AT

ZEMERIALZRERT
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COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$2,193,000 (2015: HK$5,017,000). The Group’s properties
held for rental purposes. A carrying amount of HK$69,209,000
and HK$17,963,000 were disposed of and transferred to
property, plant and equipment respectively during the year
ended 31 December 2015. The remaining properties are
expected to generate rental yields on approximately 6% (2015:
6% to 15%) on an ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have future
minimum lease receivable (2015: Nil).

The Group as lessee

The Group leased certain of its offices and staff quarters under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties were
negotiated for a term ranging from one to three years and
rentals were fixed throughout the rental period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases which fall due as follows:

36.

AE
AEEERHBA

FAEMz2WERSBADLOR
2,193,000 7T (20154F : 5,017,000
BID) o AEBEZYEFEHRER
% - BR ™ {B /469,209,000 Jt &
17,963,000 TR Y X E LR E
20156 12 31 BILFEHFIHE
REZYE - BEREE - R TH
Y FETAERREE £ 496% (2015 4F -
6% Z= 15%) BIF & Yz o

MR2016F 12 A31H » &A% B #

AR 2R S (R FE M PR 3K (2015 4F
&)

REBEREEA

AEERBELEHEELHERET
WMAERBIES - HAMEZZ
EHEFHENF—FE2=F mH
SEHEEHARETE T o

RBREPEEER - AEERET
A AR S EAER TR R
HIZ RARREREK

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FEIT

Within one year —FE R 1,519 1,266
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE—_FEEFRF(BIEERMT) 605 1,661
2,124 2,927
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 37. AR FBBRRE

THE COMPANY
2016 2015
2016 2015 4F
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
B FET FHET
Non-current assets IERBEE
Plant and equipment TR I 5% A 2,178 3,211
Investments in subsidiaries WEBARIEE 1,032,119 1,082,119
Investment in an associate — AR ERE 453,924 =
1,488,221 1,035,330
Current assets MENEEE
Trade and other receivables JrE UK AR 3k B EL A R M SR IR 8,731 185,786
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary — FEUL[R Z T A A ] I8 (b) 1,072,565 471,864
Bank balances and cash RITEFENRS 2,313 249,631
1,083,609 907,281
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables FEAS BR FN N E b FE A 5K IE 7,939 47,250
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHFfT B R =) FRIE (@) 841 1,187
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary N —ERZMBARFIE (b) = 2,821
Amount due to an intermediate A — 5 PR PSR AR A R F0E
holding company (a) 5,455 7,162
Convertible bonds AR ES = 289,933
Income tax payable FERFTISEL 25,940 19,971
40,175 368,324
Net current assets MEVEEFE 1,043,434 538,957
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTHAG 2,531,655 1,674,287
Capital and reserves AR A R (b
Share capital R& 7N 66,007 46,369
Reserves s () 2,465,495 1,527,765
Total equity AR 2,531,502 1,574,134
Non-current liability ERPAEB
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHIEAE 153 1563
2,531,655 1,574,287
21 8 CGN Mining Company Limited

REREEXARAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £2016%12 831 H I E[E

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

37. AR BHBMRRE @)

Notes: B EE -
(a): Amounts due to subsidiaries and an intermediate holding (@) FETH B A B R — R R AR A A
company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable FEREER 2R RAREKE
on demand. 2o
(o) The amount represents amount due from Huasheng and (b) FEUEE B R IE R RN R B A B )
amount due to CGN Power Co., Limited and details are set out BROEGRRFFIEN ST - #FI5H
in note 23. HMIEE23 ©
(© Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: (©) FARBBEBNT -
Equity
Share  component
Share options  of convertible Other Retained
premium reserve bonds reserve eamnings Total
TERES
REE  BRERG bl At REEA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tn TEn Tén Thn Tén
At 1 January 2015 201581 A1H 710971 154 138,827 7 209,108 1,069,067
Conversion of convertiole bonds HAmARES 337,934 - (69,413) - - 268,521
Profit for the year RERRT = = - - 20,177 200,177
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A318 1,048,906 154 69,414 7 409,285 1,527,765
Conversion of convertible bonds HamhhEs 351,904 - (69,414) - - 282,490
Issue of new shares, net of BITHRG (MBRSRA)
transaction cost 333,335 - - - - 333,33
Prof for the year REE AT - - - - 321905 321905
At 31 December 2016 20165127318 1,734,144 154 = 7 731,190 2,465,495
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e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &,£2016%12 431 H L& &

38. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. MIBARIIEK
Details of the subsidiaries held by the Company as at 31 ARAFER20164 K 201512 A 31
December 2016 and 2015 are as follows: HiFEZHBARIFENT :
Place of Particulars of issued
Class of incorporation/  Place of share capital / paid up Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary shares held establishment  operations registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
ifE/ BEfRE/
HEAFER FERHER RLZ% £33 HRERRRHE AEEERR
2016 2015
N6E 0165

Direct subsidiaries:

ERNELT:

Ever Jump Limited Qrdinary shares BVl HK 1 ordlnary share of 100% 100% Inactive

LRk iBRAEE B USD1 each EEEH
\REBRERAE1FT

*Befing Sino-Kazakh Contributed Capital ~ PRC PRC RMB823,770,000 100% 100% Investment project

Gl HAER hE ] AR 8237700007 RERE

CGNM UK Ltd. Qrdinary shares UK UK 100,000 ordlinary shares of 100% 100% Trading of natural uranium

LAk 25 it GBP 1 each RihHES
100,000 LR
SREE1 5
i Wholly owned foreign enterprise # SNEBE B
Note:  None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding BisE ©  RAERER D AR AN RS HAR A R
as at the end of the reporting period or at any time during the FRAHERAEARRAEEEAR
reporting period. EENEBES
220 CGN Mining Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &, £20164E12 31 B It EE

ACQUISITION OF AN ASSOCIATE

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, Fission agree to
issue and the Company agree to subscribe for 96,736,540
common shares at a price of CAD0.85 per common share at
a consideration of approximately CAD82,226,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$453,924,000) (“Consideration”). The
transaction was completed on 27 January 2016. Following the
completion of the acquisition, the Company held approximately
19.99% of the equity interest in Fission. Fission is accounted
for as an associate of the Company which exercises significant
influence in Fission after the acquisition.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 December 2015, 11 January 2016,
14 January 2016 and 27 January 2016 and the Company’s
circular dated 7 March 2016.

According to the Subscription Agreement, the Consideration
will be satisfied by:

(@) Release the deposit of CAD3,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,561,000) paid during the year
ended 31 December 2015 to the Company’s legal
counsel pursuant to an escrow agreement made
between the Company, Fission and the Company’s
legal counsel dated 31 December 2015 as a part of the
Consideration.

(b) The remaining part of the Consideration should be paid
upon the date of completion of acquisition.

39.

g — s

RIEREWE - FissionRE 37T
KRR B[R E A &% 0.85 1N 7T 73
96,736,540 & @ ik - X &
#) /82,226,000 1N 7T ( 18 & R 49
453,924,000/ L) ([RE L) - R
SH2016F1 A27 A=K - BHE
WEETERK + NARIFE A Fission4)
19.99% ZHE - Fission #5I BARD
AIMEE A EE - AR BT WEEE
M Fission BB ERFLE N -

BARSFBEHENRAARBEA
2015412 A21H 2016 F 1 A
118 ~ 201641 514 B X 20164
1H27TBWMRE - RAARIBHA
2016 3 A7 HAPEK °

RIBERBE W= - RERRIBATT
MER -

(@) fEBR A ELZ 20154 12 A 31
HIEFERARREREE
FRBERE HZE(RAF
FissionE2 KA B /AR B MR
201512 A31 HAI ) &
793,000,000 7T (FHE R
#916,561,000/87C) %
EREBHRIE -

b HBTITREERRKETKE
XAt e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 ;2201612 31 H It EE

39.

ACQUISITION OF AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

The deposit amounting of approximately HK$16,561,000
was paid during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the remaining part of the Consideration of approximately
HK$437,363,000 was paid during the current year.

An excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value of
Fission’s identifiable assets and liabilities of approximately
CAD129,621,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$715,563,000)
over the consideration of approximately HK$453,924,000 of
approximately HK$261,639,000 was recognised in profit or loss
and included in share of results of an associate. The fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities of Fission at acquisition date were
accessed by HF, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the bargain purchase is because the market value of
shares of Fission is far lower than the fair values of net identifiable
assets and liabilities of Fission on the date of acquisition. This
bargain purchase on acquisition was included in share of result of
an associate during the year.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$4,444,000 and HK$4,647,000 have been recognised as
administrative expenses in the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015 respectively.

CGN Mining Company Limited
HEXEEERAA

39. WiE—EEBELE e

#916,561,0008 TR ERENE
2016 12 A1 BILFEXN - M
RAE &R T 309 49 437,363,000 7 7T
BERARNFEHRAZA

ANATIEEFission Al BIEE K&
BEZ A RFEL 129,621,000 1
TC (FEE R 49715,563,000 5 7T ) B
#7453,924,000 7% 7T HY (BB H 4V
261,639,000 7T * B IHBHER
B RANERIL I AEEEERE
42 o Fission P UREE B &9 AT 355
BERBENARETIREEASE
EEME B A AR EELER
R - AAAESERAWERER
JR 2 Fission I E i B R KR UL
E B Fission Al &R FEERBE
WARE - LERERERER
BIRE(REE & D RERENR o

B 4,444,000 7T & 4,647,000
EITHUIB AR AR 5 BIREE
2016 2015 12 A31 HILFE
HRATTHA



Particulars of Major Properties as at 31 December 2016

R2016FE12 831 B 2 X EYXEFH1E

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT BEREZYE

Location NE Type of properties Lease term

MEER FHEHR

Rooms 2906 — 2910 & 2912, 29/F, R R TG E Office Premises Medium-term lease
Shi Ao International Centre AR R PN RHITRE

No. 101 Shaoyaoju Beili, 101 St BB B A Ly

Chaoyang District, 29#£2906 - 2910

Beijing, PRC Ko912 =

Annual Report 2016
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Definitions

Bx

In this annual report (excluding the “Independent Auditor’s Report to the shareholders of the Company”), unless the

context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

RAFERHRER (MEIE [BARRBROBIZHBERE]) - BXBEBZEAEN U TAREEBNTEE

“2016 AGM”
[2016 FIRRBF R E 5
“associate(s)”
[Eg At |

“Articles of Association”
[EF24RA1 ] 5

“Beijing Sino-Kazakh”

(bR A58 i
“Board”

=5 5
“CAD”

[hn7t] &

“CGN” or “CGNPC”

[hEZ] S [FEZEERAR] &

“CGN Group”

[hEZEE] B

“CGN Mining” or “Company”

[hEZIESR] - [R7F]] s [ARFE] 3

“CGNPC Huasheng”

[ R A e
“CGNPC-URC”
[hEZHEER] e

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEREXRARAT

the annual general meeting of the Company held on 19 May 2016.
AATR2016F5 A 19 A BRKRRBEFAE o

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.

ABELMRAFETZE% °

the articles of association of the Company.
RARAABERAA -

Beijing Sino-Kazakh Uranium Resources Investment Company
Limited*, a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

ERPREIMERREERAT - RPBEKIHNEREEAE, AEAR
GIES= (VNGRS

the board of Directors.
KABEEZ

Canadian dollars, the lawful currency of Canada.
MERTT - MERZEEE -

China General Nuclear Power Corporation, a company incorporated
in PRC with limited liability and the sole shareholder at China Uranium
Development.

PEEZEEBRAR - RABKZ2BREELAT - AHBIHERE
e 2 ME—ARER

CGNPC and its subsidiaries.
FEZEEQARIREWBAR -

CGN Mining Company Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.

PEZEEERAR RRASHSEMKZZBEREEAT - HK
T POBE A P AR T -

CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGNPC.
REZERKRERRAR - REBIMK Iz AF - RPEZEER
Rl 2EWBAR] -

China Uranium Development Company Limited*, a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and the sole shareholder of
the China Uranium Development.

PEZSEERAR AR RPBIKZ 2 BEREERR] - RPEHME
R MR °



“China Uranium Development”

[ B R R

“connected person”

(B AL

“controlling shareholder”

[ 15 R AR ER
“Corporate Governance Code”
[ R<rall

“Director(s)”

(%]

“EGM”
[BREFRIAE ]

“ED(s)”
[BN1TESE ]

“Fission”

[Fission A& ]

“Group”
[AEE ]

“Hainan Mining”
/e
“HK$”

[t

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]
“HKFRSs”

[ BB HRE 2]

Definitions

e

China Uranium Development Company Limited, the controlling
shareholder of the Company.
HREEEREBR AR - AREZIERARR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.
HAELmRAMETZE% -

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.

BEEETRAMTZE%E -

Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
ARSI E AT RIR B EE RS

the director(s) of the Company.

RRRESE

the extraordinary general meeting which was held on 29 June 2016.
72016512 429 BB MMM RFRIAE -

executive Director(s) of the Company.

ARFNTEE -

Fission Uranium Corp., a Canadian-based resource company of which
ordinary shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the
symbol “FCU”, the OTCQX market place in the U.S under the symbol
“FCUUF”and on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange under the symbol
“2FU”. Fission in an associate of the Company.

Fission Uranium Corp. * —RUAMEXAEEM 2 BRAG - EfE
WA LARSE [FCUl REZRZFEHFRXH P LARSKE [FCUUF] B3
Bl OTCQXAZ 5 g KA [2FU] iEM R @B S X S FT L o
Fission A 8] BA R A &5 o

the Company and its subsidiary.
KRB REWME AT

Hainan Mining Co., Ltd*, which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 601969.

BEBERERNDARAR REBEFXSH LM RO :
601969 °

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.
BB 2R -

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China.
I AR HFBEEBRRIITHE -

the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

BE LA RM 2 BB EHRELE]
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Definitions

“Hong Kong Xinmao”
[BBEK]
“INED(s)”

[ IFITES

“Irkol Mine”

[ 7 |
“Kazakhstan”
[ 5 72 72 i

“Kazatomprom”

[MRT

AN
[kw ]

“Io”
Mo

“Listing Rules”
[ AR AN

“MWe”
[MWe ]

“Model Code”

[52Esp Al ]

“New Financial Service Framework

Agreement”

[ 8 S IR AE SR 1o

CGN Mining Company Limited

REZEXARAT

Hong Kong Xinmao Investment Co., Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hainan Mining.
BEABXKIREBRLAR - REBFTMRIHNBRAG] - REEEERN
2EMBRA -

independent non-executive Director(s) of the Company .
RNRBVEIIERITES °

the Irkol mine located in the Kyzylorzhinsk area, 20 kilometres from
the town of Chiili, Kazakhstan, which was owned and operated by
Semizbay-U.

FRRSE FIBEIL - (7505 BE 72 HT38 Chili 8 20 F 2K Bz 2 Kyzylorzhinsk H,
B2 Irkol B& 1L » EHRN A RIEA REIRE -

The Republic of Kazakhstan.
0E e e HT3E AR o

National Atomic Company Kazatomprom, a joint stock company
established according to the laws of Kazakhstan, which holds 51%
equity interest of Semizbay-U.

National Atomic Company Kazatomprom (# i 52 818 B R R T 86 A
a)  —HKRBBERANDEEKINARDA] - FEHAR51%E
a unit of power equal to 1000 watts.

BB - HER 1000 FLEF ©

per pound.
S5

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
EEMERFRXHMBERATZS EHAR -

megawatts electric
KR

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

FHRAIMES TP LM AR ERETESFXHFLETA o

the framework agreement dated 6 December 2016 and entered
into between the Company and CGNPC Huasheng in relation to the
provision of certain financial service by CGNPC Huasheng to the
Company.

RN AP ERERF 2 BRRR20165F 12 A6 H 2 1ERHZE - A
AT EZER MR RRMEE THBRS -



“New Natural Uranium Sales
Framework Agreement”

[#T RSN ShIHEE R 5%
“NED(s)”

[FEITE S

“PLS Property”
[PLSIEE |

“PRC”

[H [

“RMB”
[ARE]

“Semizbay Mine”

[ e |

“Semizbay-U”

EiVNCIN

“SFO”

[ & 7 K B 15 |
“share(s)”

A7 |

“shareholder(s)”

[ MR ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B2 P

“subsidiary”
[FHEAF]

Definitions

e

the framework agreement dated 6 December 2016 and entered into
between the Company and CGNPC-URC in relation to the sale of
natural uranium by the Group to CGNPC-URC and/or its subsidiaries.

AN R B ER 2 BEA2016612 A6 H 2 ER H# -

NEEBAREE R EZHERER NEWNBARHERAM -

non-executive Director(s) of the Company.
RARIERITESE -

Patterson Lake South project, Fission’s primary and wholly-owned
asset.

Patterson Lake South8 H - AFisson R8I Z T BN 2 EHBEE -

The People’s Republic of China, which, for the purpose of this report,
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

REARANE - IAREME TRERE  RFIREE -

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC.
AR hBZEEE -

the Semizbay mine located in the Valihanov District of Akmoltnsk
Oblast, Kazakhstanm which was owned and operated by Semizbay-U.
SUKZZEFTEL o ALRAMKBIETHTIE Akmoltnsk Oblast 2 Valihanov &

MR REE RERE

Semizbay-U Limited Liability Partnership, a limited liability partnership
established in Kazakhstan, the Company owns its 49% equity interest
and as a joint venture of the Company.

WAZEFRARABLE  RWRERITNAK Z BARETEEEE

RAERTBAERE  RAREGH49% % o

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).
BHLHAEGRE (BBEPIEET1E) -

ordinary share(s) in the Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01
each.

KR RFIREE0.01 BT EilAR -

holder(s) of the share(s).

e EUNE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
ERBMERIMARRDA -

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules.

BB ETRAMET 28 -
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Definitions

ER
“Takeovers Code”

[ s Al

“Thirteen-Five Period”

or “Thirteen-Five”
[+=REE ]k [+=5]
“Thirteen-Five Plan”

[+=hRE]

“Twelve-Five Period”

[+ =T EAfE |

UK
=

“USD”

E

CGN Mining Company Limited
PEREXRARAT

The Code on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-Backs approved
by the Securities and Futures Commission as amended from time to
time.

BARLMABEBERZEGEZ ARIWE - &0 &Ri{n Bl
(JETRFERT) ©

the period from 2016 to 2020.
2016 4F & 2020 FHAR o

the national five-year business proposal issued by the Chinese
government during Thirteen-Five Period.
HARBNEMN T = A RNER AT TS o

the period from 2011 to 2015.
2011 F £ 2015 FHifE -

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland.
ARPFNE R E RS EE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America.

X FHNBERBOXEE
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